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          1  EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Good afternoon.

          3  My name is Robert Jackson. I'm Chair of the

          4  Education Committee. My colleague John Liu, to my

          5  right, is the Chairman of the Transportation

          6  Committee. We are here today to hold an oversight

          7  hearing on a Review of the Changes to the School Bus

          8  Plan: Are Children Being Left Out on the Curb?

          9                 Let me introduce my colleagues that

         10  are present here this afternoon, and the staff that

         11  have accompanied us. To my left is Joe Addabbo of

         12  Queens; Peter Vallone, Jr., of Queens; David Weprin

         13  of Queens; Lew Fidler, to my right, of Brooklyn;

         14  Michael McMahon, Staten Island.

         15                 In the front, to my right, Simcha

         16  Felder of Brooklyn; to my left, Domenic Recchia of

         17  Brooklyn; and Jim Vacca of the Bronx.

         18                 We have also been joined by our

         19  Public Advocate, Betsy Gotbaum, who is directly

         20  behind me. And also the staff of the Committee, so

         21  if you have questions, for myself as the Chair,

         22  staff are available to talk to you. Sitting to my

         23  left is the Counsel to the Education Committee,

         24  Scheherazade Salimi; Jan Atwell is a Policy Analyst,

         25  sitting over to the left over there. Jennifer Culp,
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          2  our Legislative Policy Analyst; and Regina

          3  Poreda-Ryan is a Finance Policy Analyst; and Anthony

          4  Hogrebe is our Press Officer.

          5                 And with Council Member John Liu,

          6  Phil Hom, is the Counsel; Ron Kim is a legislative

          7  Policy Analyst; and Chima Obichere, is his Finance

          8  Analyst.

          9                 We have also been joined by my

         10  colleague in front of me, Melinda Katz of Queens.

         11  Thank you.

         12                 I do believe that we all know why

         13  we're here today. Last summer, consulting firm

         14  Alvarez and Marsal was hired through a no-bid

         15  contract with the Department of Education for the

         16  sum of approximately $15.7 million to furnish

         17  financial and restructuring advisory services to

         18  support the Department of Education in its

         19  systemwide reform efforts. Included in these efforts

         20  was the reorganization of school bus routes, which

         21  was implemented in January of this year.

         22                 While it seems that this plan has

         23  been underway for at least six months, the

         24  Department of Education was unable to implement

         25  these changes smoothly. Parents were caught off
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          2  guard, scrambling to find alternate ways to get

          3  their children to school. Some parents have even

          4  missed work or kept their children at home because

          5  they had no other choice. Bus operators were also

          6  left in the dark, with some operators receiving new

          7  routes, stops and schedules just hours before the

          8  scheduled pick-up time. Dry runs were not done.

          9  Buses were late and some did not come at all,

         10  leaving young children stranded in the cold in this

         11  January weather.

         12                 One would think that since A&M,

         13  Alvarez and Marsal, has had previous experience in

         14  implementing changes to school bus routes in St.

         15  Louis in 2002, New York City's transition might have

         16  gone smoother. St. Louis News Accounts called the

         17  bus route reorganization an "unmitigated disaster

         18  that did not take into account street closings,

         19  students having to cross highways, or having to walk

         20  up to a mile to a new bus stop. Does this sound

         21  familiar?

         22                 Now, I understand that there were

         23  several reasons why the Department of Education was

         24  unable to implement the changes to school bus routes

         25  in the fall, when such changes would have made the
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          2  most sense. These reasons include a court order, and

          3  extended parent outreach, valid reasons for the

          4  delay, however, I still believe that waiting until

          5  the fall of 2007 would have just made more sense.

          6                 Chancellor Klein has said that bus

          7  changes were implemented mid-year in order to funnel

          8  money, more money into the classrooms, which is a

          9  laudable goal. But what is disturbing, however, is

         10  the paltry amount of savings that may actually

         11  trickle into classrooms this school year.

         12                 In October of 2006, the Department of

         13  Education announced that changes to school bus

         14  routes would save approximately $20 million a year.

         15  After January implementation, that number dropped to

         16  about $13 million, and now they're projecting it to

         17  be around $5 million. This reduction of projected

         18  savings is due to implementation delays, having to

         19  hire more buses to help get children to school on

         20  time, and poor projections. It seems that initial

         21  savings did not take into consideration the accounts

         22  for State reimbursements.

         23                 Now, I may not have a management

         24  degree, but common sense tells me that something is

         25  wrong here. Five million in savings? That hardly
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          2  seems worth the loss of time and classroom

          3  instruction or the upheaval of family schedules in

          4  the middle of the winter. Clearly, working parents

          5  have not been taken into consideration.

          6                 What we have to remember here is that

          7  the Department of Education is serving children, not

          8  manufacturing widgets. This is not a business where

          9  you can bottom line everything. It is not always

         10  about dollars, and in this case getting the kids to

         11  school safely and on time, in my opinion, far

         12  outweighs the bottom line.

         13                 And one last thing, at our last

         14  Education hearing, which was January 25th of 2007,

         15  the Committee questioned Deputy Mayor Dennis Walcott

         16  and Chancellor Joel Klein, regarding their plan to

         17  once again reform the education system.

         18                 Committee members and myself were

         19  concerned about the lack of detail in the plan, as

         20  well as the fast implementation time. This latest

         21  fiasco does not give me a lot of confidence in the

         22  Department of Education's ability to implement large

         23  scale reforms. I hope that you at least take into

         24  account the problems associated with implementing

         25  far-reaching reforms too quickly. We cannot continue
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          2  to be reckless with our children's education. And

          3  now let me turn it over to my colleague, Council

          4  Member John Liu of Queens, the Chairman of the

          5  Transportation Committee.

          6                 John Liu.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Chairman

          8  Jackson. I want to thank all of my colleagues for

          9  joining us in this hearing and thank all of the

         10  members of the public, and also the members of the

         11  Administration. For quite some time, we have been

         12  aware that there have been changes afoot to

         13  reorganize the way school children are transported

         14  by school buses in New York City, beginning with the

         15  absorption of the school bus lines originally run by

         16  the Department of Transportation to improving the

         17  way in which special education kids are transported

         18  to and from school. And, of course, in the fall we

         19  had known some -- we had been notified somewhat of

         20  some big changes coming along. I think Chairman

         21  Jackson has already voiced many of the concerns that

         22  we here in the Council have, and those are concerns

         23  on what we hear from the parents and the families

         24  involved.

         25                 In addition to questions about the
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          2  decision-making process that led up to this, I think

          3  we'll also hear a lot of concerns about exactly

          4  where the Mayor and the Chancellor stand, given

          5  their initial response to the school bus fiasco that

          6  left so many kids at the curb, in the cold, and

          7  their response, which curiously was at best

          8  clueless, and at worst cold-hearted. That is not

          9  something that we expect or can tolerate for the 1.1

         10  million kids in this City. So, I'm glad that the

         11  Administration has had a change of heart, and has,

         12  after a week of hardship for the families in New

         13  York, apologized for the mistakes, and I'm happy to

         14  see that the Chancellor is here himself to answer

         15  the questions that we, as Council members, have on

         16  behalf of our constituents and the public at large

         17  here in New York City.

         18                 Going forward I hope that we can work

         19  together so that we can all understand what it is

         20  that the school buses do for the kids and the

         21  families and how best to proceed forward from here.

         22                 Thank you, Chairman Jackson.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you,

         24  Chairman Liu.

         25                 We've also been joined by additional
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          2  colleagues. Maria del Carmen Arroyo of the Bronx is

          3  directly in front of me, and to her right is Council

          4  Member Gale Brewer of Manhattan. To her right is

          5  Council Member Helen Diane Foster of the Bronx, and

          6  to her right is Council Member Jessica Lappin of

          7  Manhattan. And to John Liu's right is Oliver Koppell

          8  of the Bronx, and all the way at the end, to my

          9  extreme right, is Jim Oddo of Staten Island.

         10                 And now we will turn to the Public

         11  Advocate Betsy Gotbaum for an opening statement.

         12                 Public Advocate Gotbaum.

         13                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: Good

         14  afternoon. Thank you, Chairman Jackson, for holding

         15  this important hearing, and thank you, members of

         16  the Administration, for appearing.

         17                 Yesterday I proposed legislation that

         18  would create a school bus bill of rights. This

         19  legislation would bar the Department of Education

         20  from ever again making major changes to school bus

         21  routes in the middle of the school year. That's

         22  because for more than two weeks thousands of parents

         23  across the City have struggled to find ways to get

         24  their children to and from school safely, on the

         25  heels of this ill-conceived plan to reorganize
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          2  school bus routes in the middle of winter.

          3                 The plan's many flaws, the hardships

          4  to parents and the dangers to children have been

          5  well documented in news reports, derided in cartoons

          6  and lambasted in editorials. In response to this,

          7  the Mayor suggested that parents call 3-1-1, and he

          8  said, "We'll adjudicate the problem and make sure

          9  you have the service if you deserve it." The part

         10  about "if you deserve it" struck me as a highly

         11  subjective standard. Who is deciding whether a child

         12  deserves bus service?

         13                 Who, for example, decided it was safe

         14  for a five-year-old and his seven-year-old sister to

         15  cross Northern Boulevard at 193rd Street in Queens?

         16  The boy's mother who has to take her four-year-old

         17  special needs child to school in the morning has

         18  been denied a hazard variance. The variance would

         19  allow her five and seven year old to take the same

         20  bus they had been riding before the new plan got

         21  into effect. The reason for the denial? The

         22  Department says it's a safe crosswalk for the

         23  children to navigate.

         24                 Never mind the heavy volume of

         25  traffic across six lanes during the morning rush,
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          2  never mind that we're talking about a kindergartner

          3  and a second grader. Who ever decided these children

          4  don't deserve bus service was not aware that a

          5  traffic accident occurred at this very intersection

          6  this year, or that 12 occurred there last year.

          7                 Whoever decided to deny these

          8  children bus service seemed more concerned with the

          9  fact that the kids live 53 feet, 53 feet too close

         10  to their school.

         11                 In the end, what's most troubling

         12  about this whole fiasco is that parents' lives have

         13  been turned upside down and children's safety put in

         14  jeopardy.

         15                 Say about me what you will, Mr.

         16  Mayor, but I think that this is a sign of poor

         17  management, and, frankly, it's a disgrace. And at

         18  the end of the day, how much, in fact, will this

         19  reorganization save? We were first told it would be

         20  20 million, however, recently it's 12, maybe 5.6,

         21  and the consulting firm that created this mess,

         22  Alvarez and Marsal, has since pocketed 15 point

         23  (sic) million for its work. Worse yet, the school

         24  debacle may not be the end. There may be other

         25  reforms because the Department seems to be
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          2  continuing to solicit advice from this firm. The

          3  contract with Alvarez and Marsal gives the company

          4  extensive decision-making power in a number of

          5  areas, including student-based budgeting, special

          6  education, school facilities and resource

          7  realignment, whatever that means.

          8                 The company's responsibility for the

          9  school bus fiasco warrants termination of this

         10  contract, not an opportunity to make a bigger mess.

         11                 Fire Alvarez and Marsal, scrap the

         12  school bus plan and go back to the drawing boards.

         13  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you,

         15  Public Advocate. We've also been joined by my

         16  colleagues waiting for seats, Council Member Dan

         17  Garodnick of Manhattan, and Council Member Larry

         18  Seabrook of the Bronx.

         19                 Our first witnesses, Deputy Mayor

         20  Dennis Walcott, Chancellor Joel Klein, and Deputy

         21  Chancellor Kathleen Grimm. Welcome this afternoon,

         22  to all three of you.

         23                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Thank you very

         24  much. And good afternoon to you, to Chairman Liu,

         25  Public Advocate Gotbaum, the members of the City
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          2  Council Committee on Education and Transportation,

          3  as well as the other City Council members, and to

          4  the audience, as well.

          5                 Giving testimony this afternoon will

          6  be myself and the Deputy Chancellor, and then the

          7  Chancellor will be participating in any questions

          8  and answers that you may have.

          9                 As you know, two weeks ago we

         10  initiated new bus routes for our City's school

         11  children. Before we discuss the process leading up

         12  to and following this change, allow me to step back

         13  for a moment to discuss the bigger picture.

         14                 When the Mayor took charge of New

         15  York City's education system in 2002, he asked a

         16  simple question: how can we get the most out of each

         17  dollar we spend on our schools? He felt strongly

         18  then, and he feels strongly today that education

         19  dollars have the most powerful impact on student

         20  learning when they are closest to the students.

         21                 Back in 2002, however, the school

         22  system was needlessly spending millions and millions

         23  of dollars on bureaucrats and was riddled with

         24  inefficiencies. We knew that throwing away money on

         25  oversized bureaucracy wouldn't help principals lead,
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          2  teachers teach and students learn.

          3                 That's why in the Mayor's first term,

          4  we cut more than $200 million from the education

          5  bureaucracy and sent it to the schools. And that's

          6  why the Mayor last year promised an additional $200

          7  million from the bureaucracy to support schools and

          8  to classrooms in his second term.

          9                 This year the Department of Education

         10  slashed more than $80 million from the regional and

         11  central bureaucracy to support schools and

         12  classrooms. Principals have used this money to hire

         13  about 275 teachers, they also hired other critical

         14  staff and purchased professional development and

         15  other services to help their teachers teach and

         16  their students to learn.

         17                 Every dollar, every single dollar

         18  matters. Every cent that we spend on services that

         19  are not delivered at all or delivered wastefully is

         20  that much less we have to spend on reducing class

         21  size, paying our great educators and improving

         22  educational outcomes for all of our students. Busing

         23  is a prime example of the kind of inefficient

         24  spending that we're trying to end. Eliminating waste

         25  and sending the savings directly to our classrooms
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          2  is more than just a good thing to do. It is our duty

          3  to this City's taxpayers, and more importantly, to

          4  our children.

          5                 Given our obligation to every child

          6  in this City a high-quality education, how can we

          7  not root out the inefficiencies that were

          8  benefitting private bus companies at the expense of

          9  our schools and our children? And how could we not

         10  make sure that we were paying only for services that

         11  children were actually receiving, and then direct

         12  the millions we save to schools and classrooms.

         13                 Let there be no mistake about it, the

         14  financial stakes are extremely high here. Today we

         15  root approximately 82,000 general education children

         16  on yellow buses, of which 28,000, or 34 percent,

         17  attend non-public schools.

         18                 The cost of busing general education

         19  students will increase nearly 80 percent between

         20  2000 and 2008, and by 2012, we would have it

         21  increased roughly by 137 percent, even though the

         22  number of students riding the bus is declining.

         23                 Today we spend well over $200 million

         24  on general education transportation alone. Over $200

         25  million spent, and we had no clear information about
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          2  how many students were actually riding, and how much

          3  it should cost to bring them to school.

          4                 Just to illustrate, we have been

          5  routing for 94,000 students, but the private bus

          6  companies that operate our yellow buses claimed in

          7  their legal papers filed in November, their

          8  transporting only 72,000 children.

          9                 As this disparity makes clear, we're

         10  paying tens of millions of dollars to private bus

         11  companies for students who aren't even riding the

         12  bus. It's a matter of simple math, buses hold 65

         13  students each, whether you use 94,700 or the 72,000

         14  students figure, there are massive and costly

         15  inefficiencies. Because under either number we have

         16  2,156 bus routes and that means that in the best

         17  case scenario 44 students we're riding on average on

         18  a bus that holds 65. If the bus companies' figures

         19  were correct, our buses were almost half empty on

         20  average, with only 34 students riding.

         21                 Put another way, in a world of

         22  perfect efficiency, the buses we use and pay for

         23  today can carry over 135,000 students, when in fact

         24  we serve only 80,000 children.

         25                 To be sure, the level of perfection
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          2  will never be realized. Nothing less, I'm sure we

          3  can all agree that we can do a great deal better

          4  than we are, and that children will benefit from our

          5  effort as the savings are redirected towards our

          6  schools.

          7                 Moreover, while there is every

          8  temptation to judge this initiative on the basis of

          9  a few weeks of progress, we have never viewed it

         10  that way. Every journey begins with a single step.

         11  To realize significant savings down the road, we had

         12  to begin the laborious process of ensuring that

         13  every student in fact registers for service. Only

         14  then would we know who is actually riding on our

         15  buses so we could craft routes that both meet our

         16  students' needs and do so as efficiently as

         17  possible.

         18                 That process was going to have its

         19  bumps, whether done on the first day of school, the

         20  start of the second semester or after the winter

         21  break. We all need to be forthright about this basic

         22  reality. When you add it all up, the bottom line was

         23  this: Although the New York State law requires us to

         24  affirmatively register students for busing, for a

         25  generation we've automatically put students who did
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          2  not register on a yellow bus, even if they prefer to

          3  walk, or if their parents drop them off every

          4  morning, pick them up every afternoon.

          5                 In other words, companies were paid

          6  even for students who never rode the bus. This was a

          7  waste of our precious education resources and had to

          8  be addressed.

          9                 We decided to do so by asking parents

         10  per the requirements of state law to sign up for

         11  services they actually wanted, rather than spending

         12  for service that was in some cases going totally

         13  unused.

         14                 Indeed, through this process 11,400

         15  children who had been routed on yellow buses

         16  indicated that they actually would prefer a

         17  MetroCard, and 5,000 children who had been routed on

         18  buses declined transportation services all together.

         19                 All of these savings, even those

         20  realized this year, will be redirected to schools

         21  and classrooms. Let me be clear: by March of this

         22  year schools will see the funds equivalent to this

         23  year's estimated savings. Even with all the concerns

         24  that have arisen, we stand by this goal and we

         25  continue to pursue it.
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          2                 Now I'd like to turn the microphone

          3  over to Deputy Chancellor Kathleen Grimm, who will

          4  provide details on how we created this policy, how

          5  we notified schools and families, and how we've been

          6  working to ensure that the system is running

          7  smoothly.

          8                 But before I do, I want to be clear

          9  that the Mayor and I know the execution of this

         10  plan, however essential its goals, fell far short.

         11  We know that the disruption and inconvenience it

         12  caused so many families was totally unacceptable. We

         13  extend our deepest regret to those most affected. As

         14  we work together in the days and weeks ahead to fix

         15  the remaining concerns, we trust that you share our

         16  goal of efficiently directing our limited resources

         17  to the schools and classrooms, just as we share

         18  yours of providing high-quality transportation

         19  services to every eligible child in New York City,

         20  and now Deputy Chancellor Kathleen Grimm.

         21                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Thank you.

         22  Good afternoon, Chairmen Jackson, Liu and Public

         23  Advocate Gotbaum and members of the Education and

         24  Transportation Committees.

         25                 As the Deputy Mayor just indicated,
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          2  we knew that we were not spending our resources

          3  wisely in this area. Our aim was to provide busing

          4  only to those eligible children who wanted it and to

          5  redirect any savings to schools and classrooms.

          6                 The process that led up to the

          7  changes that went into effect two weeks ago began

          8  last spring. When we directed Alvarez and Marsal, a

          9  private consulting firm working for the Department

         10  to conduct a full review of our bus vendor

         11  contracts, A&M conducted a thorough and

         12  comprehensive review of the underlying data and made

         13  field observations of how our transportation system

         14  was working in practice. Perhaps the most important

         15  finding is that we were routing students on yellow

         16  buses, based on their eligibility and not at all on

         17  who actually wanted the service.

         18                 A&M also visited and researched how

         19  other big city school districts, including Chicago,

         20  Philadelphia, Boston do their busing. Through this

         21  we learned that even though New York City has the

         22  best and most utilized public transportation system

         23  in the nation, we are far more generous in the

         24  eligibility requirements for yellow bus service than

         25  most other cities in New York State and the country
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          2  as a whole. Based on these findings, we knew that we

          3  couldn't afford to continue in the same direction.

          4  We could not afford to spend millions of extra

          5  dollars on busing that could be spent in schools and

          6  classrooms, buying textbooks, providing extra

          7  tutoring, and putting additional teachers in our

          8  classrooms.

          9                 As State law directs, we required in

         10  this initiative that families register for the

         11  services that they actually wanted. The plan was to

         12  reroute buses based on demand from eligible students

         13  rather than automatically providing busing to all

         14  eligible students, as well as to those who were in

         15  fact ineligible but who were riding the buses

         16  anyway.

         17                 Before the end of the '06/'07 school

         18  year, we contacted all of our schools and asked them

         19  to tell parents to register their students for

         20  busing in the fall.

         21                 This began a massive public outreach

         22  campaign. Since last spring, we communicated

         23  directly with principals and parents more than a

         24  dozen times. We mailed a flyer with text in English

         25  and eight other languages to every parent of a
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          2  potentially eligible public school student. We

          3  mailed a letter directly to all families who did not

          4  respond to our initial request. This letter, too,

          5  was translated into eight additional languages. We

          6  sent three separate general backpack letters home to

          7  families through the schools. We also provided

          8  schools with individualized letters for each child,

          9  detailing the students' specific transportation

         10  information, including busing with times and stop

         11  information.

         12                 We gave flyers to the bus drivers who

         13  distributed them to all students who were actually

         14  riding the bus. We called principals directly, we

         15  called many parents directly. We sent letters to

         16  elected officials and community leaders.

         17                 Initially, we planned to implement

         18  the changes in September, but as is so often the

         19  case, there were delays. Twice we delayed the

         20  implementation of this plan. We wanted to make sure

         21  students had a chance to register. Then our plans

         22  had to be put on hold, because the private bus

         23  companies, perhaps eager to keep as many buses as

         24  possible on the City streets, went to court to try

         25  to stop our plan. That is why they sued us, of
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          2  course.

          3                 Each time we extended the

          4  implementation date, we also extended the

          5  registration period, giving parents and schools more

          6  time to make sure students were registered. In the

          7  end, more than 85 percent of all potentially

          8  eligible public school students responded. Many of

          9  them requested yellow bus transportation, thousands,

         10  however, requested Master Cards (sic). Thousands of

         11  others -- MetroCards, I'm sorry. I'm sure they'd

         12  like a Master Card, too.

         13                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: It's part of

         14  our new policy. That's all.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: That's not really

         16  going to help you with the cost savings, okay?

         17                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Correct.

         18                 So, thousands requested MetroCards.

         19  Thousands of others said they did not require

         20  transportation at all, and declined the service.

         21                 With these data in hand, we were able

         22  to rewrite the system based on children who were

         23  both eligible and who wanted to ride.

         24                 We did so by designing some new

         25  routes and by looking at the old routes, and

                                                            27

          1  EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEES

          2  removing some stops which had no students, based on

          3  the responses to the registration and application of

          4  eligibility rules.

          5                 I would say, by the way -- we made no

          6  changes to the eligibility rules. They have been in

          7  place for decades. We then reviewed the number of

          8  students on each route and then consolidated the

          9  stops and routes where we could. After the extended

         10  registration period, we added stops to accommodate

         11  newly registered students.

         12                 While we know that these changes are

         13  never easy, we believed this plan was both necessary

         14  and achievable. Last year at about the same time, we

         15  implemented system-wide changes to school schedules

         16  and bus times when we added the 37 and a half

         17  minutes to the school days of some of our children.

         18  Although that change, too, caused some disruption,

         19  overall it was highly successful and showed us that

         20  for a major mid-year shift -- that a major mid-year

         21  shift in bus routes was possible.

         22                 Indeed, last year's change affected

         23  even more students than this year's change. A major

         24  difference perhaps this year is with the bus

         25  companies in that last year we were adding buses, a
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          2  financial boon to the private vendors, this year in

          3  the end we attempted to remove about 116 buses,

          4  something obviously the vendors opposed on the basis

          5  of their economic interest.

          6                 We knew that this change would not be

          7  easy. There were complaints and problems for about

          8  two weeks after the 37 and a half minute

          9  implementation, but there was a precedent and we

         10  believed problems, while real, could be addressed.

         11                 As you know, the implementation was

         12  not as smooth as we had hoped. The Chancellor and I,

         13  and all of our colleagues at the DOE, are deeply

         14  sorry that these changes caused real disruption and

         15  inconvenience to the people we care about most, our

         16  students and our parents.

         17                 As you know, we are in the process of

         18  evaluating what went wrong, and how we can do better

         19  in future efforts to improve our transportation

         20  services. And what have we learned already?

         21                 First, we learned that we

         22  underestimated the number of children who are

         23  ineligible but had never been made aware of the

         24  rules and were riding the buses anyway.

         25                 Secondly, we learned that our systems
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          2  were not equipped to ensure that siblings were on

          3  the same route or that young children did not

          4  receive MetroCards. These outcomes were not

          5  acceptable and they should not have happened.

          6                 Thirdly, we learned that our

          7  community simply did not understand that State law

          8  requires that students register for yellow bus

          9  service, and that we need to do a better job of

         10  communicating this legal requirement.

         11                 We acknowledge these errors and

         12  extend our sincerest apologies to those affected by

         13  them.

         14                 There are those who have maintained

         15  that the right response was simply to reverse course

         16  and return to the routes that existed previously.

         17  With all due respect, that would have been

         18  impossible without disrupting the lives of the many

         19  tens of thousands of students who had adjusted

         20  smoothly to the new system.

         21                 Weeks of work and repeated additional

         22  communications to parents and schools would have

         23  been necessary and even then the result would have

         24  been uncertain at best.

         25                 Moreover, we stand by our commitment
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          2  to redirect millions of wasted dollars from private

          3  vendors to our schools and to our classrooms. Rather

          4  than abandon this goal, a practical impossibility in

          5  any event, we have been working night and day to

          6  address problems as they are brought to our

          7  attention. And circumstances have confirmed the

          8  wisdom I think of this decision. Today we believe

          9  that the vast majority of problems are resolved.

         10  Principals are telling us that students are arriving

         11  school on time and ready to learn. Calls to the hot

         12  line have returned to pre-registration levels, and

         13  one-by-one we continue to do everything possible to

         14  address legitimate concerns as they arise.

         15                 Indeed, any parents who still have

         16  problems should call 3-1-1. In fact, today we have

         17  Department staff here ready to address particular

         18  concerns of parents and will take down whatever

         19  situation they have. We are standing ready to help

         20  them and to make this new system work for them and

         21  for their children.

         22                 While we sincerely regret the

         23  difficulties many have experienced as a result of

         24  the root changes, we are proud that we are saving

         25  millions of dollars and that all of those savings
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          2  will be redirected to the school.

          3                 Thank you, and I think we're prepared

          4  to take any questions.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you. Are

          6  we going to hear from Chancellor Joel Klein?

          7                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: Just in

          8  interaction.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Interaction,

         10  okay.

         11                 Before we begin, let me just

         12  introduce additional colleagues of the City Council

         13  that are present here this afternoon. Letitia James

         14  in front of me, a little bit to my left, of

         15  Brooklyn, also Council Member Helen Sears of Queens,

         16  Council Member Darlene Mealy of Brooklyn, and

         17  Council Member Diana Reyna of Brooklyn.

         18                 Let me just start off by asking the

         19  question that was communicated I think by Public

         20  Advocate Betsy Gotbaum, in which the bottom line of

         21  all that is said and done, considering all of the

         22  headaches and pain and the apologies, will you agree

         23  to go back to the old routes so we can put an end to

         24  this chaos, and then go back to the drawing board

         25  and make any changes to the routes you think are
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          2  necessary, but this time in consultation with the

          3  bus companies and parents?

          4                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Let me respond

          5  to that. We will not go back to the old routes. I

          6  think going back to the old routes, again, goes back

          7  to a system that was inefficient wasting taxpayer

          8  dollars, and takes away dollars from the classroom,

          9  and our goal is to make sure we get as many dollars

         10  to the classrooms as possible.

         11                 In reality, what we've been able to

         12  do, and we understand we've impacted a number of

         13  students, we've been able to change the system and

         14  making sure that system has become more efficient.

         15  And as we indicated in our testimony, this is a

         16  step, a multi-step process in reforming the bus

         17  transportation system, and inherent in your

         18  question, Councilman, in consultation with the bus

         19  companies, I mean the bus companies are the ones who

         20  benefit with the old system. They're the ones who

         21  get more money, not our students and not our

         22  classrooms. So, with all due respect we will not go

         23  back to the old system. In reference to the Public

         24  Advocate's bill of rights, and while we would always

         25  look forward to talking to the Public Advocate about
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          2  that, if the bill rights was in effect then last

          3  year when we expanded sessions by 37 and a half

          4  minutes, then would have been able to deny those

          5  students who have benefitted from the 37 and a half

          6  minutes, as a result of what the adjustments we had

          7  to make with the additional time (sic). So, we

          8  always look forward to working with you and talking

          9  with you, but we will not go back to the old system.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I mean, your

         11  response that we will not go back seems to me like

         12  I'm driving down the road and I'm going in the wrong

         13  direction and I refuse to listen to advice from a

         14  partner in the car, in order to pull over and take a

         15  look at the map to make sure that we are going

         16  correctly in the right direction in order to reach

         17  our destination. And it's usually a man in that

         18  particular situation.

         19                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Well, if you

         20  say it like that, then I'll let Kathleen respond,

         21  but I respectfully disagree. One of the things that

         22  we want to do is make sure that the system gets

         23  better, and we're committed to making sure that the

         24  system gets better, but at the same time, we will

         25  not go back to a system that was wasting taxpayer
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          2  dollars and taking money away from classrooms.

          3                 As I indicated in my testimony, that

          4  the schools will benefit from dollars and just to

          5  correct something in the opening remarks, the change

          6  in the savings, and, again, this change in the

          7  savings, one is based on an annualized figure, and

          8  one is based on a pro-rated figure for the remainder

          9  of the school year, and so the 5.6 million that was

         10  used as of January 29th was for the remainder of the

         11  school year, and then the larger figure was based on

         12  the total school year itself. We think it's

         13  important to drive the money directly to classrooms,

         14  and that's what our goal is.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, Deputy

         16  Mayor, you know, I think that everyone agrees that

         17  where the City of New York, Department of Education

         18  or any other agency that can save money, that every

         19  New Yorker wants the City of New York to save money,

         20  but clearly this is not new. The bus contract has

         21  been around for 25 years, and in fact, we had a

         22  hearing about a year, or two years ago, Deputy

         23  Chancellor, you remember that, when we were

         24  discussing the bus company contracts, and I said why

         25  don't we openly put them out to bid? You guys said
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          2  to us here, well, it wouldn't make sense, that it

          3  will lose money, it will cost more money, and I

          4  hear, Deputy Mayor, that you said on the radio that

          5  we have been ripped off for years; well, why did you

          6  all agree to go in this direction in the first

          7  place?

          8                 And not only that, but with respects

          9  to saving money, you, the Chancellor and the Mayor

         10  have been driving this ship for now six years, and

         11  now all of a sudden you're saying that things need

         12  to be done. It raises questions as to your judgment,

         13  and not only your judgment, clearly the timing of

         14  this is clearly bad and all you have to do is ask

         15  New Yorkers should we implement this in the dead of

         16  the winter? And Joel Klein, the Chancellor, had said

         17  on the news that it could have been a little warmer

         18  outside. Well, if, in fact, if the weather was

         19  supposed to be like it was, it would have been much

         20  colder outside. In fact, last week is indicative of

         21  the type of weather we're supposed to have, and it

         22  was not even freezing, it was super freezing

         23  outside. And people are just questioning your

         24  judgment here on this particular matter. And the

         25  Mayor to be so arrogant, to say that people, meaning
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          2  members of the City Council, the Public Advocate,

          3  they don't know what they're talking about, well the

          4  people of New York know what they're talking about,

          5  the parents know what they're talking about, because

          6  they are the ones that are dealing with it every

          7  single day.

          8                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: If I may, then

          9  I'll turn it over to the Chancellor, one of the

         10  things that we've been doing since we've had control

         11  is making sure that we do reform the system and

         12  driving dollars directly into the classroom, and in

         13  addition to the Mayor adding an additional 3.5

         14  billion dollars to schools, we have been reforming

         15  the bureaucracy, downsizing the bureaucracy, and

         16  redirecting those dollars directly to the classrooms

         17  over the last four and a half to five years.

         18                 As I indicated in my testimony, we

         19  set a target of 200 million for the second term and

         20  we're well on our way of meeting that goal. And part

         21  of that goal is making sure we look at where we can

         22  extract savings and having those savings go to our

         23  schools so that way our schools have more teachers,

         24  have more services, and that we're not rewarding bus

         25  companies.
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          2                 Chancellor.

          3                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: Sure. Let me make a

          4  couple of points. You can always start something

          5  sooner, I understand that, but what we constantly do

          6  is look at our expenditures and see how to do this

          7  better.

          8                 Now, requiring registration was

          9  complex. Has to be required by State law and long

         10  before we got there it wasn't being enforced.

         11                 Second thing, what you say to people,

         12  and the reason you bring in consultants is you say

         13  to people, look at all of these issues and tell me

         14  where you think we can do a better job. That's what

         15  anybody in my position would do. I'm always trying

         16  to improve the work we do. And third of all, when

         17  they come back and say in fact there are vast

         18  numbers of people being routed that are not using

         19  the buses, you want to address those issues as

         20  effectively as you can. I've already acknowledged

         21  that we could have done a much better job on this,

         22  but that being said, it seems to me that the right

         23  thing for the City to continue to do is to look how

         24  to effectively ensure that we get it done.

         25                 And again, I want to underscore a
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          2  point that the Deputy Mayor said because I think

          3  it's important. Last year, in the middle of the

          4  winter, second semester, we put in place a whole new

          5  set of bus rides throughout the City as a result of

          6  37 and a half minutes extended day. And, again, it

          7  wasn't flawless, there were some dislocations. On

          8  any given day there are some dislocations, but the

          9  fact of the matter is, as a result of that a whole

         10  bunch of kids got more service, more education, and

         11  that was to the good, and as a result of this, more

         12  kids will get more dollars at their schools. That's

         13  to the good.

         14                 That doesn't excuse the things we

         15  didn't do well, but that's to the good.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, you know,

         17  we could argue back and forth. I think that I agree

         18  with you, and I'm almost 100 percent sure that every

         19  member of this City Council, and you have almost

         20  approximately half of the City Council in this

         21  hearing room this afternoon, would agree that saving

         22  money is a laudable goal, but not at the risk of the

         23  safety and security of our children.

         24                 But let me ask this question: prior

         25  to the most recent contract extension for the school
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          2  bus operators, the Department of Education hired the

          3  firm of Acenture (phonetic) to help the Department

          4  of Education avoid significant cost increases to

          5  pupil transportation to the end of the proposed new

          6  contracts in Fiscal Year 2011 while improving

          7  services. Acenture proposed a plan to optimize

          8  utilization of buses and identified 135 morning bus

          9  routes and 137 afternoon bus routes that were high

         10  priority candidates for optimization with ridership

         11  of less than 30 students in a trip length of less

         12  than 45 minutes.

         13                 Acenture also recognized that it

         14  would be most appropriate to optimize the routes

         15  when the bus contracts are rebid. And I'm sure that

         16  you're aware of this particular report here, because

         17  this is the one that we looked through and where it

         18  said that the most appropriate time would be when

         19  contracts are rebid.

         20                 Did the Department of Education pay

         21  A&M to figure out what bus routes to cut after it

         22  had already paid Acenture to figure out what bus

         23  routes to cut, just a few years ago, were any of the

         24  routes cut in January, the same routes as those

         25  listed in this report here now?
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          2                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: I'd have to

          3  refresh my recollection on what those reports were,

          4  what the routes were in that report. But what we did

          5  this year, A&M did not recommend route cutting,

          6  which routes to cut. They did a very thorough study

          7  of the system, they did some comparison analysis for

          8  us with other systems, and they made some

          9  recommendations to us, which for those that we

         10  accepted and implemented then we did the route

         11  adjustments and the route cutting and we did that

         12  based on what the data were from the registration

         13  process.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: My question was,

         15  did you pay A&M to figure out what bus routes to

         16  cut, and you said, no, they did not?

         17                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Correct.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, let me go

         19  back. You want, meaning the Department of Education,

         20  the Mayor, wants everyone to go along with this

         21  plan, that's what he wants. And I said earlier in

         22  the hearing on the Mayor's restructuring, that we,

         23  and the members of the City Council, we want

         24  transparency, so we will be able to follow his road

         25  map to see whether or not we agree or disagree. But
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          2  quite, frankly, we don't have a road map. In fact, I

          3  have asked, and I'm going to ask you again now, will

          4  you share the report that A&M gave to you, Joel

          5  Klein, or gave to Joel Klein, who is with the

          6  Foundation for Education, whatever it's called, it

          7  doesn't matter, will you share the report that they

          8  gave to you, in order to advise you on what cuts to

          9  make?

         10                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: I believe

         11  your requests were responded to by the counsel, and

         12  on the basis these are interagency communications

         13  they are not being released. And I think you can

         14  really understand that, you want people to be free

         15  to make recommendations. That's what they did, and

         16  the Chancellor and the senior leadership at the

         17  Department made the decisions about what

         18  recommendations to go forward with.

         19                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: And I would

         20  just draw a link, Councilman, to I imagine similar

         21  consultants that maybe even the City Council or

         22  others may have retained, as far as they come up

         23  with recommendations per se, but then it's up to

         24  staff to decide what those recommendations will be

         25  to be implemented, and as part of a staff to
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          2  consultant relationship, and I would draw that link

          3  to A&M with the Department of Education.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, let me

          5  just ask, sometimes if you don't get the answer you

          6  want, you get it another way.

          7                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Sure.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So let me ask it

          9  another way. Did A&M duplicate any of the work that

         10  was put out by Acenture?

         11                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: I do not

         12  believe so. As I say, I'd have to refresh my

         13  recollection of that report, but I believe that

         14  report was done several years ago.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes, it was.

         16                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: And what we

         17  did in this situation was we recognized the legal

         18  requirement of having a registration program. This

         19  is truly a new initiative which was driven by two

         20  things: one, the fact that there is this legal

         21  requirement to register our students; and secondly,

         22  that we were looking at the costs that were growing

         23  dramatically. And, so, we felt we had an obligation

         24  to also see if we couldn't redirect some of that

         25  money to the classroom.
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          2                 Keep in mind, this is a registration

          3  program which to the best of my knowledge has not

          4  been discussed by any --

          5                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Let me try.

          6  When you're not satisfied and I'm not satisfied that

          7  we're giving you the answer that you need to hear,

          8  or just giving you a clear answer, and I think it's

          9  important for us to try to make sure we maintain

         10  that line of communication, even if we disagree

         11  about the answer and a question. With A&M itself,

         12  part of A&M's charge is not just to look at bus

         13  issues, they're looking at a whole host of issues to

         14  make recommendations, the Department of Education

         15  staff that will, in essence, cause, benefit the

         16  classrooms and have savings from the bureaucracy, as

         17  far as how we redirect those dollars to the

         18  classroom. So, whether it's dealing with the central

         19  regional offices, whether it's dealing with bus

         20  transportation, whether it's dealing with custodial

         21  services, a number of different areas on how we pull

         22  dollars away from those services and direct it

         23  directly to classrooms. That's part of the charge of

         24  A&M to the staff at DOE, and DOE then makes a

         25  decision, the staff at DOE makes a decision on
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          2  what's realistic, what's not realistic, what can be

          3  implemented, what can't be implicated, how can we

          4  improve on the implementation, that's part of the

          5  discussion today, where we did not do well, how we

          6  improve it moving forward to make sure that the

          7  savings we talked about are not just savings, but

          8  that the students benefit and parents benefit in

          9  having efficient bus service as well.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, Deputy

         11  Mayor, I think in this particular matter we're going

         12  to agree to disagree and we will pursue it with all

         13  vigor, in order to try to get the report, and/or

         14  reports that Alvarez and Marsal has made and given

         15  to any officials at the Department of Education.

         16  Because let me just say that with respects to

         17  Alvarez and Marsal, the consultant, I don't have a

         18  management's degree, but I know how to go on a

         19  computer and google Alvarez and Marsal. If you do

         20  that, and if you scroll through the pages and pages

         21  of references to A&M, what it clearly says is A&M

         22  had a contract in St. Louis, and the situation there

         23  was a disaster overall. And, so, with respects to

         24  questioning whether or not A&M has made appropriate

         25  recommendations to you, and the Chancellor, in order
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          2  to implement certain things, people are questioning

          3  the competency of either A&M and/or the competency

          4  of people at the Department of Education or in the

          5  Mayor's Office that are making decisions to go

          6  forward with plans that clearly, clearly has shaken

          7  the competence, shaken the competence of people in

          8  New York City in moving forward with your

          9  educational plans. But you don't have to respond to

         10  that, but I think it's important to know that our

         11  responsibility here at the City Council is to have

         12  oversight, knowing that the Mayor has total control

         13  of the system that was given to him by the State

         14  Legislature, we have oversight and as long as we can

         15  breathe, we're going to ensure that not only in DOE,

         16  but in every agency and Department that we do

         17  oversight to try to keep you within checks and

         18  balances and to help you to refocus about what

         19  you're doing and how you're doing it.

         20                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: And Councilman,

         21  you know, we have been, we will continue to be here

         22  when you call for us to be here.

         23                 One of the things we take very

         24  seriously is in the respect of your role of

         25  oversight and testing us, and has you indicated,
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          2  there are times we will agree and sometimes we don't

          3  agree, but at the same time, we have been, we

          4  continue to be held accountable based on our

          5  decisions, and sometimes decisions are tough

          6  decisions, and that's why we are here to make those

          7  decisions, decisions that have been ignored for a

          8  number of years on the part of whomever may be in

          9  office, and our goal is to make sure that we provide

         10  you the appropriate answers but also not delay on

         11  decisions, not obfuscate on decisions and not to

         12  really put decisions off to the next term. And part

         13  of our challenge has always been to make sure that

         14  we try to factor in the timeliness of those

         15  decisions. When it was time to talk about social

         16  promotion, people wanted us to delay it a year, we

         17  said no. When it was time for the extended time and

         18  pushing extended time for a half a year until

         19  September, we said no because we felt it was

         20  important. The same with this particular situation.

         21  We wanted to enact the savings as quickly as

         22  possible, but at the same time, we've said it since

         23  almost the beginning, that we could have done a lot

         24  better. We did not want to inconvenience parents, we

         25  did have forewarnings from both Council members and
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          2  others about factoring some of the issues that we

          3  had to take consideration, and we understood that.

          4  But at the same time, we take this very seriously,

          5  and we will always be here, Councilman, before your

          6  Committee, as you request.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you. Let

          8  me go back to the Acenture report. Acenture

          9  presented a comprehensive cost savings strategy to

         10  the Department of Education in this report; what did

         11  the Department of Education do with the Acenture

         12  strategy that was outlined in the report?

         13                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Council

         14  Member, I have to refresh my recollection on this

         15  report. As far as I know, they didn't make any

         16  recommendations with regard to route changes, but I

         17  don't have the report in front of me and I'd have to

         18  look at it again.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Well, I'll

         20  be glad to share this with you now, so you can go

         21  through it and maybe you can answer the question a

         22  little later during the hearing, if you like.

         23                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: I'd rather

         24  take the time to look at it and come back with a

         25  comprehensive response for you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, because

          3  they did look at the bus routes and what have you,

          4  and they made recommendations to changes, and I'm

          5  just curious as to what DOE did with the strategy

          6  and the recommendations that have been put forward

          7  by them?

          8                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Perfectly

          9  understandable.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         11                 You told us repeatedly that Alvarez &

         12  Marsal is a uniquely qualified firm that has an

         13  excellent track record, and that's why you were

         14  justified in paying them approximately $15 million

         15  under a no-bid contract. Now that I'm looking at

         16  this bus route disaster, and I'm looking at the

         17  press reports from their performance on bus changes

         18  in St. Louis, and I'm thinking to myself, they made

         19  a disaster of the bus situation in St. Louis, a City

         20  that is a lot smaller than New York City, and has a

         21  lot fewer students, and that there is no way I would

         22  either hire them to do this work in New York City,

         23  in my opinion. In light of all of this, what

         24  justifies continuing the contract you have with

         25  them? In my opinion, what they have done here with
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          2  the bus routes justifies terminating their contract.

          3                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: Let me answer this.

          4  First of all, I think you have a selective view of

          5  what happened in St. Louis. If you notice in today's

          6  paper, the Mayor of St. Louis at the time said, and

          7  it's well documented, they saved that City school

          8  district from bankruptcy, and I have looked

          9  carefully at that situation. Now you have people

         10  there several years later who are looking back with

         11  pointing fingers.

         12                 Second of all, what Alvarez & Marsal

         13  has done for us, for example, is to help us

         14  restructure into 322 empowerment schools, saved $89

         15  million from the bureaucracy and you, Mr. Chairman,

         16  and I have talked a lot about lower class size,

         17  about driving money to the schools, that was work

         18  that Alvarez & Marsal did. Finally, let me be clear

         19  about something, Alvarez and Marsal is a consultant,

         20  the decisions that are made are decisions of the

         21  Department and I stand here saying I am responsible

         22  and fully accountable for them. I'm not looking to

         23  lay off decisions on consultants. I'm the Chancellor

         24  and I'm prepared to take responsibility and to be

         25  held accountable for them. I find that the work that
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          2  Alvarez has done, in terms of restructuring our

          3  Department, and in terms of helping us identify cost

          4  savings, has been effective and efficient, and I

          5  think everybody in this City knows that we have

          6  taken more money out of the bureaucracy so that

          7  there are more teachers in our schools, more

          8  guidance counselors in our schools, more books in

          9  our schools, and I want to be held accountable for

         10  those efforts as well.

         11                 I think the consultative process has

         12  been very helpful because people do not go through

         13  major restructuring, and what I've said here at the

         14  last hearing and I'll repeat again today, is unless

         15  and until we're ready to restructure education in

         16  the United States, we're going to continue to get

         17  the same results we have gotten which has not been

         18  right by our kids.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well,

         20  Chancellor, you know, and I'm glad that I'm hearing

         21  a little emotion in your voice, because clearly this

         22  is an emotional subject, and I truly believe that

         23  your heart and everyone, Dennis Walcott and Kathleen

         24  Grimm, I believe that your hearts are in the right

         25  place with respect to this particular matter, but
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          2  clearly, as I said to you, the confidence of people

          3  have been shaken by the decisions that have been

          4  made. Now, you talk about $89 million, we have

          5  repeatedly asked, show us, we're from Missouri, show

          6  us where you saved us $89 million, and you responded

          7  by giving us generalities. We asked for it in units

          8  of appropriation, and we don't have it as of now.

          9  People can easily say that they have saved money,

         10  but until you show us where you have saved money,

         11  all it is is general statements that you saved

         12  money. And I understand that we have a huge budget

         13  of approximately $15 - to $16 billion and $89

         14  million in the scheme of that may not sound like a

         15  lot, but it is a lot of money, but we asked for it

         16  in units of appropriation, and still we do not have

         17  that type of response.

         18                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Councilman,

         19  it's my understanding we sent that information to

         20  you in January, and would be prepared to produce it

         21  again. We try to respond when you make a request,

         22  and so our staff is indicating that that information

         23  was sent to you, and we are not shy about sending it

         24  again.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I think if you

                                                            52

          1  EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEES

          2  ask your staff right now, and if they sent it in

          3  units of appropriation, they would tell you we have

          4  not. So, I'm waiting for an answer, maybe you can

          5  start with them now.

          6                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Well, I think

          7  one of the things, because Joel and I testified

          8  before you, what, probably two to three weeks ago,

          9  and I don't remember that specific request being

         10  made, but I know staff has been talking to each

         11  other and there is some discrepancy as far as what

         12  we sent, and what you were looking for, and we'll be

         13  glad to verify that, but based on our staff's

         14  understanding of the request, they sent you that

         15  information, and we'll be glad to break it down in

         16  whatever way you feel is appropriate.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Well, we

         18  will clearly follow-up on that and look at your

         19  response, and believe me, I will communicate with

         20  you. If you can come back and give us the

         21  information in readable budget codes and stuff like

         22  that, so we can read it to determine actually where

         23  the savings are, we would appreciate that.

         24                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Now, you're

         25  chastising us about a number of things, but you want
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          2  readable budget codes as well?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Absolutely.

          4                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Okay, fine.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Without a doubt.

          6                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Fine.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Because units of

          8  appropriations are where you can actually see where

          9  money is spent. When you say that we save $89

         10  million and Alvarez and Marsal is going to save us X

         11  amount of dollars, that's all talk.

         12                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: The only reason

         13  I say that, Councilman --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And people are

         15  tired of talk. People want action.

         16                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: No, no, the

         17  only reason why I say readable budget codes, because

         18  it's an oxymoron basically. That's what I think it's

         19  maybe important for our two staffs to get together

         20  to define what readable budget codes actually means.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         22                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Because there

         23  may be some discrepancy on what's a readable budget

         24  code. That's all I'm saying, Councilman. So, we can

         25  break it down how ever you feel is appropriate.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you. We

          3  appreciate that.

          4                 The initial projections for cost

          5  savings were revised down twice; is that correct,

          6  for Alvarez? How much money are we going to save

          7  with this bus situation, from 20 million to 13

          8  million; is that correct?

          9                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: The 20

         10  million was a projection, and we said I think very

         11  clearly at the time it was simply a projection. We

         12  had not yet gone through the process. Now that we

         13  have gone through the process, the annualized number

         14  is 12 million, and that number for this year,

         15  because we have approximately a half year period, is

         16  5.6, based on our numbers on the 29th.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, do you

         18  think really, after cleaning up all of this mess

         19  that has occurred, as far as hiring these

         20  consultants, other consultants to handle the phone

         21  calls of all of the thousands of parents that have

         22  been calling in, do you really expect to save any

         23  money this year?

         24                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: We expect to

         25  save significant money this year that can be driven
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          2  into the classrooms, yes.

          3                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: And just on

          4  your point about the hiring of individuals, any time

          5  similar to what we did last year, and also the start

          6  of the school year, we tried to make sure through

          7  the hot line we have additional staff in place to

          8  respond to calls. On average, say normal beginning

          9  of a school year, we average 20,000 calls coming in

         10  the first day of school because of the normal

         11  concerns and questions that people may have around

         12  bus transportation, so the hot line handles 20,000.

         13  That's in September. We started out, and I'll defer

         14  to Kathleen, but we started out with this change

         15  roughly at 13,000. So, even with the changes, we

         16  were lower than the normal start of school year

         17  figures, and then as we move into the year, that

         18  number goes down and these individuals, a lot of

         19  them are handicapped individuals that we hire and

         20  they're trained and then they're part-time and

         21  they're there for that specific purpose. So, again,

         22  we try to staff up in response, and we factor that

         23  in in our planning itself. So, yes, we do expect to

         24  save a significant amount of money for the remainder

         25  of the school year, or money for the school year,
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          2  and then annualizing that out starting in September.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And what about

          4  when you take into account any damages that you may

          5  have to pay out to the bus companies. As you know,

          6  they are requesting damages in the Civil Court under

          7  breach of contract claim, and if they are awarded

          8  damages, they would be able to recover for the whole

          9  contract term, which expires til 2010. This sounds

         10  like a lot of money to me. And it sounds like we may

         11  actually end up losing money, as a result of these

         12  changes.

         13                 Can you shed any light on this

         14  matter?

         15                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: Well, it matters in

         16  litigation, Mr. Chairman, so we'll leave it right

         17  there. But let me just say let's think about this

         18  for a second, right? We had the bus companies

         19  telling us they were transporting 72,000 kids.

         20  That's what they said in school. We were routing for

         21  94,000 kids. So, right there there is a big problem.

         22                 And second of all, it just seems to

         23  me if you look at the numbers the Deputy Mayor gave

         24  you, and, you know, you've been very active in the

         25  Fiscal Equity lawsuit, and you repeat time and again
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          2  and I agree with you, we want to drive the money to

          3  our kids and our classrooms. I think we share that

          4  goal.

          5                 Now what we know for sure is that the

          6  bus companies are certainly not carrying remotely a

          7  full load of kids, that they get paid by the route

          8  and they don't have an incentive to do this

          9  efficiently, and it wasn't surprising that when we

         10  went through a registration process and decided to

         11  try to be as efficient as we could, that they would

         12  push back.

         13                 I would hope that you would support

         14  us in the notion that we don't want to pay for kids

         15  who are not riding. I don't think that's a good

         16  idea, Mr. Chairman, and I don't think you think

         17  that's a good idea.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, clearly

         19  the notion of trying to save money, but quite

         20  frankly, once you've signed a contract that goes to

         21  2010, I don't know how you're going to get out of

         22  that contract, when you, when I say "you," meaning

         23  the City of New York, Department of Education,

         24  decided that it was in the best interest of our

         25  children to extend, not even to renew or to
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          2  competitively bid out, but to extend the contract

          3  that has been extended over and over and over again

          4  for 25 years, to extend that new contract.

          5                 When I remember, quite frankly, I

          6  said why don't we competitively bid out even a small

          7  portion of it to see how it would work, and you said

          8  to me, when I say you, the Department of Education

          9  said that it would not be in the best interest of

         10  the City of New York to do that. But now I'm hearing

         11  a different tune. So, it goes to question the

         12  judgment, as far as extending that contract, even

         13  going back about two years ago. But anyway, you

         14  know, time will tell, and the litigation will come

         15  out one way or the other.

         16                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: If I can

         17  just comment on that? As to the Acenture Report,

         18  while I do not recall them making any

         19  recommendations to cut bus routes, and we'll have to

         20  follow-up on that later, they were engaged to

         21  address the issue of whether we should issue an RFP

         22  or perhaps pursue contract extensions. And at that

         23  time they did extensive research and we concluded

         24  that to go out on an RFP would have greatly

         25  increased costs far beyond anything we've seen. And
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          2  you will recall that we not only briefed the Council

          3  on that, we also briefed the State Education

          4  Department, they, too, agreed with our conclusion,

          5  we obviously briefed the State Legislature,

          6  Legislators, who also agreed with that conclusion

          7  and actually passed a law allowing us to extend

          8  those contracts and add service enhancements at the

          9  same time.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, time will

         11  tell. Clearly, time will tell whether or not the

         12  decisions that you made back then were the right

         13  decisions, but clearly, in my opinion, the decision

         14  that you made now to move forward in January was not

         15  the right decision.

         16                 But let me turn that over to my

         17  colleague, Co-Chair John Liu, the Chair of the

         18  Transportation Committee.

         19                 Council Member Liu.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Chairman

         21  Jackson. I'm going to keep my questions brief. We

         22  are then going to take questions from Council

         23  members. We're asking each member to limit their

         24  questions to one single question, and after we go

         25  through all of the members, we'll go back for a
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          2  second round of questions, if you'd like to ask

          3  additional questions.

          4                 Deputy Chancellor, I just want to

          5  note for the record that this Acenture Report that

          6  was studied, and report that was done, was just

          7  dated about two and a half years before. So, it had

          8  not been a long period of time that had elapsed, but

          9  in fact it was a relatively short period of time,

         10  two and a half years.

         11                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Sorry. I

         12  recall the report, and I recall that the report

         13  primarily focused on helping us evaluate whether to

         14  do a new RFP for new bus contracts or whether to

         15  pursue the route we did, which was contract

         16  extension. I have no recollection of them making any

         17  recommendations for cutting routes, and that is what

         18  I will go back and refresh my recollection on. To

         19  the best of my knowledge, they didn't make those

         20  kinds of recommendations.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: That's fine. But

         22  given the weight and topic of today's hearing, over

         23  the last two weeks I think it's reasonable to have

         24  expected that top levels of the Department of

         25  Education review at least what's happened over the
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          2  last couple of years, leading us to today's hearing.

          3                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: I could not

          4  agree with you more. I do not think that this report

          5  had anything to do with this kind of initiative.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay, we believe

          7  totally otherwise.

          8                 Anyway, you know, there's a lot of

          9  emphasis on cost savings redirecting the dollars to

         10  the classroom. It sounds great. Nobody disagrees

         11  with that. Now, a lot of the cost savings actually

         12  is not achieved only by cutting routes from the kids

         13  that either weren't using them or were not eligible.

         14  A lot of the complaints that we're getting or at

         15  least I'm getting in my area are from parents who

         16  have been told that they are not eligible, and in

         17  fact they believe they are eligible, or at least

         18  should be eligible. And, so, how much of this cost

         19  savings is really being generated by taking the bus,

         20  the school bus service away from the families that

         21  actually need it?

         22                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: No savings

         23  should be generated by taking bus service away from

         24  a child who is eligible. That child should have a

         25  bus, and that parent should call.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So, how many people

          3  were turned away from the bus service? Regardless,

          4  before we get to the eligibility question, because

          5  this is a system where for years families have been

          6  relying on the bus service, whether you like it or

          7  not, whether they've been eligible or not, they've

          8  been relying on the bus service. In some cases to

          9  transfer more than one child per day. And, so, all

         10  of a sudden you decide that, and you may very well

         11  be technically correct, that they're not eligible

         12  for this bus service, but the fact is they've been

         13  relying on this. And so how many people are affected

         14  in this manner? For how many people have the bus

         15  service been taken away where for years they have

         16  been depending on the bus service?

         17                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: I don't have

         18  that number.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: How could you not?

         20                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: What I said

         21  in my opening statement was that the one thing we

         22  did not understand as we undertook this initiative,

         23  was the number of children who were riding, who did

         24  not meet the eligibility requirement. Now, if those

         25  --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: That means that it

          3  could very well be that a substantial portion of

          4  this cost savings is generated by taking the service

          5  away from the families who actually feel that they

          6  need the service?

          7                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Councilman,

          8  with all due respect, we're here entertaining your

          9  questions, but we will not stand for Kathleen Grimm

         10  to be yelled at. We are here in dialogue with you.

         11  I, as Deputy Mayor, will not tolerate any of our

         12  staff being yelled at. We are here respectfully

         13  responding to your questions. If we don't know the

         14  answer to those questions, we will get back to you.

         15  But we have been very respectful in responding to

         16  any of the questions that you raise, and we will

         17  continue to be that way. At the same time, I will

         18  not allow the Deputy Chancellor to be yelled at in

         19  any way, shape or form.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And let me state

         21  very clearly that it's certainly not my intention to

         22  take it out personally on Kathleen Grimm. I think

         23  she is an outstanding person who has done a great

         24  deal of work for the Department of Education.

         25                 If your suggestion is simply to say
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          2  that we should not be passionate in representing the

          3  needs of our constituents, and you take that simply

          4  as yelling at your staff, then I will make it very

          5  clear, that is not our intent.

          6                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: If you'd like me to

          8  lower my voice, I'll be happy to. Do you want me to

          9  lower my voice?

         10                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: I love passion,

         11  but at the same time, we also love respect as well.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay, because I

         13  don't think I've directed any attacks against

         14  Kathleen Grimm. I have simply asked you, how many

         15  kids have we taken this school bus service away from

         16  who have been relying on this for years? Technically

         17  eligible or not.

         18                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: The

         19  difficulty is we did not know who, what children

         20  were riding our buses before. And, so, when we

         21  implemented the registration program, the only

         22  children that registered with the system that got

         23  included into the system were those who met the

         24  eligibility requirements.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So, therefore, these
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          2  so-called cost savings, it's not -- you have no way

          3  of identifying whether it's truly fat and waste, or

          4  if it's substantially coming from families who are

          5  no longer given this bus service.

          6                 Do you have any idea how?

          7                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: Yes, we do. You

          8  asked me if I have an idea, give me an opportunity

          9  to explain my idea.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay, sure.

         11                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: Here is what we

         12  know. We know that there were thousands and

         13  thousands of people who preferred a MetroCard over

         14  the bus. We know that there were over 5,000 people

         15  who were going to school on their own who were being

         16  routed for a bus, and there were several thousand

         17  people who were ineligible. We have given variances

         18  to ineligible people, but you've got to understand

         19  something that's a matter of fairness, we get calls

         20  all the time by people who want yellow bus service,

         21  and you can't have a rule that says basically some

         22  ineligible people will get it and others don't.

         23  That's not right. And so while it's perfectly

         24  reasonable in the middle of the year to make

         25  accommodations and we've done that. I believe we've
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          2  done that consistently, on the other hand, I think

          3  that we should all be honest, that if we have rules

          4  -- for example, if you live more than the miles

          5  away from the school, then any kid who says, well,

          6  how come you made an exception for that one, how

          7  about this one? And, so, while we have made

          8  variances during the year, we need to have a

          9  consistent set of eligibility criteria. We need to

         10  be prepared to enforce it. Otherwise it can be

         11  unfair to some people.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So give me an idea

         13  then. Say the cost savings are $12 million a year,

         14  how much of that is due to the fact that families

         15  have had their school bus service taken away? Not

         16  just because you've eliminated empty school bus

         17  routes, because I've got to tell you, Mr. Chancellor

         18  -- I'm sorry -- I have to tell you, Mr. Chancellor,

         19  that there are a lot of angry parents out there.

         20  And, you know, I have to face them all the time, my

         21  colleagues have to face them all the time.

         22                 I have a first grader in school, I

         23  was denied bus service, school bus service, which is

         24  fine. I can live with that. But the fact is, a lot

         25  of people out there, they rely on the bus service,
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          2  they've been getting it for years, and now they're

          3  being told that they can't do it. And in some cases

          4  they're being told less than a week before the

          5  changeover.

          6                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: What I've said to

          7  those people --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And so, just tell

          9  me, give me an idea as you offered, how much --

         10  we're not really sure about the exact dollar amount

         11  of the cost savings, so, why don't you give me a

         12  rough percentage. You know, the nearest ten percent,

         13  or even the nearest 25 percent. How much of that

         14  savings is really generated, not because we're

         15  cutting waste but because we're taking the bus

         16  service away from the parents that have been relying

         17  on it for so many years?

         18                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: I don't think the

         19  savings are a product of eligibility. The savings

         20  are a product of the fact that the number of kids

         21  riding on the average bus is somewhere between about

         22  35 and 40, and in that range you know that you have

         23  lots of empty bus seats, and we have to consolidate

         24  it.

         25                 Now, when that happens, that's when
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          2  you get the savings. There is a second set of

          3  factors. This is not by eliminating the people, but

          4  by eliminating, fundamentally trying to make the

          5  system more efficient.

          6                 So, I think what we have done then,

          7  where we can give variances, we give variances. And

          8  I've told parents, again, I think if you see the

          9  overwhelming majority of parents have had their

         10  problems solved, and I'm sorry for any

         11  inconvenience. I couldn't be clearer about that.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right. So, how

         13  many, for how many kids have we taken away the

         14  school bus service then?

         15                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: How many kids are

         16  taking --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: How many kids used

         18  to be on the school buses who now no longer are

         19  being picked up?

         20                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: I don't think we

         21  know that answer. But there are two components. Some

         22  fail to register, and we don't know those kids. We

         23  did everything possible to try to register them.

         24  Under State law they're required to be registered,

         25  and we don't know the exact number of those. One
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          2  second, Dennis is looking at --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: We're never looking

          4  for exact numbers here. It's like to the nearest

          5  thousand, or the nearest 5,000.

          6                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: We have the

          7  number of eligible children, public school children,

          8  who did not respond, and that is 14,400.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay. So, does that

         10  mean everybody who did respond was given the bus

         11  service?

         12                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: They were

         13  eligible.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Can't you tell me?

         15  Of the ones that did respond, how many people were

         16  denied?

         17                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:

         18  Thirteen-thousand three-hundred.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thirteen-thousand --

         20                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Hold on.

         21  Registered, and were ineligible for bus service and

         22  were given MetroCard service.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So, there you have

         24  it.

         25                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: The number
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          2  of people I don't have are the number of people

          3  ineligible for transportation. If they applied, they

          4  didn't register on the eligibility scale so they

          5  never fell into the registration --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I know, but it

          7  sounds to me roughly half of the cost savings is

          8  generated by the people who are no longer getting

          9  their bus service. Fourteen thousand did not

         10  register, and 13,000 were denied. That's about half.

         11  So, there's the answer to the question, about half

         12  of the cost savings is generated by taking that

         13  service away from families that have been getting it

         14  for a long time.

         15                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: If I can

         16  just be clear on this, a little over 14,000 people

         17  did not respond. We don't know if they were riding

         18  or not before. They may have their own way to

         19  school. They may be walking, I don't know.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Whether they were

         21  riding or not, the service was there for them. That

         22  was already part of the cost.

         23                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Why should

         24  we pay for --

         25                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: No, you're
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          2  making an assumption that the service was there for

          3  them. Quite frankly, the service may not have been

          4  there for them. Those individuals, the 14,000 that

          5  Kathleen was talking about, just did not respond.

          6  So, you can't make the assumption that the service

          7  would have been there for them. That's not a fair

          8  assumption.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: The whole premise

         10  behind your project here was because you were paying

         11  for that service. So, now the cost savings is,

         12  you're comparing the current, what you will be

         13  paying, you know, say a couple of months from now

         14  when things settle down, and what you were paying

         15  before, whether or not that service was there. So,

         16  you keep claiming that there was this huge cost

         17  savings, and I'm simply asking, well, how much of

         18  that cost savings really due to fat and waste and

         19  how much is it actually due to the fact that

         20  families have been denied the bus service, and it

         21  seems to me that it's a significant amount. Probably

         22  around half of the cost savings.

         23                 And I want to move on to the others,

         24  and, again, Kathleen, I apologize, if I got a little

         25  too uppity there. But the intent was not to get
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          2  uppity, the intent is to say that as much as we

          3  support the Department of Education's efforts to cut

          4  bureaucracy and waste, and redirect dollars to the

          5  schools, here we're not just talking about cutting

          6  waste. In fact, we're not really sure, are we, that

          7  the money is actually being saved because the waste

          8  is being cut. And not only that, the dollars that

          9  are redirected, and this, you know, I do have to

         10  agree with what Chairman Jackson said, dollars are

         11  not just being redirected to the classroom, other

         12  dollars are being directed to these high-priced

         13  consultants and the bean counters. You know, I'd be

         14  interested in knowing if any of these people have

         15  actually ridden on a school bus and know what these

         16  kids have to go through.

         17                 So, let me --

         18                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Let me just

         19  say one thing. Some of these numbers are difficult

         20  for the very fact we did not know who was riding the

         21  buses before.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: See, I don't think

         23  that's relevant to the cost savings issue. That's

         24  the whole point. Because you keep claiming, not you

         25  personally, Kathleen, the Department of Education
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          2  keeps claiming they're paying this much, under this

          3  new scheme we'll be paying only this much, and this

          4  much money will be saved and redirected to the

          5  schools.

          6                 Of course, we want money redirected

          7  at schools, but the fact is, based on what all three

          8  of you have said, not all of this difference is due

          9  to waste. In fact, a substantial amount of that is

         10  due to taking service away from families that have

         11  been used to and rely upon school bus service. And

         12  to simply take it away and in many cases not given

         13  the proper notification, or even allowing the

         14  parents to appeal that decision, that is very

         15  cold-hearted. Forget the puns about January 29th,

         16  that's just cold-hearted. And it's not something

         17  that we should -- I think we have to understand that

         18  school bus transportation, it's not a luxury that we

         19  can just eliminate. It is not part of the wasteful

         20  bureaucracy. It is fundamental to getting the kids

         21  to and from school safely and on time so that they

         22  can learn in schools.

         23                 I'm finished here, but please respond

         24  in any way. And I'd love for you to tell me that all

         25  of that cost savings is really a waste, and that
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          2  none of it is really an essential service that's

          3  been taken away from the families.

          4                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: This may not be

          5  the specific answer to your question, but every

          6  eligible student will be able to get bus service.

          7  Part of the challenge and part of the goal is to

          8  make sure that we have every eligible student

          9  registered for bus service. We cannot provide bus

         10  service for ineligible students. And what I've heard

         11  you say is that, even though we haven't been able to

         12  give you to your satisfaction the clear numbers,

         13  ineligible students should not be on buses, whether

         14  they were riding buses in the past or not, part of

         15  our challenge and part of the tough decisions is

         16  making sure that we have a bus system that is for

         17  those who are deemed eligible, who fit within the

         18  requirements set by Department of Education, and as

         19  you know, which is even more liberal than the

         20  requirement set by the State. And part of the fact

         21  and the challenge of that is also working with not

         22  just our public school system, but also with our non

         23  publics in trying to make sure that the requirement

         24  of providing buses for them is also meeting that

         25  particular criteria as well.

                                                            75

          1  EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEES

          2                 And, so, just because a student who

          3  may have been ineligible before is riding a bus,

          4  doesn't guarantee in perpetuity that that student

          5  should be riding a bus if he or she or they are

          6  ineligible into the future. We just can't do that.

          7  It's not part of the goal of how we save the

          8  dollars.

          9                 Now, to go into your point about

         10  waste and fat, the waste and fat is part of the

         11  challenge of making sure we have a system that is

         12  more streamlined and making sure those dollars are

         13  also being redirected, the combination factor, and

         14  as I indicated in my testimony, sir, that part of

         15  the goal is, this is not a one-step process, it is a

         16  multi-step process, and part of the multi-step

         17  process is improving it every year so we can return

         18  more dollars to the classroom.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And Deputy Mayor, I

         20  just have to say that based on that response I think

         21  I'm really beginning to see a clearer picture of

         22  exactly what went awry here. And what went awry here

         23  seems to be that you started your consultants, you

         24  know, whether they're qualified or not your charge

         25  to the consultants was a start from a starting point
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          2  of what legal eligibility should be right now, as

          3  opposed to what families are actually getting from

          4  the school bus service. And I think there is a

          5  serious gap that should have been addressed before

          6  the Department of Education approached it in what I

          7  think is a very techocratic way. To just simply say,

          8  well, look, the eligibility is this, we want the

          9  consultants to start from this point and just figure

         10  out how to optimize the bus routes.

         11                 What the charge should have been to

         12  the consultants was should have been that we know,

         13  or if we don't know figure out where families are

         14  currently, in terms of using the school bus

         15  transportation system, not starting them from where

         16  they are eligible. I think that was the wrong

         17  starting point. And that I think led us to a lot of

         18  the snafus that existed on January 29th.

         19                 Mr. Chairman, thank you very much,

         20  and I think we will proceed to the other members of

         21  the Committee.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you,

         23  Chairman Liu. And let me just say that the

         24  expressions of emotion, as I indicated, I heard it

         25  in Chancellor Klein's voice, and I was glad that I
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          2  heard that because I know that there is feelings in

          3  his questions and responses. The same thing for you

          4  as a Chair representing a constituency, not only in

          5  your district, but Citywide as the Chair of the

          6  Transportation Committee. I think that the people

          7  that we represent want to see us raise some issues

          8  and to raise our voice a little bit so that

          9  hopefully the leadership of the Department of

         10  Education will hear us loud and clear.

         11                 With that, let me just turn to our

         12  Public Advocate Betsy Gotbaum. And my colleagues and

         13  everyone, I have instituted a new process. We're

         14  going to do one question, each member, and then keep

         15  going around so that every member has an opportunity

         16  to ask a question. And I apologize if you feel

         17  that's not the right approach, but in all fairness

         18  to everyone that has been here for such a long time,

         19  and I do know that some of you may say, well, wait a

         20  minute, you asked a lot of questions, but I have

         21  been asked as the Chair of the Committee I had to

         22  ask certain questions. So, I just want your

         23  cooperation. I appreciate it very much.

         24                 Public Advocate Betsy Gotbaum.

         25                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: Thank you
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          2  very much, Mr. Chair.

          3                 Since I have been very concerned for

          4  a long time about the issuance of no-bid contracts,

          5  and in particular, Mr. Chancellor, about A&M, I know

          6  you said reasonable people disagree about what went

          7  on in St. Louis, I think everybody agrees that the

          8  bus route change in St. Louis was a disaster. And I

          9  think one would say even though you have all

         10  accepted responsibility for what happened here, and

         11  I think that's funny, because I know many of you

         12  know that you would never have a child cross

         13  Woodhaven Boulevard because you know New York City.

         14  I mean, I believe you, I just find it a little bit

         15  strange.

         16                 However, I'm very concerned about

         17  what is going to happen next. So, what is the next

         18  resource realignment that A&M is going to suggest to

         19  you and impose? And I'm nervous because one of the

         20  areas that we learned about in St. Louis was the

         21  food services, and if that's something that's going

         22  to be happening here, can we have your assurance

         23  that we will know when it's going to begin and how

         24  it's going to begin so that we don't have any

         25  fiascos similar to the ones that happened in St.
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          2  Louis?

          3                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: We have no

          4  intention to change the food service, and if that

          5  changes, you will know in ample time.

          6                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: Thank you.

          7                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: You got an answer

          8  you wanted, I suppose, right?

          9                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: I'll say.

         10  Thank you, Mr. Chancellor.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council Member

         12  Simcha Felder of Brooklyn.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you very

         14  much, Chair Jackson and Chair Liu. And I don't have

         15  a problem with your asking many questions, Chairman

         16  Jackson, because normally at hearings you don't ask

         17  anything, you let all of us ask the questions and

         18  you come up at the end.

         19                 So, I think that in my office I don't

         20  think I've gotten more calls since I'm elected in

         21  office on any issue. I could even say possibly, but

         22  then I'm afraid you may ask me for the numbers

         23  exactly, that combined on any issues, we've gotten

         24  more calls on this issue than anything else. And it

         25  has been the least, I would say at the least bit
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          2  frustrating, whether it's the example of the

          3  five-and-a-half-year-old kid that was dropped off

          4  three blocks away from home. She was dropped off

          5  three blocks away from home and refused to go to

          6  school the next day. Luckily some neighbor took her

          7  in. Or as an example, and this is one example,

          8  because the problems we got were from many schools,

          9  public schools and private schools, this form, this

         10  letter was sent home to 400 children the Friday, I

         11  should say the Thursday after you implemented it,

         12  telling the children that there is not going to be

         13  any public transportation service, because, I will

         14  quote it to you, despite the best attempts, and I

         15  want to tell you that the rank and file both at DOE

         16  and Office of Pupil Transportation have been

         17  wonderful in trying to rectify some of the problems,

         18  but that despite your best efforts, they still four

         19  days later didn't have a plan in place and told the

         20  kids that they have to come have parents pick them

         21  up, which was crazy, to say the least.

         22                 So, I met with you the Tuesday before

         23  the implementation, not with all of you but with

         24  some of you, and as a result of those meetings, it

         25  was clear, I think, and I'm not going to speak for
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          2  you, to almost everyone in the room, that there were

          3  a lot of problems at that point. And Friday when I

          4  spoke to Deputy Chancellor Grimm, I think it was

          5  still clear at that time that there were a lot of

          6  problems. So, that means to me that there was a

          7  clear knowledge before the implementation that there

          8  were a lot of problems.

          9                 So, even when a plan is perfect,

         10  there are problems. I don't understand, and the

         11  apology by the way, an apology to me wipes

         12  everything away, so this is not about blame, I just

         13  don't understand two things. I know I'm only allowed

         14  to ask one question, in order to circumvent the

         15  process I'm asking a 1 A and B: I don't understand

         16  who made this decision. It's inconceivable. I want

         17  to know who made the decision not to delay things,

         18  because that's what I was told and.

         19                 B, can any of you explain to me,

         20  despite your testimony here, how the Mayor, in his

         21  last quotes in the paper, has not said anything

         22  remotely close to what you have said in taking

         23  responsibility for the way this thing turned out.

         24                 Now, it was wonderful. I should say

         25  it was refreshing to say, we messed up and we're
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          2  trying to fix things up. How do you explain the

          3  Mayor not saying anything close to that?

          4                 I enjoy his compliments when he says,

          5  you know, Council member doesn't know what he's

          6  doing. I agree I don't know what I'm doing. But my

          7  50 colleagues know what they're doing. How do you

          8  explain that?

          9                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: Look, I think I've

         10  said this, I'll look you in the eye and say it

         11  again: I am responsible for what happened, and I'm

         12  prepared to accept that responsibility.

         13                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: And if I may,

         14  let me just see that, Councilman, so I just know

         15  what you're referring to. But also, I have said I am

         16  responsible, you asked two questions, one is about

         17  the accepting a responsibility and then who made the

         18  decision? I'm the Deputy Mayor, and I've said it

         19  publicly, I am a Deputy Mayor and I bear the full

         20  responsibility --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: No --

         22                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Hold on. You

         23  asked me the question and I'm giving you the answer.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I apologize.

         25                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Because we

                                                            83

          1  EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEES

          2  always have our running dialogue with people, but

          3  people don't see that in public, so I just wanted to

          4  make sure they understand, and it's done with love.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I'm not

          6  screaming.

          7                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: But I accept

          8  full responsibility. I'm the Deputy Mayor and I

          9  accept that.

         10                 And then with reference to the Mayor,

         11  the Mayor said we needed to do a better job, and the

         12  Mayor knows what I've said as well. The Mayor is

         13  fully understanding that his Deputy Mayor has owned

         14  up to accepting the responsibility. I've looked the

         15  parents in the eyes and gone back to Councilman Liu

         16  as well, I've talked to the parents and I hear the

         17  concerns, I hear the anger, and I try to deal with

         18  every case and we make sure we refer it. And what

         19  the Mayor was doing as well is trying to direct

         20  parents to 3-1-1 to make sure that the individual

         21  complaints that are being raised were addressed, and

         22  that's the bottom line.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: In deference

         24  to the Chair's rule, and since I'm the first member,

         25  I don't want to violate. I just want to say that I
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          2  do appreciate what you said. But at a future time we

          3  can have our staffs meet and I will furnish you

          4  reports from the newspaper with quotes from the

          5  Mayor that don't exactly match what you're saying,

          6  and I find it quite, quite disturbing.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council Member

          8  Michael McMahon is next from Staten Island.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you,

         10  Mr. Chairman. And thank you for your great

         11  leadership with Council Member Liu on this issue.

         12  I'm just a plain country lawyer from Staten Island

         13  and there's a lot being talked about here about

         14  contracts and consultants, and I know that I can

         15  only ask one question, so I just want to do a few

         16  observations and then I'm going to ask my question.

         17                 The people in my district, as Council

         18  Member Felder said, called our offices in such

         19  numbers on that Friday that we, you know, in

         20  reference to the stock market crash call it "Black

         21  Friday," because there was so many calls going on.

         22  And I spoke to Deputy Mayor Walcott, and Deputy

         23  Chancellor Grimm's office, as well, but there really

         24  was that day and a few more days with the responses

         25  that were coming from City Hall, a sense that we're
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          2  out there in the districts and Rome is burning and

          3  back at City Hall they're fiddling while this is

          4  going on. Nobody is listening to us and they're

          5  saying to us that this is not a problem.

          6                 Well, I've submitted to Chancellor

          7  Grimm, and she has acknowledged a list of all of the

          8  people that we've received, and if you combine them

          9  together with Council Member Oddo, hundreds of

         10  Staten Islanders who sent me here really to find out

         11  in the decision to have a world of perfect

         12  efficiencies and balancing the benefit of this

         13  program, have you comprehended what that burden is,

         14  and can you define for us what that burden is? Do

         15  you realize how many families no longer have bus

         16  service? Do you realize how many families had their

         17  children displaced, had a concern that their child

         18  was not going to be safe, how many working families

         19  could no longer go to work. We were at a meeting

         20  where the mother said I can't send my kid to school

         21  any more because I'm told that I can't go to that

         22  school. And she actually, working with your office,

         23  we got her a variance. But the burden of this. And

         24  you said that it's comparable to the start of school

         25  in September, or the day when 37 and a half minutes
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          2  got implemented, but the difference is, and why

          3  those comparisons don't fly, is that on those days

          4  people weren't told you no longer get bus service,

          5  or you now have to get a MetroCard for your

          6  five-year-old, they were told, oh, yeah, you got

          7  service, we've just got to rejigger this, in a day

          8  or two we'll have it straightened out.

          9                 But people are being told some news

         10  that is not acceptable to them that they no longer

         11  have bus service. Throughout your testimony, and

         12  really just at the end, Deputy Mayor Walcott touched

         13  on the non-public school situation. You didn't

         14  really touch on the fact when certainly the 37 and a

         15  half minute implementation the non-public schools

         16  weren't affected, so a third of your constituents in

         17  getting bus service were not affected by that

         18  implementation, but throughout the numbers that we

         19  have, and I would imagine the outer boroughs as

         20  well, the incidents of denial and problems, it's

         21  even higher in the non-public schools, and I think

         22  that's for a lot of reasons, but in particular, the

         23  fact that they quite often live not so much in a

         24  district, but more in a parish or they're out of

         25  district for the non-public schools, and those
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          2  numbers have not been addressed at all, yet the

          3  number of denials there is very high.

          4                 One last observation. In Staten

          5  Island there were 300 routes and you cut three

          6  routes, yet we've got hundreds and hundreds of

          7  people whose service they don't have any more. So,

          8  if you weigh the benefit to the burden, I just don't

          9  think you're hearing what the people are saying, and

         10  what Council Member Liu is asking; are you really

         11  balancing the benefit versus the burden that people

         12  are feeling? And would you still stand by the

         13  decision to do it now, understanding that nobody

         14  works harder in the City than you three to make

         15  better schools for our children. I understand that,

         16  but this is one time we think when it wasn't -- what

         17  the people were saying wasn't heard and the

         18  decisions that were made should have been

         19  reconsidered.

         20                 Now, those are my observations and my

         21  question is this: I believe that the reason that the

         22  non-public schools are even more dramatically

         23  impacted is that, although it's not in your

         24  regulations, you have a rule that says that if you

         25  don't live less than a quarter of a mile to the bus
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          2  stop, you can't have service.

          3                 Now, it's not in the State

          4  regulations, and I got your, and Council Member

          5  Brewer will be proud of me, I got it off-line, the

          6  regulations, and nowhere in there does it say that a

          7  quarter mile away from your bus stop disqualifies

          8  you from service. But throughout my package, and I

          9  imagine Jim's and others in the outer boroughs,

         10  having that internal disqualification has cost

         11  hundreds and hundreds of families their bus service,

         12  and quite frankly, I would urge you to reconsider

         13  that rule. Think about the Staten Island model, I

         14  think you said, Chancellor, you wanted to have 65

         15  children in a bus; do you know how long it would

         16  take to pick up 65 kids in Staten Island and get

         17  them in a bus? That bus would have to leave at 3:00

         18  and wouldn't get to school til 9:00, would have to

         19  leave school at 1:00 to get home by 8:00. It's just

         20  not possible. So, one size doesn't fit all.

         21  Efficiencies do not always pay for themselves and

         22  the cost of the burden. And will you please get rid

         23  of that silly rule that says that if you live more

         24  than a quarter of a mile away from your bus stop,

         25  you can't have a bus. And thank you.
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          2                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: That's one

          3  of the things we're evaluating as we take a look at

          4  this whole process.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Can you just

          6  be a little more specific? I mean, do you realize --

          7                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: No. First of

          8  all, let me say that in order to have sort of a

          9  rational planning system so that you don't wind up

         10  with a system with a bus stop on every corner, we

         11  have to have some kind of a rule. I think one of the

         12  things we've learned is it wasn't communicated

         13  clearly enough and that's certainly something we're

         14  going to address.

         15                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: And if I may,

         16  just to elaborate, I know you want a little

         17  elaboration. I mean, part of our goal is to make

         18  sure we communicate this better to the public.

         19                 Part of what you said, that I will

         20  respectfully disagree with, we do hear. We're not

         21  immune to the concerns, the anger, the complaints,

         22  the emotion, the passion that is connected to this

         23  issue, and especially for our parents and our

         24  children. I mean, that's why we're here, to better

         25  serve our parents and our children.
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          2                 And we realize that different

          3  boroughs have different issues, as far as where

          4  people live, the public transportation system of the

          5  respective boroughs, access to public

          6  transportation, and also the ability to be near a

          7  bus stop within a quarter of a mile and what that

          8  actually means. And we also are very aware of the

          9  unique relationship we have with our non-public

         10  schools as well, and some of the challenges in

         11  working with them to deal with an equal application,

         12  because we have to have equal application to the

         13  publics and the non-publics, and what that actually

         14  means.

         15                 So, we are very aware of that, and

         16  with say Staten Island or Breezy Point, College

         17  Point, White Stone, for both the publics and the

         18  non-publics, they're a very unique situation. The

         19  Queens Boulevards of the world, they're unique

         20  situations. And that's why variances are built into

         21  the process as well. So that way where they're very

         22  unique applications and they have to be reviewed,

         23  and there are situations that require a variance,

         24  then we have those variances to give out, and that's

         25  something we're very aware of and try to apply on a
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          2  case-by-case basis, and that's why I think this

          3  relationship is extremely important, as far as

          4  hearing that.

          5                 One final thing, and trying to

          6  respond to your question, you know, at one point

          7  when the Deputy Chancellor and I had one of our

          8  press conferences and I indicated in addition to

          9  3-1-1 that she contact the local officials. The only

         10  reason I said that is because we knew you were

         11  getting the calls and the concerns and we wanted to

         12  make sure that worked with you. That's why when you

         13  called me, or when Councilman Felder called, or any

         14  Council Member calls, we try to respond as quickly

         15  as possible, and dispatch the Deputy Chancellor and

         16  staff, when the Assemblyman from Staten Island

         17  contacted us, I mean we all try to respond.

         18  Sometimes you may not be satisfied with our

         19  response, and we understand that, but at the same

         20  time, we try to be very responsive to those concerns

         21  and are very aware of what's going on in all five

         22  boroughs, and it's not just based on our viewpoint

         23  from out of City Hall.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Just a quick

         25  follow-up.  On that issue of the bus stop being more
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          2  than a quarter of a mile away, it's certainly more

          3  efficient in instances where you have a borough-wide

          4  school, public or non-public, to have the parent go

          5  to meet the bus so the bus doesn't have to reroute,

          6  and not make the parent drive all the way to the

          7  school because it takes the traffic off the road.

          8                 So, it's a terrible, terrible rule

          9  and I ask you to rescind it.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Next we'll hear

         13  from Council Member Peter Vallone, Jr., of Queens.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Yes, so far

         15  we've had part A and B and three follow-ups. So, I

         16  will attempt.

         17                 Let me also thank you, Chairman

         18  Jackson, Chairman Uppity. Let me say that I agree

         19  with Simcha Felder, he does not know what he's

         20  doing. Actually, Simcha is one of our finest, and

         21  we're very proud to have him here at City Hall.

         22                 Let me thank the three of you,

         23  because you are always here, as you said, to answer

         24  the tough questions. Sometimes in our passion, our

         25  tone may not be respectful enough. Amazingly I've

                                                            93

          1  EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEES

          2  been guilty of that on occasion, but the purpose of

          3  our hearing today is not to vilify, it's to assure

          4  that if we do make any future drastic changes, that

          5  we're all on the same bus, so-to-speak.

          6                 So, again, thank you. I thank you

          7  very time I see the three of you. I have two little

          8  girls in public school, and I thank you for the job

          9  that you do educating my little angels. Nobody works

         10  harder than the three of you and we all feel that

         11  way about our kids. But I do have to say, you know,

         12  as a parent who stands outside school and speaks to

         13  other parents, and they know who I am so they make

         14  sure that I know exactly how they feel, that parents

         15  believe that this was perhaps the worst wintertime

         16  decision since Napoleon invaded Russia. And I don't

         17  disagree with them when it comes to the timing of

         18  this decision.

         19                 I happen to, as you know, support

         20  Mayoral control. Some of us up here may not say

         21  that. I agree with your goals in implementing this

         22  in what you did, and I support you almost

         23  wholeheartedly. I have only disagreed with you

         24  twice, once now with the timing of this decision,

         25  and the other time was cell phones in schools. And
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          2  unfortunately, these two happen to converge now, and

          3  no one has ever touched upon this. I would like to

          4  know that if in light of the fact that many children

          5  who once were on a school bus with their school

          6  mates will now be taking one, two, sometimes three

          7  City buses; will you be rethinking your policy of

          8  banning cell phones in schools?

          9                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: In talking

         10  about preparing for this testimony, I didn't think

         11  -- I tried to anticipate all the questions, but

         12  cell phones was definitely not part of my thought

         13  process.

         14                 No, we're not rethinking about

         15  banning our cell phone policy in schools. What we

         16  have said is that we're exploring the option of how

         17  we build lockers in to accommodate cell phones, and

         18  we are in the process of reviewing that. But we have

         19  not rethought, nor are we rethinking the banning of

         20  cell phones in schools.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Well, I'm not

         22  going to ask a question, I'm just going to end, but

         23  perhaps in light of the fact that it appears you

         24  haven't thought out it, you can now look at it in a

         25  different light. Kids should not be on City buses
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          2  without the protection of a cell phone. I've always

          3  felt that, and I feel it even stronger now. So,

          4  hopefully you will have an added urgency to the

          5  program of perhaps installing lockers, which I don't

          6  disagree with, as long as they can have them to and

          7  from the school. I don't want them to have it in the

          8  school, to and from the school.

          9                 So, I look forward to hopefully

         10  making some progress in that regard.

         11                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: I think we have the

         12  same exact goal there. First of all, I don't think

         13  there is a significant number of kids who are no

         14  longer riding the yellow bus, and there are always a

         15  significant number of kids taking public

         16  transportation.

         17                 I think it's interesting to watch on

         18  the cell phone debate, more and more cities are

         19  moving in the direction of New York, because the

         20  effect of cell phones inside a school building is

         21  really proven to be dramatically negative. I was in

         22  communities just the other day where parents were

         23  talking to me about kids using cell phones to call

         24  other kids to start fights and to cause havoc. So,

         25  the solution, it seems to me, if we can find one,
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          2  what we'd look for, and I think what you would

          3  support certainly, is some kind of locker system.

          4                 Obviously to and from school would be

          5  good, but the problem is in school there is so much

          6  misuse of cell phones.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Okay, well, I

          8  think we are very much closer to being on the same

          9  bus or page then. So, thank you, Chairs, for the

         10  hearing.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         12                 Council Member Melinda Katz of

         13  Queens. And then Council Member Helen Diane Foster

         14  of the Bronx.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you, Mr.

         16  Chairs. And thank you, the three of you for being

         17  here, as you always are.

         18                 The sense of frustration that you are

         19  hearing I believe from the Council members is not

         20  your lack of willingness to show up here. Because

         21  you are, you're always here. The sense of the

         22  frustration is that it usually is after the fact.

         23  And we always end up getting into these arguments.

         24  We always end up having to do oversight. We always

         25  end up having to ask you how you came to decisions,
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          2  who is involved in those decisions, where are the

          3  documents that those decisions derived from, what

          4  was the standards by which you made these decisions?

          5  And that is the frustration.

          6                 I don't think anybody is questioning

          7  that you are trying to do the best you can. That's

          8  not a doubt. The problem is, though, that we are

          9  elected officials, the parents are in the

         10  communities, the elected officials are elected to

         11  represent the community. And the decisions are

         12  always made.

         13                 I'm the Chair of the Land Use

         14  Committee, we've had these arguments time and time

         15  again. School sitings are done after the fact, the

         16  members finally find out and the community finds

         17  out. Zonings are done, we find out after the fact.

         18                 Schools are placed in our districts,

         19  we find out after the fact. It is not right.

         20                 And, so, I guess I just wanted to

         21  clarify my sense of frustration, as I'm sitting

         22  here, and we have good working relationships, the

         23  three of us, I think, and that's fine. But the

         24  working relationship always comes after.

         25                 So, I guess my specific question is,
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          2  the Deputy Chancellor testified as to the letters

          3  that were sent out to the community, the parents,

          4  the elected officials, my letter has yet to get to

          5  me.

          6                 So, the question I have, and I really

          7  would like a specific answer, my understanding is

          8  that 85 percent of the folks responded to your

          9  eligibility forms. But that's eligibility and that's

         10  a different issue than bus routes. So, my question

         11  is, who was it that the Department of Education

         12  spoke to in our communities, in elected officials,

         13  civic associations, synagogues, churches, anyone,

         14  regarding the change of these routes, instead of

         15  just the folks that we hired to make the

         16  suggestions?

         17                 I'd like to know what community

         18  involvement was involved directly with the bus

         19  routes?

         20                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: I'm a little

         21  surprised in terms of your question. I think the

         22  change in the bus routes is something that was

         23  widely discussed and disseminated, it had been

         24  heavily reported. There was a public lawsuit about

         25  it. And certainly I heard from different people in
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          2  different communities and different meetings about

          3  it. And I think here is where the confusion comes

          4  in, and I think it's important: by law people have

          5  to register. And that, we said to everybody, and we

          6  let them know. Now, some people didn't register, and

          7  some people, quite frankly, were riding the bus who

          8  were just basically on the bus. They weren't

          9  eligible for bus service.

         10                 But I don't think there is any

         11  question that this change was amply, amply discussed

         12  in virtually every community.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: That's not true,

         14  Chancellor. We were told that there were changes. We

         15  were told that we were going to have discussions.

         16  The folks sent letters to their principals, I

         17  believe in May or June, regarding the fact that this

         18  issue was going to come up. It was only about a week

         19  before, and if I'm not mistaken, and the people that

         20  testify afterwards can certainly correct me if I'm

         21  wrong, but if I'm not mistaken, the actual routes

         22  that were being suggested by the Department of

         23  Education were only notified out into the community

         24  about a week or two before the changes were made.

         25                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: You're right about
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          2  that, and that's something we should have had more

          3  time on. I agree with you on that.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right. But my

          5  point is a different one, and I apologize, Mr.

          6  Chairs, and I will end, it's that we want to

          7  collaborate with the Department of Education. The

          8  parents are desperate to collaborate with the

          9  Department of Education. And I find this with Land

         10  Use, and you know that we've had this argument time

         11  and time again, but I just wish that there was a way

         12  that we really could collaborate before decisions

         13  were made.

         14                 And I don't mean to rile anyone. It's

         15  a sense of frustration, and I think that I wanted to

         16  express that on this topic.

         17                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Can I just

         18  agree with you, which I really want to do, in that

         19  with the communication directly to the parents

         20  through whether DOE directly or through the schools,

         21  we needed to do that a lot better and a lot longer,

         22  as far as the route issues. So, that would have been

         23  something we would have definitely have changed and

         24  changed to improve the outcome. And I totally agree

         25  with you with that.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: It should have

          3  been done before it was final. That's the problem.

          4                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

          6  Member Katz.

          7                 Questions from Council Member Foster

          8  and then Fidler.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Thank you,

         10  both Chairs, and to Council Member Katz, because I

         11  think you summed up very well the frustration we

         12  have. And I've heard some language today and leading

         13  up to today that I find very disturbing, and I think

         14  what's important to remember is that we're elected

         15  and not employed. So the fact that you apologize is

         16  fine, but the Mayor needs to be the one as the

         17  leader who is elected to say we made a mistake. It's

         18  not a time for name calling, because unlike Simcha,

         19  I do a very good job, and I know it and my

         20  constituency knows it, that's why I got reelected by

         21  98 percent of the vote. And then this, you're

         22  entertaining us by being here. You're not

         23  entertaining us because this is part of our

         24  oversight role. So, my frustration is always with

         25  the Department of Education. It's the cart before
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          2  the horse. And it would be nice if we had

          3  conversations beforehand so that we don't get to

          4  this point where you hear the frustration in Council

          5  Member Katz, myself, on and on. And I think Deputy

          6  Chancellor Grimm is in a high position and is not a

          7  weeping willow that needs to be protected if

          8  questions get tough, because that is her job. And

          9  when you're not here, questions get tough, she

         10  handles it. So, the yelling, I don't think anybody

         11  is yelling, I think it's a sense of frustration.

         12                 So, my one question is, were parents

         13  directly consulted about these potential bus

         14  changes? I'm not talking about the letters that went

         15  out in the eight different languages, but were

         16  parents, either by A&M or by someone in the

         17  Department of Education that was going to deal with

         18  this bus route change, speak directly to parents and

         19  say, hey, this is what we're looking at, what do you

         20  think? What could be done better? Were parents

         21  directly like dialogue, not letters?

         22                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: There were parents

         23  who we talked to. We had meetings about this issue

         24  with CPAC and others during the process. I think the

         25  point that Council Member Katz made and the Deputy
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          2  Mayor just spoke to was an important point, which is

          3  that we did not give parents adequate notice and

          4  that's an important issue.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: I think

          6  adequate notice is an important issue, yes. But I

          7  also think adequate conversation, you might know

          8  what you're doing best from one side of the hall,

          9  but we and parents know what's happening the best,

         10  because they're the ones at the route, they're the

         11  ones dropping their kids off, and if a discussion

         12  maybe had been had as to what can be done better,

         13  how you have one child eligible for a school bus,

         14  and the same family with the different child at the

         15  same school not eligible, if conversations as

         16  opposed to just notice, this is what we're doing, if

         17  conversations would have been had, I think some of

         18  these problems would have been avoided because we

         19  would have had dialogue, and I think overall that's

         20  what's missing is dialogue.

         21                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: I agree with your

         22  point.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         25  Member Foster.
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          2                 Questions from Council Member Fidler,

          3  then Seabrook.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you, Mr.

          5  Chairman. You know, you sit up here and at times you

          6  just want to explode, and so I'm going to try not

          7  to.

          8                 First, you know, the Mayor's comments

          9  notwithstanding. My qualifications to sit here and

         10  ask questions about this are as a consumer, all

         11  right? Which perhaps is a perspective the Mayor does

         12  not enjoy. Having two boys who attended New York

         13  City public school and took New York City public

         14  school transportation and buses, and I know the

         15  aggravation that one feels when the bus that you're

         16  expecting in the morning doesn't show up, and know

         17  the angst a parent feels when the bus you're

         18  expecting at the end of the day comes an hour and a

         19  half late. And that is something that I think

         20  qualifies some of us to participate in the process

         21  hopefully before the decisions are made and not just

         22  to come here and once again batter you about a

         23  decision that you've made after the fact.

         24                 Two, the idea, and I really hadn't

         25  planned on bringing the cell phone up so directly,
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          2  but Councilman Vallone did, and your response makes

          3  my blood boil, because this notion of putting

          4  lockers outside and your response saying that

          5  teachers are worried about students calling each

          6  other to set up a fight - well, on behalf of the

          7  Bloods, the Crypts and the Latin Kings, I want to

          8  thank you for providing a place for them to stash

          9  their weapons immediately outside the school so when

         10  the fighting comes, they can get their knives and

         11  their guns conveniently.

         12                 It is the most inane idea I have ever

         13  heard. And you know, if you just would, you know,

         14  let kids take their cell phones, turn them off, put

         15  them in their pocket or knapsack, the problem would

         16  go away. It's the same enforcement either way.

         17                 You know, third, we've had this

         18  conversation about A&M and consultant reports. You

         19  know, Chancellor, you and I have to confess to being

         20  attorneys. I find it difficult to accept this

         21  inter-agency cloaking, you know, device. And when a

         22  City agency with absolute control, give a no-bid

         23  contract to a consultant who issues a report upon

         24  which action is taken, oversight committee is

         25  entitled to see the report. I don't think it's

                                                            106

          1  EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEES

          2  chilling they're being paid. You know, your

          3  inter-agency discussions can be between you, but the

          4  report is very, very much a matter of public

          5  concern. And the Charter gives this Committee

          6  oversight responsibility over the agency which you

          7  control. And we are entitled to see it. And I would

          8  suggest that, you know, even if you think you're

          9  legally correct, which I don't think you are, that

         10  you revisit that in the spirit of cooperation, with

         11  other stakeholders in the City.

         12                 Now, my one question. You know, my

         13  understanding is that, you know, part of the

         14  efficiency here is the combining of some of the bus

         15  routes. And I have heard anecdotally that some kids

         16  are taking a very, very long time to go to and from

         17  school as a result of these combining of routes.

         18  Could you tell me what you consider to be the

         19  maximum acceptable period of time for a child to go

         20  to and from school on his bus ride, and if any

         21  children at this point are routinely, routinely

         22  spending more than that amount of time on their

         23  school bus?

         24                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: I would say

         25  about an hour. That if any child is going more than

                                                            107

          1  EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEES

          2  an hour, that's certainly something we need to know

          3  about. And that's not to say that every child would

          4  be on a bus for an hour, but if it gets up to that

          5  amount of time, we should make an adjustment.

          6                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Knowing that,

          7  though, there are those exceptions, especially

          8  through No Child Left Behind, where a child may be

          9  traveling, as a result of No Child Left Behind

         10  application going to a school outside of a district

         11  that would possibly take longer, but I just want to

         12  reinforce the point from the Deputy Chancellor, that

         13  if there are cases that you're aware of, we should

         14  hear about that as quickly as possible.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Well, I guess

         16  you didn't really answer the second part of the

         17  question, which is are there any children routinely?

         18  And if you don't know the answer, I certainly want

         19  to invite the public to call on my office and let me

         20  know about that so I can make you aware of it,

         21  because it's unacceptable for, which I think an hour

         22  is a very long time, and I recognize that under No

         23  Child Left Behind certain parents may be opting to

         24  make that choice, and that's their choice. You know,

         25  a kid goes to school, got to wake up early in the
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          2  morning, comes back, has homework to do, and

          3  hopefully has a life after that. So, an hour is an

          4  awfully long time, and if children are spending more

          5  than an hour and a half, more than an hour up to an

          6  hour and a half on a bus every day, that's not

          7  acceptable. You know, I think you ought to be made

          8  aware of it, and I would love to hear about it.

          9                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Yes, we don't

         10  disagree with you at all, sir.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         12  Member Fidler.

         13                 We have been joined by Council Member

         14  Alan Gerson of Manhattan, and Council Member Charles

         15  Barron of Brooklyn. We have questions from Council

         16  Member Seabrook, and then Recchia.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you

         18  very much, Chairman Liu, and Chairman Jackson. And

         19  to the Chancellor, the Deputy Mayor and Deputy

         20  Chancellor, I had a lot of calls in both of my

         21  district offices, Co-Op City and the other part of

         22  the district, and I had the parents, I had a number

         23  of parents asking a lot of questions that I

         24  certainly couldn't answer because I wasn't familiar

         25  with what was taking place and how or what, but
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          2  there was a question that I had made a promise from

          3  one of the parents that told me to ask this

          4  question, and I just felt it was important because I

          5  didn't know the answer, and she said could you

          6  please clarify whether or not there is an age

          7  requirement for school children to receive

          8  MetroCards, because she had a seven-year-old, and do

          9  you think it's safe for a seven-year-old to ride a

         10  public bus to school, and wouldn't a parent who

         11  leaves a seven-year-old child at home alone be

         12  investigated for neglect? Wouldn't it also be

         13  irresponsible for me to put my seven-year-old on a

         14  public bus alone? And should there be a minimum age

         15  limit before you can require a school child to use

         16  public transportation to go to school?

         17                 And Judy asked me that question to

         18  ask you all, because she said, and, Larry, I want to

         19  ask you because you've got an eight year old, would

         20  you put your eight year old on a public bus to go to

         21  school? And my answer was no.

         22                 So, I just want you, because Judy is

         23  going to be listening, and told me to ask this

         24  question, and I am compelled to ask this question

         25  because I don't know the answer.

                                                            110

          1  EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEES

          2                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: You can tell her

          3  that I would give her the same answer you gave her.

          4  I think without parental consent, and many times

          5  parents travel with their kids and so forth, but

          6  without parental consent, a kid who is six years

          7  old, seven years old, I would not say should be on

          8  public transportation, and just like you, I wouldn't

          9  want my kid on there.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: So what is

         11  the age requirement, and will there be? Because she

         12  asked should there be a requirement, a minimum age

         13  limit requirement; what's your thoughts on that?

         14                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: Right now what

         15  we're doing is trying to give everybody a variance,

         16  if there's a question about it, and one of the

         17  things I wanted to review is to come up with an age

         18  requirement, and I welcome your thoughts about that,

         19  okay?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Because

         21  there's going to be a number of parents who have

         22  some concerns at that age about putting -- so, they

         23  can actually apply for a variance?

         24                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: Correct.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Because

                                                            111

          1  EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEES

          2  they're going to ask me, Chancellor. Who do I deal

          3  with in getting a variance? Because they're going to

          4  be saying where do they go in the Bronx?

          5                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: Call 3-1-1, and

          6  they'll route you to the Office if Pupil

          7  Transportation, and if they have a problem, they can

          8  let me know by e-mail.

          9                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Well, even in

         10  addition to that, if what we've done with certain

         11  Council members who called, if you have a number of

         12  concerns or questions, just get it to us, and,

         13  again, we encourage calling 3-1-1 and it will go to

         14  our Pupil of Transportation Office, but, again, we

         15  encourage you to, if you have specifics, just get to

         16  us and we'll respond. It's what we've been trying to

         17  do over the last couple of weeks.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you

         19  very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council Member

         21  Domenic Recchia of Brooklyn, then Council Member

         22  Tish James of Brooklyn.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Good

         24  afternoon, Chancellor, Deputy Mayor, Kathleen,

         25  Deputy Chancellor Kathleen Grimm.
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          2                 I've been involved in the system for

          3  many years, and what you have done and what you have

          4  taken on is a lot of courage. I agree with you, it

          5  had to be revised. I agree with that. I agree with

          6  the Deputy Chancellor about the RFP'g of the buses.

          7  It can't happen. The cost would skyrocket. I agree

          8  with that. But we as elected officials are your

          9  partners, and we want to be your partners, and I

         10  have to say, that my office worked with Erin

         11  Stevens, who is doing an excellent job, and I have

         12  to tell you, Mr. Chancellor, she has been very

         13  receptive, but we still have two major problems. I'm

         14  not here to grandstand, I just want to bring up two

         15  problems that are facing my constituents, and I

         16  brought the outstanding complaints with me. I'm

         17  giving you the originals, and the two main problems

         18  that are still facing, is the buses are overcrowded,

         19  and when the kids get to school at 7:00, the schools

         20  are closed. What are we to do?

         21                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: We're happy to look

         22  at the complaints and deal with them and address

         23  them. Just hand them over to us.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: I'm giving

         25  them to you right now.
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          2                 Sergeant-At-Arms, just give it to

          3  him.

          4                 And in this complaint there is also a

          5  parent who says, "My child is on the bus for two

          6  hours." I'm just saying I have a complaint right

          7  here. I'm just bringing this to your attention.

          8  These are the complaints that are still outstanding

          9  that we're trying to resolve. We already resolved

         10  numerous ones. These are ones I'd appreciate if you

         11  could look at. I thank you and I look forward to

         12  helping you at my office.

         13                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council Member

         15  Letitia James of Brooklyn.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Thank you.

         17                 To the Chancellor, to the Deputy

         18  Mayor, as well as to the Deputy Chancellor, thank

         19  you for all that you're doing with my office in

         20  addressing some of the school issues in region six

         21  and region eight. Thank you for addressing the issue

         22  at 113, with respect to your classification, and

         23  thank you for working with me with smaller

         24  classrooms all throughout my district. But this

         25  issue obviously has erupted into a storm throughout
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          2  the City of New York, and so just let me add my

          3  voice to the choir.

          4                 A Queens' mother notified on Friday

          5  that her second grader would continue to ride the

          6  school bus while her kindergarten sister was

          7  expected to take public transportation.

          8                 In the Bronx, a first grader lost his

          9  bus service and was given a MetroCard.

         10                 A Staten Islander, Kindergartner, a

         11  new school bus pick-up time is two minutes before

         12  the start of the school day.

         13                 Washington Heights, fifth grader

         14  arrives 45 minutes late for school, due to the new

         15  school bus route.

         16                 A Brooklyn fourth grader may have to

         17  leave her gifted program because she was denied a

         18  school bus service, and the list goes on and on and

         19  on.

         20                 Deputy Mayor Walcott, and to the

         21  Chancellor and the Deputy Chancellor, we appreciate

         22  you falling on the sword today for the Mayor, but

         23  the Mayor and his re-election campaign said judge

         24  me, judge the schools, I should be held accountable

         25  for the performance of the schools. And, so, this
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          2  should fall at the feet of the Mayor of the City of

          3  New York, and he should step up to the plate. It's

          4  like an elected official who is running now for

          5  national office refused to accept the fact that she

          6  made a mistake in voting for the war. I would ask

          7  that the Mayor step up and accept, and admit that

          8  he, too, made error in this policy.

          9                 And I thank you. I think all of us

         10  here, no one disagrees with the goals. I think we

         11  all share the objective regarding efficiency and

         12  cost savings and diverting funds and directing them

         13  into the classroom, no one disagrees with that, but

         14  I think this is an excellent example of good

         15  intentions gone terribly wrong, particularly when an

         16  agency operates in a vacuum, without input from

         17  stakeholders, i.e. parents. I think this happens in

         18  the absence of a dry run, a pilot program, an

         19  experimental program, and unfortunately, Mr.

         20  Chancellor, this happens time and time again with

         21  this agency. The failure to recognize the high

         22  drop-out rate, the ban on cell phones which was

         23  mentioned earlier. Closing of high schools where a

         24  lot of my colleagues are not even notified.

         25  Educational reform, which no one knows anything
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          2  about, and this whole school bus debacle, where I

          3  was notified by watching New York 1, and I want to

          4  thank Domenic Carter for notifying me.

          5                 This is a top-down structure,

          6  top-down management, which is really corporate in

          7  nature, this corporate form of government which

          8  fails to include and/or treat this body, this City

          9  Council body, as full partners, and it's rather,

         10  rather, rather unfortunate. And I hope in response

         11  to your question, in response to the question from

         12  the advocate where she talked about food services,

         13  you said you would notify here. I hope that you

         14  would notify her, not adequately, but at least six

         15  months to a hear in advance, if we tend to privatize

         16  that system. And, again, in response to someone's

         17  question, when the Deputy Mayor said that everyone

         18  will have public school transportation, again, that

         19  was very obscure, because that includes the

         20  possibility of children getting MetroCards, which is

         21  totally unacceptable. Totally, totally unacceptable.

         22                 So, my question is, this is a -- I

         23  understand that the original projection was for $20

         24  million in savings, and it's now diminished to $5

         25  million, this private consulting firm received $15.7
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          2  million, and the question that I have is, given the

          3  total amount of savings that was projected, compared

          4  to -- which is negligible, compared to the costs

          5  associated with reorganization, do you really think

          6  it was worth the headache?

          7                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: I will have

          8  Kathleen deal with the specifics. Again, as I

          9  mentioned before, Council member, that the contract

         10  with A&M is not solely about bus service. It's about

         11  a number of recommendations, and how we drive

         12  dollars directly to the classrooms. And as the

         13  Chancellor has indicated, to date we have already

         14  been able to realize $89 million as a result of

         15  their involvement with the staff at the Department

         16  of Education.

         17                 So, again, it's not solely restricted

         18  to this one area. It's a variety of areas.

         19                 And then the other piece I just

         20  wanted to talk about, as far as the relationship

         21  with the members of the Council, I think one of the

         22  things that we're always very conscious of is trying

         23  to focus on the needs of the individual Council

         24  members. We do respect your being elected, and as

         25  you indicated in this part of your comments, you
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          2  know, we've worked with you and the other Council

          3  members in addressing issues locally, as well as

          4  Citywide.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And I do

          6  appreciate that, but, again, it was as a result of,

          7  the fact that we do have a relationship was as a

          8  result of my insistence, and I'm sure you know, and

          9  I know Erin knows that I've been very insistent, and

         10  I have brought to your attention the failures in my

         11  district, particularly 265, 67 and the list goes on

         12  and on and on. It was only when I reached out to you

         13  we developed a relationship, and it was only after I

         14  raised my voice and banged on a couple of tables.

         15  But I appreciate the relationship nonetheless. And

         16  that is why getting to your other point, why it's so

         17  critical that the Chairs of this Committee have

         18  their report, because we're talking about $89

         19  million in savings, the question is where else are

         20  you looking at the savings and other recommendations

         21  they have proposed for the City of New York.

         22                 And now to Deputy Chancellor Grimm --

         23                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: I just

         24  wanted to address the specifics around the savings.

         25  The $20 million figure was a projected number at the
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          2  beginning, we were very, very clear about it. It was

          3  before we undertook the process. At the end of the

          4  process we are projecting an annualized figure of

          5  $12 million that will be available to be redirected

          6  to the schools. The $5.6 million figure is the pro

          7  rata figure for this year, based on the mid-term

          8  implementation. It's about a half a year of the

          9  dollars available to be redirected to the

         10  classrooms.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And let me just

         12  say publicly, there is nothing wrong with admitting

         13  that you make a mistake. I say it all the time. I

         14  don't think elected officials should be above and

         15  beyond recognizing that sometimes even us make

         16  mistakes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         18  Member James.

         19                 Council Member Brewer.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         21  much. In Manhattan we had fewer calls and the great

         22  Erin Stevens solved all but one, so I have one left.

         23                 But my question is this: Regarding

         24  complaints, could you just explain to me the phone

         25  line, how it hooks into 3-1-1, and when you put
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          2  perhaps a supervisor or somebody at 3-1-1 to handle

          3  the, I would guess call it overflow, what was the

          4  streamlined approach to problem solving? For

          5  instance is your hot line 24/7? 3-1-1 obviously is.

          6  What's the scenario there?

          7                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: The calls

          8  that got to 3-1-1, while our call center is opened,

          9  are automatically transferred over there. 3-1-1, as

         10  you know, is open 24 hours. So, if our call center

         11  is not open, those calls get logged in and get sent

         12  over to us in the morning.

         13                 During these last few weeks, we kept

         14  the call center open seven days a week, and added

         15  extended hours at both ends of the day. It was

         16  opening I think at 5:30 in the morning and was going

         17  til about 9:00 at night.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So, why do you

         19  think people were complaining about 3-1-1, in terms

         20  of getting a response?

         21                 There was not a response back quickly

         22  from 3-1-1, and I'll just say that that's something

         23  that could be improved, it seems to me.

         24                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: I know we

         25  had some complaints about calls waiting too long. We
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          2  do track that in terms of how long people wait

          3  before they abandon it. It very quickly went to a

          4  very, very short amount of time.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay, because

          6  we did get a lot of calls.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

          9                 Council Member Jim Oddo of Staten

         10  Island.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

         12  Chairman. I just have one quick request, one quick

         13  observation and one quick question.

         14                 The request is that you folks keep in

         15  mind that there are stretches of this City where

         16  there is essentially no mass transit system and

         17  there are very few, if any, public transportation

         18  options. That's one.

         19                 The observation is, I want to thank

         20  Marty Oestreicher and the folks at OPT for their

         21  work the last two weeks, in trying to put some sense

         22  to this chaos. I think he was a victim of some bad

         23  timing, and was, forgive the pun, was thrown under

         24  the bus, in terms of some of the press coverage. But

         25  he has been fantastic in the last couple of weeks,
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          2  during which have been bedlam.

          3                 My question is, Deputy Chancellor

          4  Grimm, you testified on page six, you stated on page

          5  six of your testimony that you believe the vast

          6  majority of the problems are over, the principals

          7  are telling you students are arriving on time and

          8  the hot line calls have decreased.

          9                 Last week Council Member McMahon and

         10  I met with some parents who articulated this

         11  scenario for us, that they have been told that their

         12  children are ineligible, they still bring their kids

         13  down to the bus stops, their kids are still getting

         14  on the buses, but they're being told that when the

         15  rosters, the official rosters are to be given to the

         16  bus drivers, the bus drivers have been told not to

         17  let anyone not on that roster onto the bus or they

         18  will lose their jobs.

         19                 So, I guess our fear is that there

         20  will be a second wave of pain, that some parents who

         21  have stopped calling because their kids are getting

         22  on the bus, next week are going to be told that the

         23  kids won't be eligible to get on that bus; is that

         24  something that we're contemplating?

         25                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: There are no
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          2  plans to give the bus drivers rosters or to ask the

          3  bus driver to make decisions about who gets on the

          4  bus.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: So, if I'm a

          6  parent whose child has been deemed ineligible and I

          7  bring him or her down to the bus stop --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Don't tell

          9  anyone.

         10                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: As I think

         11  we all made clear, we are engaged in a process, a

         12  multi-step process of registering people. This was

         13  the first step.

         14                 We will do this on an annual basis.

         15  We will do it based on lessons learned through this

         16  first step of the process, in terms of outreach, in

         17  terms of talking to you folks, in terms of making

         18  sure all the rules are clear. And that process will

         19  go forward in the spring and we will be back to you

         20  to let you know how we're planning to do that.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         23                 I hear a beautiful noise in the back

         24  there. Oh, the baby missed the bus.

         25                 Council Member Alan Gerson of
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          2  Manhattan, and Council Member Oliver Koppell of the

          3  Bronx.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you, Mr.

          5  Chair. Good afternoon.

          6                 First of all, I always pass on a

          7  positive word and note, I need to echo the comments

          8  of Council Member Oddo, and that is give credit to

          9  your Office of Operations, and the leadership of

         10  Martin Oestreicher for working certainly with our

         11  community in successfully ironing out many of the

         12  kinks involving both our public and our non-public

         13  schools.

         14                 My question, and let me present the

         15  question and then the context. The question is: to

         16  what extent has this reorganization increased the

         17  average length of time of ridership on a school bus

         18  for those who remain eligible, and to what extent

         19  has it moved up the hour of pick-up, made it earlier

         20  beyond what it was previously. And I ask this out of

         21  a concern that I haven't heard from the presentation

         22  thus far, sufficient sensitivity to that aspect,

         23  that with all the talk on maximizing ridership in

         24  school buses and channeling dollars into classroom

         25  times, which of course, in and of themselves are
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          2  good, but if kids have to get up too early to get at

          3  school, arrive too early and spend too long -- I

          4  actually think an hour, that if you plan for an hour

          5  there are going to be plenty of days, knowing New

          6  York traffic, in spite of all the great work of

          7  Council Member John Liu and our Committee, when it's

          8  going to be more than an hour, that that is too long

          9  and kids will not learn well.

         10                 I mean, the equation should be,

         11  maximize ridership, while minimizing the length of

         12  time. So, what are your numbers? Has this resulted

         13  in a greater length of time? And what are your

         14  plans? Because before the reorganization I was

         15  speaking of folks and we were going to talk about

         16  this problem because too many kids, and by the way,

         17  too many special education kids in particular, have

         18  been spending too long periods of time on school

         19  buses. So how has this affected that situation, and

         20  what are your plans going forward?

         21                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: First of

         22  all, let me say that none of what we're discussing

         23  today has anything to do with the Special Ed groups.

         24  We're only dealing in this initiative with the

         25  general ed group.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: No, I know

          3  that. I just wanted to point out that that is a

          4  problem with them as well.

          5                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: Fine. I

          6  don't have the data, because, frankly, we've got the

          7  people in OPT working very hard, trying to be as

          8  responsible, or the Office of Pupil Transportation,

          9  responding to the questions, and when we get through

         10  this process, we will of course go through all of

         11  the data and be able to respond to that.

         12                 No doubt, there are routes where

         13  children have a longer period on the bus. It is part

         14  of the consolidation. There are, after all, fewer

         15  bus stops, maybe some longer routes. I'm not saying

         16  that an hour is an ideal time for a child to be on

         17  the bus, but if a child is on the bus that amount of

         18  time, we want to take a look at that route and see

         19  if we can't do something with it.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Well, Mr.

         21  Chairs, I would just request that we obtain this

         22  information at the earliest possible moment and urge

         23  that when we talk about transportation, minimizing

         24  time and not making pick up times earlier than

         25  necessary be a major goal, even if that means
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          2  spending a little bit more money to have more bus

          3  routes, because that's going to help education that

          4  will save money down the line. And Chancellor, and

          5  Deputy Chancellor, you need to come over to the new

          6  Space Science Center we opened up in our district to

          7  get some new ideas for new modes of transportation.

          8  Thank you very much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you,

         10  Council member. Council Member Oliver Koppell of the

         11  Bronx.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you,

         13  Chairman.

         14                 One of the comments that I've heard

         15  repeatedly from parents is frustration with the

         16  response to their complaints to 3-1-1, and through

         17  3-1-1, I guess it goes to the Bureau of Pupil

         18  Transportation. Have you set up a mechanism whereby

         19  you've gotten your operators or your personnel to

         20  get back to people within a certain amount of time?

         21  Is there a guideline that your people have? If Mrs.

         22  X calls and she gives a complaint, obviously they

         23  can't deal with that instantly, but is there a time

         24  frame within which Mrs. Smith should get a return

         25  call?
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          2                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: The cases

          3  vary, and if you have specific instances, I'd be

          4  interested in hearing them.

          5                 As best I can tell, we are pretty

          6  current with almost all of the calls, except for

          7  those around the school time, because if we have a

          8  problem where a bus is arriving either too early,

          9  before the school is starting, or ten minutes after

         10  session starts, which is not acceptable, it takes a

         11  little longer to address that issue, because that

         12  bus might be serving several schools, it's obviously

         13  picking up, perhaps scores of children. So, it takes

         14  us longer to work that through.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: For instance,

         16  you have a system whereby let's assume Mrs. Smith

         17  calls on Monday, but you can't solve the problem by

         18  Tuesday, but maybe by Wednesday, even if the problem

         19  isn't solved, someone calls Mrs. Smith back and

         20  says, you know, Mrs. Smith, you know we've got a

         21  problem with Jonny, but we're working on it, we'll

         22  get back to you. I mean, do you have a system like

         23  that? Because at a community meeting that I

         24  attended, the biggest thing was, you know, when I

         25  would say, oh, call 3-1-1, that's what the City
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          2  wants you to do, then there would be a collective,

          3  oh, you know, that doesn't do any good, I called

          4  them ten times, I didn't get a call back. That was

          5  the response I got a few days ago.

          6                 I'm wondering if you have in place a

          7  system to tell people we're still working on your

          8  problem?

          9                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: We do.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: People

         11  appreciate that.

         12                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: The first

         13  week, I'm afraid we weren't as good at that as we

         14  should be. But at this point you should not be

         15  hearing that anymore.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I think that

         17  if you have it on a computer, which I assume you do,

         18  if someone called on a Monday, there should be a

         19  little tickler that on Wednesday, if the problem

         20  isn't solved, that the person be called back and be

         21  told, you know, we're still working on your problem,

         22  we haven't been able to deal with it. I think that

         23  would go a long way.

         24                 The other thing I would just like to

         25  mention, Mr. Chairman, I won't take any time, and
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          2  that is to say, as the panel I believe knows, I was

          3  the president of a school board for a number of

          4  years, so I'm deeply concerned about this idea of

          5  eliminating the reasons, and I would appreciate

          6  actually a personal conversation with one of you

          7  perhaps on that issue, as well as, Mr. Chairman, I

          8  hope we have further hearings before this change of

          9  eliminating regions goes into effect, because it's

         10  of great concern to me, as someone who has had a

         11  hand in administering a district that we're trying

         12  to eliminate too many middle levels. I'm very

         13  concerned that we're going backwards.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you. There

         15  are three members that have a second question, so

         16  we're going to entertain that. I know that you've

         17  been up there awhile, but considering this is a

         18  topic that has gathered so much attention in the

         19  past three weeks, and considering the fact that

         20  we've had about 25 members here, where we limited it

         21  to one question so we're going to entertain

         22  questions from those members that need to ask

         23  another question, which I have a list of three

         24  individuals. So, please bear with us.

         25                 Council Member Mike McMahon of Staten
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          2  Island, then Council Member Letitia James of

          3  Brooklyn, and Council Member Peter Vallone of

          4  Queens.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you,

          6  Mr. Chairman. I promise to be brief. You've heard

          7  that before.

          8                 On the dollars themselves that we're

          9  talking about here and the savings that were

         10  intended to be realized and what is actually

         11  realized, how much of that is City dollars, and how

         12  much of that is State dollars?

         13                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: Under the current

         14  structure those are all City dollars because

         15  everything in Albany is by shares. So, if you get

         16  additional reimbursement on your busing, you get

         17  less reimbursement on another programmatic.

         18                 So, even though there is a co-pay

         19  kind of system, in fact the way the shares work is

         20  it all comes out in the laundry. So, in that sense,

         21  we could lose pre-k money, or we could lose other

         22  kinds of money in the shares. That's the way the

         23  systems work.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: So, although

         25  for every dollar we spend on buses, the State gives
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          2  us a dollar on those buses, my assumption that the

          3  12, 13 million dollars in savings annually should be

          4  cut in half because the State money is incorrect?

          5                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: I think it is

          6  incorrect. Because of the fact that there are shares

          7  in Albany. So, for example, when we used to get

          8  additional dollars under one system, you know,

          9  whether it was reimbursement for capital or

         10  whatever, it would come out of some other, and as

         11  long as there were shares. And that's obviously

         12  something we've opposed in Albany, but that's my

         13  understanding the way the things work.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: So, by not

         15  using that State money here, you will be able to use

         16  it somewhere else; am I understanding that

         17  correctly?

         18                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: That's right.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: And how much

         20  had to be spent post-implementation? In other words,

         21  how much extra money had to be spent because of

         22  unforeseen difficulties or irregularities?

         23                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: I don't think we

         24  have a final number, but we'll get you the number.

         25  We obviously had to put back some bus routes, and we
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          2  had to bring in some additional people, but we can

          3  get you the number.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

          6  Council Member Letitia James of Brooklyn.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Yes. Deputy

          8  Mayor, earlier you testified that you would not

          9  agree to go back to the old routes. So, my question

         10  is, have you agreed to any changes? And if you have

         11  agreed to any changes, what are they?

         12                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: Yes, we've done

         13  several things here. Let me say, going back to the

         14  old routes would disrupt enormous numbers of people,

         15  because for the overwhelming number of people that

         16  are on the bus, they're getting to school and so

         17  forth. So, to then go through another process, I

         18  think is not the solution.

         19                 What we have done is several things.

         20  One, we have given variances to people that were

         21  otherwise deemed ineligible. Two, we have rerouted

         22  certain buses to deal with the time differentials

         23  that we're talking about, and three, we have added,

         24  where we thought that there was under-capacity we

         25  have added additional capacity.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: As a result of

          3  the variances, the rerouting and the addition of bus

          4  service, how many complaints have we addressed in

          5  total?

          6                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: I couldn't give you

          7  the exact number, but, you know, some of these

          8  numbers are quite deceptive. I mean, I know from my

          9  own e-mail, when people say thousands of people

         10  call, on any given day we get 1,000 callers. So, the

         11  number of people. But my sense is other than some

         12  people who are either never registered or just

         13  clearly live too far away, we've solved virtually

         14  all the problems. There are still some problems, as

         15  Ms. Grimm said, people being picked up too early,

         16  and we're working out those, but I don't have the

         17  exact number.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: You don't have

         19  the exact number.

         20                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: And, again,

         21  Council member, just to reinforce the message that

         22  we do have staff here, if there are parents here who

         23  do still have specific complaints, or even Council

         24  members who may have information from some of their

         25  constituents, we made sure we brought staff here to
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          2  try to respond directly to those complaints and get

          3  back to folks.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And how many

          5  additional people are now assigned to address this

          6  issue, including the additional staff hired as for

          7  3-1-1?

          8                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: I will have

          9  to get you those exact numbers. It has shrunk now a

         10  little, because there is not as much volume. I think

         11  at one point we had 60 people and then we also drew

         12  in some other staff to reassign them.

         13                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: Reassign,

         14  reallocated. But also Council member, just to

         15  distinguish, it's not the 3-1-1 system, it's the

         16  system at the Office of Pupil Transportation, just

         17  for the public's benefit.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And my

         19  understanding was that part of this was -- I mean,

         20  one of the considerations was that children who are

         21  not eligible for bus service were in fact riding

         22  buses, and that you are now strictly enforcing the

         23  rules? Or what's the policy?

         24                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: What we've done is,

         25  for people who were riding it, we've given
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          2  variances, and this has come up in a number of

          3  questions. One of the things we're going to look

          4  very hard at is eligibility. I have to say, I

          5  understand the point about people are riding the

          6  buses, but I also think there is an important

          7  fairness point. We have to have clear eligibility

          8  rules. Council Member McMahon raised a couple of

          9  questions about certain rules that we need to look

         10  at. But in the end I think we need to have clear

         11  rules and apply them equally throughout the City so

         12  that we can say to parents, you know, that's not a

         13  situation where we bus people, or it is a situation

         14  where we bus people.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: So, are you

         16  reviewing the rules?

         17                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: We are.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay.

         19                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: And I want to be

         20  able to address a whole variety of them, ones about

         21  MetroCards and ones about distance and all of those.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council Member

         24  David Weprin missed the first round, but he is here

         25  so we are going to entertain Council Member Weprin.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: I was here for

          3  the testimony of the Deputy Mayor and the Deputy

          4  Chancellor, and I was here for the first round.

          5  Unfortunately, I had to take, I had a number of

          6  people waiting in my office, and I wanted to get

          7  back. So, I apologize if I'm going to ask issues

          8  that have already been covered, but I'm going to --

          9  a question that's already been covered, although

         10  there's been two rounds, if I ask a two-part

         11  question that has already been covered.

         12                 But I just want to cite, before I ask

         13  that question, an example of two constituents, or

         14  children of constituents that have called my office.

         15  And we've gotten dozens and dozens of calls over the

         16  last few weeks, from the beginning, of the inception

         17  of the change, and I'm sure most of my colleagues

         18  have as well.

         19                 The first example is a child in

         20  kindergarten in Florham Park, Queens, who attends

         21  the Solomon Shechter School in Flushing, and he was

         22  given a MetroCard by the Department of Education, in

         23  kindergarten, and told that he had to be accompanied

         24  by his parents, legitimately so, as opposed to just

         25  some of the reports that kindergarteners were given
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          2  MetroCards to go on their own on a public bus to go

          3  to school.

          4                 The problem, of course, with that was

          5  that the parents were both working parents and had

          6  other schedules and that wasn't completely taken

          7  into consideration.

          8                 And the second example is a third

          9  grader from Hollis Hills that attended St. Anastasia

         10  in Littleneck, and was told by the Department of

         11  Education that it was not too dangerous to cross

         12  over the Long Island Expressway to get to the public

         13  bus in order for him to get to school.

         14                 My question is, based on the large

         15  number, and in my case, as I mentioned, dozens and

         16  dozens of phone calls, and my colleagues I know have

         17  also gotten the calls, what special consideration,

         18  if any, has been given to the parents of private and

         19  parochial school students who, many of whom have

         20  longer day schedules, and especially in light of the

         21  fact that it still gets dark relatively early, has

         22  there been a special team assigned or any special

         23  consideration given to those changes in schedules in

         24  light of the longer day that private and parochial

         25  school students often have?
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          2                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: I can let the

          3  Deputy Chancellor respond to the specifics of it,

          4  but what we've been doing is working with the

          5  non-publics, as far as their unique situations. But,

          6  again, we have to apply the same rules to the

          7  non-public that we apply to the public schools, but

          8  just this past Sunday, Deputy Chancellor and her

          9  staff have a lengthy meeting with the

         10  representatives from the non-public schools, trying

         11  to address some of those concerns that may be

         12  impacting them as well, and Kathleen can talk about

         13  that.

         14                 We've been very aggressive in sitting

         15  down with the non-public schools, because, again, we

         16  understand the uniqueness and differences of having

         17  our own public school students and information about

         18  the public school students and the challenges in

         19  working with the non-publics that are not part of

         20  our official register per se, and how we have to be

         21  very sympathetic and empathetic to their needs, as

         22  well, and apply the laws and the rules as equally to

         23  them. So, I don't know if Kathleen wants to go into

         24  detail, but, again, to reinforce the point,

         25  Councilman, I'm not sure if you were here for this,
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          2  but we have staff here to address the specific

          3  concerns or questions around individual cases, and

          4  we want to address those individual cases and make

          5  sure we respond in as quick a fashion as possible.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Is there a way

          7  to get your answers without calling 3-1-1? A lot of

          8  people have problems with calling 3-1-1. I know that

          9  was one of the information that was told.

         10                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: Why don't you get

         11  the information directly to Deputy Chancellor Grimm,

         12  and we'll address it. We've got to do it in a fair

         13  and equitable way, but we will address it, all

         14  right?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council Member

         17  Peter Vallone, Jr., of Queens.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I'll forego

         19  my question in light of the hour. I just want to

         20  briefly say, first of all, and vouch for the fact

         21  that Deputy Chancellor Grimm will take care of

         22  e-mails and information that was forwarded to her,

         23  because I've done it many times and have gotten very

         24  quick responses.

         25                 I want to disassociate myself from
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          2  the remarks of Council Member Fidler, when it comes

          3  to cell phones. He mentioned my name, and lambasted

          4  your locker policy that you're thinking about.

          5                 I disagree. I think the idea is to

          6  get cell phones in children's hands on these buses

          7  and to and from school, not in the schools, and I

          8  think if you think you can do this locker program

          9  safely, then that's a good alternative, and I'm sure

         10  you can, and as Public Safety Chair I know you're

         11  aware of the dangers of weapons and things like

         12  that, and can implement the policy safely, and I

         13  thank you for your steps towards consensus in that

         14  area, and again thank you for the work you do

         15  everyday, and for your very long testimony today.

         16  So, thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Deputy

         18  Chancellor Dennis Walcott -- I'm sorry. Deputy Mayor

         19  Dennis Walcott, Chancellor Joel Klein --

         20                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: You may know

         21  something I maybe should know in the future, I don't

         22  know.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: No, my mind is a

         24  little tired right now. And Deputy Chancellor

         25  Kathleen Grimm, let me thank you all for coming in.
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          2  Even though we don't agree in this situation, I

          3  think that we can be candid and forthright in

          4  knowing that we are trying to put forward the type

          5  of questions and concerns that our constituents have

          6  raised with us, and doing our responsibility as far

          7  as oversight here at the City Council. But let me

          8  thank all three of you for coming in, and we look

          9  forward to working with you down the road to make

         10  this a smoother transition.

         11                 DEPUTY MAYOR WALCOTT: And Chairman,

         12  let me thank you also. It's always that I'm going to

         13  be here, but more importantly we realize there will

         14  be many tough decisions we have to make in the

         15  future, and those tough decisions on how we improve

         16  education for all of our students, and we are here

         17  to make those decisions and to work with you along

         18  that line.

         19                 Thank you very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you. We

         21  have several panels. First we're going to hear from

         22  a representative from Senator John Sabini, Shams

         23  Tarek. Please come forward.

         24                 Sergeant-Of-Arms, would you please

         25  clear the witness table of all of the cups and what
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          2  have you, so we can start afresh on other

          3  individuals that have issues and concerns regarding

          4  the oversight hearing, Review of Changes to the

          5  School Busing Plan: Are Children Being Left Out On

          6  The Curb? That's the subject of the overview of this

          7  Education Hearing. And as I've stated before,

          8  Council Member John Liu and myself, we will be

          9  continuing forward with this particular hearing this

         10  afternoon here in the Chambers, and at a certain

         11  point in time, approximately 40 minutes from now we

         12  will be recessing and continuing the hearing at 250

         13  Broadway on the 14th floor from approximately 5:00

         14  on, in order to hear from parents and other people

         15  that want to come in and testify on this very, very

         16  important subject matter.

         17                 So, with that, Shams Tarek, a Special

         18  Assistant to State Senator John Sabini. Welcome. Sit

         19  down. Press the button, please.

         20                 MR. TAREK: Thank you. I wish I could

         21  have been standing on the other side of this table

         22  facing the Chancellor and the Deputy Mayor and Ms.

         23  Grimm. The reason that I'm here is because Senator

         24  Sabini, like his colleagues in the State

         25  Legislature, are in session today and could not be
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          2  here, I'm representing the Senator as well as 22 of

          3  his colleagues. Senator Sabini has been trying to

          4  make noise about this issue since November. When he

          5  was notified by the bus companies that the DOE has

          6  this plan to cut routes, we were presented with a

          7  chart of up to 250 routes that were going to be cut

          8  by the Department of Education. There was zero

          9  public disclosure about this plan, and it was

         10  alarming and disturbing.

         11                 The Senator immediately held a press

         12  conference to try to notify people about the plan,

         13  try to raise public awareness. The media was not as

         14  quick to respond until the problem started. That

         15  said, the media has been our best partner. Folks

         16  from papers like the Post and the Daily News, New

         17  York 1 and the television station have done more

         18  than the Department has ever done to inform the

         19  public about this situation, and that's

         20  unacceptable.

         21                 I will not read the entire contents

         22  of the letter but this fiasco has been so terrible

         23  that it's done something unprecedented in Albany.

         24  It's united members of the Senate and Assembly from

         25  both sides of the aisle. This letter was written by
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          2  Senator Sabini, sent to Chancellor Klein last week.

          3  It's signed by 23 members of the Senate and Assembly

          4  from both sides of the aisle, and that's not an easy

          5  task in Albany, so I have to give a kind of odd

          6  commendation to the Department of Ed for being able

          7  to bring together so many folks. Unfortunately, it

          8  was because of for sometimes tragic reasons.

          9                 In general, the message from the

         10  Senator and from his 22 colleagues is that the chaos

         11  and confusion that the Department of Education

         12  school bus rerouting and eliminations have caused

         13  parents and children are absolutely unacceptable.

         14  Images of very young children and their parents

         15  freezing in the dead of winter and wondering how to

         16  get to school have left indelible images in our

         17  minds.

         18                 Understandably, many of the parents

         19  we represent are inconvenienced, confused and angry

         20  about the situation. The patterns of secrecy in the

         21  plan from clearly unsuccessful attempts to contact

         22  parents to the scant amount of public disclosure and

         23  participation during the entire process have been

         24  especially disturbing.

         25                 Parents and elected officials,
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          2  taxpayers and their representatives have been left

          3  like those young students many of us witnesses in

          4  the dark and out in the cold. There is a series of

          5  questions that the 23 members of the Legislature

          6  have submitted to the Chancellor formally and they

          7  are all requesting a formal response to these 11

          8  questions, and I'm sure more questions are going to

          9  arise.

         10                 And the letter is mailed to the

         11  Chancellor and submitted to the panel for the

         12  record.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, let me

         14  thank you. And tell the Senator thank you for being

         15  an advocate on behalf of the constituents that he

         16  represents. I mean, clearly, I guess he is

         17  frustrated and annoyed and/or angry at this

         18  situation. Obviously he has communicated with his

         19  colleagues, and as you said, it's not republican,

         20  democrat, independent or conservative, it's about

         21  children and their safety and security and the

         22  inconvenience on parents and the daily routines.

         23  And, so, I am looking forward to reading the letter

         24  by the Senator and other colleagues of his, and

         25  waiting to hear the responses from the Chancellor or
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          2  the Mayor regarding all of the questions that he has

          3  put forward.

          4                 Please tell him to thank you on

          5  behalf of the people in the New York City Council

          6  for moving forward with this.

          7                 MR. TAREK: Thank you for holding this

          8  hearing.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         10                 And next we're going to hear from a

         11  panel of four individuals.

         12                 Rajiv Gowda, the President of the New

         13  York City Education Council, District 31, Staten

         14  Island, if he's here. Rabbi Yosef Gelman, from

         15  Masores Bais Yaakov, in Ocean Avenue in Brooklyn.

         16  MaryAnn Perry from the Federation of Catholic

         17  Teachers. And also David Zweibel from Agudath Israel

         18  of America. Please come forward.

         19                 Sir, would you please have a seat,

         20  and you may begin your testimony, Mr. Rajiv. How do

         21  you pronounce your last name?

         22                 MR GOWDA: Gowda.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Gowda. Please

         24  begin your testimony. And I'm going to ask each

         25  witness to identify themselves and the organization
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          2  that they're with, prior to their testimony.

          3                 Please go forward. Press the button,

          4  please.

          5                 MR. GOWDA: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

          7                 MR. GOWDA: Good afternoon, Mr. Chair

          8  Jackson, and Mr. Liu is not here, and good afternoon

          9  to all the Council members.

         10                 Mr. Chairman, my name is Rajiv Gowda.

         11  I am the President of New York City Education

         12  Council District 31, Staten Island. And I'm also

         13  Transportation Committee Chairman, Community Board

         14  No. 1. Forgive me for not bringing the written

         15  testimony, because this issue is well know, I don't

         16  think I got to put it on the paper. So, it's my

         17  belief.

         18                 Mr. Chairman, if you ask any

         19  hard-working New York City taxpayer, look, we will

         20  save you your hard-earned tax dollars in one broken

         21  area, and add it to an area, in this case classroom,

         22  where it's needed most, the answer will be an

         23  overwhelming yes. Otherwise I'm mistaken.

         24                 So, we are all for saving money.

         25  Everybody - the Mayor, the Governor and I'm sorry
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          2  they left, the Chancellor, the Deputy Mayor, elected

          3  Council members, every hard-working person wants to

          4  save money, okay? When you say the magic word "save

          5  money," they want to know how to save money. You

          6  don't need a rocket scientist to tell us that.

          7                 What I am questioning is the process.

          8  The process being used to save money is in question

          9  here. The methodology, the planning, the poor

         10  execution of this plan. That is in question here. I

         11  will summarize this whole thing into three Cs,

         12  Citywide, Chaos and Confusion. This whole bus fiasco

         13  is nothing but Citywide, Chaos and Confusion. Three

         14  Cs.

         15                 A no-bid contract, knowing very well

         16  A&M failed miserably in St. Louis where the student

         17  population is 40,000, and pretty much led St. Louis

         18  into bankruptcy and takeover. We all know that, they

         19  knew that. The Mayor and the Chancellor, everyone

         20  know it. A&M caused chaos to 40,000. Now they

         21  brought this group and consultant who created chaos

         22  and bankruptcy there to 1.1 million students in New

         23  York City, where we have a unique situation, five

         24  different boroughs, five different set-up here. Our

         25  Staten Island alone has 45,000 school children,

                                                            150

          1  EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEES

          2  okay? They brought them into this to create more

          3  chaos, and they paid them $15.8 million. Office of

          4  Pupil Transportation, OPT, failed to come to the

          5  parents. They failed to talk to the PTA. They failed

          6  to talk to the community education council, which we

          7  elected and state mandated. We are not some group of

          8  people sitting there because we want a name and

          9  fame. We elected to take care of the issues.

         10                 They did not come to our meeting, and

         11  did not get feedback from us. We had transportation

         12  committee meeting and safety meeting on 25th of

         13  January, they did not come. They did not send a

         14  representative. They failed to even answer what is

         15  the route change you are making? Fine you are saying

         16  you are very busy, you cannot do for the entire

         17  district. You do for one particular school, IS 72,

         18  they did not do that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You have less

         20  than a minute to wrap up.

         21                 MR. GOWDA: We asked them time and

         22  again, send representative, they failed to do that.

         23                 Now, unlike other boroughs, Mr.

         24  Chairman, we are unique, Staten Island. We don't

         25  have like Councilman Oddo and Mike McMahon said, we
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          2  are unique, we don't have mass transportation. It's

          3  unfair that put our kids into situation take a

          4  MetroCard, take the subway. Where is the subway?

          5  Show us the subway? We don't have a subway. We don't

          6  have a subway, we don't have mass transportation.

          7  This is unfair for our borough. And they put our

          8  kids and siblings in the freezing weather to cross

          9  eight lanes, dangerous eight lanes right in front of

         10  IS 72 in the middle of the winter where there is no

         11  crossing guard, while our OPT chief is enjoying the

         12  warm weather in warm, sunny Florida, while our kids

         13  and parents are standing there on the morning of

         14  29th to cross the street. It is unfair and those

         15  people who are responsible for this should go. We

         16  should show them the door. Because what is good for

         17  the goose is good for the gander.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         19                 MR. GOWDA: And I have some

         20  recommendation here.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Sure. I have to

         22  move, I'm sorry.

         23                 MR. GOWDA: Parents complaints I would

         24  like to give you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay,
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          2  Sergeant-of-Arms, please.

          3                 Next we hear from Rabbi Yosef Gelman.

          4  Please just identify yourself and your organization,

          5  and begin your testimony, please. Thank you.

          6                 MR. GELMAN: I'm Rabbi Yosef Gelman,

          7  principal of Masores Bais Yaakov, a non-public

          8  school on Ocean Avenue in Brooklyn servicing 750

          9  students, grade K through 12.

         10                 I appreciate the opportunity to be

         11  afforded to speak and address, and I must thank the

         12  Council and the Board of Education for their

         13  concern.

         14                 Over the past few weeks we have

         15  worked with the Department of Education, and it's

         16  been a tremendous willingness to address the

         17  problems and to address the issues. I would like to

         18  speak to the larger issue, and that is, that we are

         19  forcing children to walk to school. I'm speaking

         20  also as a parent. A number of years ago, one of my

         21  children, a daughter, was walking to school, was

         22  struck by a car, and she spent five weeks at

         23  Bellevue and NYU and afterwards a year in rehab. If

         24  we have an opportunity to make it safer for our

         25  children and not to consolidate bus routes but
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          2  rather to make it easier for them to get to school,

          3  that is something we should be looking to do. In

          4  addition, the City Board of Education and the

          5  Chancellor have gone beyond the law to do things to

          6  enhance children's learning opportunities. They've

          7  reduced class sizes. They haven't looked to save

          8  money, they have looked to do what's best for

          9  children, by the outcry of parents, and the reason

         10  you don't have parents here now, because those

         11  parents, I assume, are waiting for their children at

         12  the bus stops, and it's been a tremendous, excuse

         13  me, tremendous difficulty and inconvenience. I wish

         14  to add my comments to those of others here, looking

         15  to remedy the situation. Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you,

         17  Rabbi.

         18                 MaryAnn Perry. Just identify yourself

         19  and your organization, please. You may begin your

         20  testimony.

         21                 MS. PERRY: Good afternoon. I'm

         22  MaryAnn Perry, President of the Federation of

         23  Catholic Teachers, the union representing teachers

         24  in the City, would be Manhattan, Bronx, and today

         25  particularly we're talking about Staten Island.
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          2                 We are very grateful for the enormous

          3  effort of the people of the Office of Pupil

          4  Transportation, and all that they have done to work

          5  with individuals and their serious problems.

          6  However, we are now in week three of a crisis with

          7  children and families that should have and could

          8  have been avoided. The parents, we were talking

          9  about time schedule where the parents are notified,

         10  okay? Schools were notified January 23rd of some of

         11  these changes, I have parent letters where they

         12  received notification January 24th, Councilman Oddo

         13  and Councilman McMahon of our office, were just

         14  inundated with calls on the 25th and 26th of

         15  January, frantically trying to fix tremendous errors

         16  in those ridership lists. Not from parents who did

         17  not fill out the forms and the paperwork requesting

         18  bus transportation, because they were parents who

         19  had identification numbers, but their children were

         20  left off ridership lists, the mistakes that we knew

         21  were happening were happening, but it was a

         22  tremendous problem that was not going to be fixed by

         23  that Monday, and those changes were implemented

         24  anyway.

         25                 The safety issues were not addressed.
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          2  There were not dry runs. It was dangerous. The

          3  safety of the children entitled to bus service

          4  should have been the first priority of the plan, and

          5  surely they were not.

          6                 In addition to the safety problems,

          7  the plan fostered considerable disruption of the

          8  school schedule in the middle of the school year.

          9  Buses arrive long before the beginning of the school

         10  day, as early as seven. At our schools we have had

         11  numerous reports of buses arriving 30 and 40 minutes

         12  late, each day, not just on the first day, but

         13  continuing through last week. They missed breakfast

         14  and the other vital services to which they are

         15  entitled.

         16                 In the two weeks of late buses, these

         17  children have now lost the equivalent of two full

         18  school days. While the students in all boroughs have

         19  suffered, the problems on Staten Island have been

         20  the worst reported to us. The Office of Pupil

         21  Transportation's internal rule that a quarter mile

         22  from a school bus is farcical on Staten Island.

         23                 The nearest public bus from our

         24  Tottenville school is one mile. What good is a

         25  MetroCard? Bus stops for another school were
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          2  eliminated in South Beach with no public

          3  transportation available to get to school.

          4                 While sticking to the quarter mile

          5  rule for eligibility, our children were assigned bus

          6  stops one mile from their homes. Consultants would

          7  have performed a greater service revising the

          8  current rules to truly reflect the conditions on

          9  Staten Island, and looking at the old distance rule

         10  of the Chancellor's regulation and managing to keep

         11  siblings together and making public transportation,

         12  or rather school bus transportation workable for all

         13  our children.

         14                 Instead we are waiting for

         15  corrections to be done on an individual basis on a

         16  plan that was implemented too quickly and without

         17  the necessary safeguards.

         18                 The supposed savings brought about by

         19  this plan could not possibly be worth the safety of

         20  our children and the disruption it has caused our

         21  families and schools.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, thank you

         23  for coming in and giving your testimony on behalf of

         24  your organization.

         25                 And next we'll hear from David
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          2  Zweibel, Agudath Israel of America.

          3                 MR. ZWEIBEL: Thanks very much,

          4  Chairman Jackson and distinguished Council members.

          5  I'm David Zweibel. I am Executive Vice President for

          6  Government and Public Affairs of Agudath Israel of

          7  America, which is a national Orthodox Jewish

          8  organization. One of our functions is to represent

          9  the Hebrew Day Schools throughout the United States,

         10  and the single largest concentration of those day

         11  schools is right here in New York City. There are

         12  approximately 250 K through 12 schools across the

         13  five boroughs, which service over 75,000 children.

         14  And we've been deeply involved in working with both

         15  our constituent schools and the Department of

         16  Education, as well as the Mayor's Office, both in

         17  the weeks leading up to the implementation of the

         18  new bus routes, and also in the weeks following.

         19                 And I guess the issues that we've

         20  been hearing about, and you've heard about it, some

         21  of them in testimony that has been offered so far

         22  today, and I'm sure you'll hear a lot more when you

         23  hear from parents later on this evening, but the

         24  issues fall under three broad headings: One, the

         25  number of eligible students who had been registered
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          2  in the system prior to the deadline, but nonetheless

          3  did not appear on the ridership list, and thus they

          4  had no bus stops available for them.

          5                 Number two, buses were arriving in

          6  school at strange hours - very early, way before the

          7  school day started, or late after the school day

          8  would have already started, and also similar issues

          9  with respect to dismissals.

         10                 And then, finally, by consolidating

         11  and reconfigurating bus routes, many children were

         12  left with no bus stops located within a safer,

         13  convenient walking distance from their homes.

         14                 Those I think were the three big

         15  issues that we've been hearing about in a variety of

         16  different ways and a variety of different contexts.

         17  And we brought these issues to the attention of the

         18  people at OPT, and I have to say that they have been

         19  working hard to try to address some of these issues.

         20  These people are not faceless, uncaring bureaucrats,

         21  they are dedicated public servants. They are doing

         22  their best to carry out what is admittedly a

         23  difficult policy, and as effectively and painlessly

         24  as they can.

         25                 Having said that, a major policy
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          2  decision of this nature, overhauling transportation

          3  for the entire City, clearly required a lot more

          4  preparation than was given. It should not have been

          5  implemented until all the kinks were ironed out. It

          6  certainly should not have been implemented in the

          7  year in the dead of winter. That had been our advice

          8  for the Department prior to January 29th but they

          9  decided otherwise.

         10                 And the rest, I guess, is history in

         11  the making and I hope the Council will have an

         12  important part in participating in that history in

         13  the making.

         14                 In a certain way, I think that the

         15  displacements that have occurred have impacted on

         16  the, we've heard about in a borough which might have

         17  had disproportionate impact, Staten Island, in a

         18  certain way I think the Jewish schools have a

         19  disproportionate impact as well, and that's because

         20  of primarily demographic reasons.

         21                 We heard before Councilman Weprin

         22  spoke about the different dismissal hours, the

         23  longer school day that tends to prevail in many

         24  Jewish schools because of the dual program of

         25  religious and general studies, and also just the
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          2  demographics. Most families in the Orthodox Jewish

          3  Community at large, most send their sons to boys'

          4  schools and their daughters to girls' schools, and

          5  so you'll have parents who have to be at two bus

          6  stops at once essentially, and the longer the

          7  distance from their homes to the bus stops,

          8  obviously the greater the displacement.

          9                 I would conclude by saying that the

         10  largest single issue that we think should be

         11  addressed moving forward is this notion of where bus

         12  stops should be placed.

         13                 The rule of thumb ought to be that

         14  every child who is eligible to receive bus

         15  transportation should have a bus stop that is

         16  convenient and safe within walking distance from

         17  their home. The quarter mile rule on its face

         18  doesn't make too much sense, walking five blocks is

         19  a hardship.

         20                 Certainly walking five blocks makes

         21  no sense, when the quarter mile is not measured

         22  through how far the child would have to walk, so to

         23  say as the crow flies. What the Department has done

         24  is they have made a rule that says that we'll

         25  measure the quarter mile as if it were a straight
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          2  line from your apartment or from your house to where

          3  the bus stop is, and of course, children don't fly

          4  like crows. They walk like human beings. And the

          5  idea that what we need to do over here, if we're

          6  going to make meaningful service available to

          7  children in this City, is we've got to provide bus

          8  stops that are convenient within a reasonable

          9  walking distance from their home, not make it

         10  unreasonable as the current system has shown it to

         11  be.

         12                 I think it's an important issue to

         13  focus on moving forward, and hopefully something

         14  constructive will come out of this entire chaotic

         15  situation.

         16                 Thank you very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I want to thank

         18  all four of you for coming in and giving testimony

         19  on behalf of your organizations. Thank you very

         20  much.

         21                 MR. ZWEIBEL: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: The next panel,

         23  and before we move over to 250, we'll hear from Lois

         24  Lee from CPC Queens Association, Calvin Hunt,

         25  National Action Network; Sabrina Olsen of the SBT
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          2  Youth Parents Association; and Ann DeFalco, from CB

          3  No. 1, SBT Chairperson, parent.

          4                 Please come forward. Please come

          5  forward. And Lois Lee.

          6                 MS. LEE: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Just identify

          8  yourself and your organization. You may begin your

          9  testimony, while others make arrangements to sit

         10  down.

         11                 MS. LEE: Yes. I'm Lois Lee from the

         12  Chinese American Planning Council, and we are an

         13  After School Center, Queens Day Care at PS 20 in

         14  Downtown Flushing. We are funded by the New York

         15  City Department of DYCD, and we are an OST program,

         16  so the monies that the City is spending is not

         17  wasting taxpayer dollars to come to an after school

         18  center. The big issue is the new policy for OPT is

         19  they will not bus the children to the after school

         20  center. The policy is they must be going home, but

         21  the children are on the bus in the morning. They are

         22  eligible. But on the way home, and for years they

         23  have been going to our after school center. We have

         24  14 different public schools coming to our one

         25  particular center because we're centrally located in
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          2  Downtown Flushing, so when their parents finish work

          3  at 6:00, they pick up their children. So, now at

          4  3:00 there is nowhere for the children to go. They

          5  cannot go home, that's what latchkey means.

          6                 We've been working on this issue for

          7  six months now. DYCD is aware of it. They're talking

          8  to OPT, DOE, everyone knows that they say policy is

          9  policy.

         10                 Now, how is it where they're supposed

         11  to be filling these buses? The children want to be

         12  on the bus, now the parents, what they did was they

         13  had to hire private bus companies to bring them to

         14  our after school center, or they drop out of our

         15  after school center. So I think it's a real

         16  disservice to these after school centers, these

         17  latchkey children, especially the kindergarten

         18  children.

         19                 We also had the principals from our

         20  schools calling OPT, but there is no resolution to

         21  this problem at all.

         22                 So, I understand that it's a new

         23  problem, because of the last weeks, and we had all

         24  of our parents signing those forms, requests for

         25  after school service, it's still nothing. So that's
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          2  my issue.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, as the

          4  Chancellor said, that he has staff here in order to

          5  address issues, so --

          6                 MS. LEE: I did talk to the staff

          7  person.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And I'm sure

          9  that they will be listening to you. Who is the

         10  Council Member for the area?

         11                 MS. LEE: John.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, I'm sure

         13  that they will sit down with John Liu and try to

         14  work this out.

         15                 Because it's reasonable to say pick

         16  up at a certain location, but if kids are not being

         17  dropped off at home because their parents are not

         18  home and they went to a center, so a pick-up point

         19  and drop-off point, and I think that arrangements

         20  have to be made.

         21                 So, hopefully this will work its way

         22  out quickly.

         23                 MS. LEE: It's a policy change, that's

         24  what they're saying. It used to be you can go to

         25  grandparents' homes, you can go to after school. Now
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          2  with the new policy in place, it's not that easy to

          3  overturn policy. And that's why we ask for a

          4  variance, and they say it's policy.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, it seems

          6  as though the policy is becoming, instead of

          7  flexible, becoming very rigid.

          8                 MS. LEE: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And what we need

         10  is flexibility in order to meet the needs of the

         11  students.

         12                 MS. LEE: Mm-hmm. You got the issue.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         14                 And Calvin.

         15                 MR. HUNT: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Calvin B. Hunt.

         17  Just identify yourself and your organization for the

         18  record.

         19                 MR. HUNT: Calvin B. Hunt, National

         20  Action Network.

         21                 I will make this real brief.

         22  Yesterday I went to the Bronx on Prospect Avenue,

         23  and I've handed out these flyers that I just passed

         24  to you guys on the City Council, and the response

         25  that I got from the parents there is of great

                                                            166

          1  EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEES

          2  concern. They would have been here today, like

          3  school is in here, so they would probably be here

          4  this evening. But the main thing is this: At these

          5  two points, at Prospect Avenue and Tremont Avenue,

          6  with the MetroCards, at these two transfer points

          7  and these areas, you have a lot of sexual predators,

          8  and the City, whatever plan they did, A&M, whatever,

          9  who the Department of Education, and who did they

         10  study, didn't go through this map. And if you see

         11  this area here, this is one of the areas on Prospect

         12  Avenue.

         13                 On Tremont, I'll be there Monday

         14  passing out these flyers, on Monday at Tremont

         15  Avenue. And this is just a main concern as safety.

         16  Everybody has been talking about dollars and cents;

         17  what about the safety for the children? That's the

         18  main thing. And on that note, everybody have a nice

         19  evening.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, let me

         21  thank both of you for coming in and giving testimony

         22  about the organizations. It's important that we try

         23  to iron out all of this mess, considering the fact

         24  that I've asked them to reverse themselves, and they

         25  have not, and they want to continue to go down this
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          2  road, so let's try to clear the mess up as soon as

          3  possible.

          4                 Thank you, both, for coming in. Thank

          5  you.

          6                 And next we're going to hear from

          7  Deborah Howard of Parents and Children, I think

          8  Florence Burrell, from Merrick Academy of Queens

          9  Creative School, Julie Golin from Hunter College

         10  Elementary School, you're here? Barbara Berne. She

         11  has a child and she lives on Fieldston Road in the

         12  Bronx. Betsy Combier. Does anyone else want to

         13  testify this evening? Please come forward. Please.

         14  Thank you. And just identify yourself and you may

         15  begin. Whoever wants to testify, please come

         16  forward. And after this panel, we're going to move

         17  over to 250 Broadway over to the 14th floor, where

         18  we will begin at 5:00 p.m.

         19                 So, identify yourself and your

         20  organization and you may begin.

         21                 MS. HOWARD: My name is Deborah

         22  Howard. I don't have an organization. I am here

         23  representing Parents and Children. I'm a parent and

         24  I've been affected by this. I really wanted to talk

         25  to three points. Because there is the decision to
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          2  change the policy, there is how the policy was

          3  implemented and then there is how the Department has

          4  responded after the implementation clearly became a

          5  fiasco. So, you know, and I really wish that the

          6  Chancellor, the Deputy Chancellor and the Deputy

          7  Mayor had stayed, because I feel like I'm preaching

          8  to the choir, and I came here at 12:30 to be able to

          9  be heard by them.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Their government

         11  affairs person is here. She is listening to

         12  everything.

         13                 MS. HOWARD: Okay, I'll be talking to

         14  her when I'm done. Thank you so much.

         15                 You know, saving money is fabulous.

         16  You know, nobody is against saving money. I think

         17  the question is how it's done. I'm an organization

         18  development consultant and as anybody knows, before

         19  you institute a major change, you talk with your

         20  stakeholders, and you get input and you find out how

         21  is this going to impact all of you.

         22                 So, my question is, were the parents

         23  talked to? I wasn't. Were the school administrators?

         24  I don't mean the principals, I mean the people who

         25  put the kids on the bus and know how the system
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          2  operate; were they talked to? I don't think so. Were

          3  the bus drivers talked to? Yes, it's clear that the

          4  bus companies have an ulterior motive, but the bus

          5  drivers know which streets go which way, what

          6  neighborhoods veer on which neighborhood, none of

          7  these people were spoken to.

          8                 And, you know, I heard Kathleen Grimm

          9  talk about there was communication flyers sent out.

         10  Well, first of all, anyone who is a parent in this

         11  room knows, flyers don't get home out of backpacks.

         12  But a one-way communication is not dialogue. It is

         13  not input.

         14                 So, as the woman who was just

         15  speaking from the day care center was saying, you

         16  know, this is not a City of stay-at-home moms, okay?

         17  I am not a stay-at-home mom. I'm a single mom. I'm a

         18  working family. I would say the vast majority of

         19  parents and kids affected by this are working

         20  families, okay? My child has two homes. I'm

         21  divorced. So, half of the time she comes to my home.

         22  Half of the time she goes to someone else's home.

         23  Were we talked about in terms of how all of these

         24  changes impact us?

         25                 So, I wish I could remember her name,

                                                            170

          1  EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEES

          2  but the woman who just testified talked about this

          3  ludicrous thing about you must be dropped off where

          4  you're picked up. Why? Okay?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Lois Lee. Lois

          6  Lee.

          7                 MS. HOWARD: Thank you.

          8                 If I was a stay-at-home mom, I

          9  wouldn't need an after school program. But if my

         10  child is dropped off where she was picked up, what

         11  is that going to do me?

         12                 And the other thing is, I'm going to

         13  out myself right here. I am the mother of an

         14  ineligible child, okay? And so, Councilman Liu,

         15  everything you said was completely on point. If the

         16  Chancellor's office could prove to me that there are

         17  valid reasons why my child is ineligible, or even if

         18  there is an invalid reason, you know, some kind of

         19  thing about why this is necessary, I'm fine with

         20  that.  But as Councilman Liu said, two days notice

         21  does not work. I'm a working mother, okay? I have my

         22  own business, I could come here. People who work

         23  9:00 to 5:00, they can't come here and be talking to

         24  all of you in person. And, so, my thing was, you

         25  know what? If I'm ineligible, and it doesn't work,
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          2  fine. Tell me in the beginning of the school year.

          3  Give me two months' notice. What I have here is I've

          4  got this intricate system. Okay? If you've got

          5  single parents you have an intricate system, and if

          6  you break one part of that system, the whole web

          7  falls apart. So, you're going to give me two days'

          8  notice to find a new after school program, because

          9  you're not going to drop my child there. You're

         10  going to find me two days' notice to find a new

         11  babysitter because somebody has got to take my child

         12  on the days that she goes to her dad's house from

         13  the after school program to her father's house. Now

         14  you've got an after school program losing a person,

         15  you've got a babysitter losing money and you've got

         16  me and my ex-husband jumping through hoops trying to

         17  make changes.

         18                 So, again, if I have to make changes,

         19  I'm willing to make changes. Like a reasonable

         20  person I picked up the phone, I called OPT. I did

         21  this, I think we had like in December there was a

         22  thing, you have to choose a MetroCard or a bus.

         23  Again, who does this work for, okay? We don't all

         24  have these easy things. So, I take my child to

         25  school on the subway. I need a MetroCard. I'm a
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          2  taxpayer, I'm entitled to it. And then she takes the

          3  bus to her after school program. I need both.

          4                 So, I call OPT, and they basically

          5  said, you know, you're not eligible for both, but

          6  you know what? Don't tell anybody I said this to

          7  you, just let your kid get on the bus. Okay, I'll do

          8  that, right? I don't think it's unethical and it's

          9  not costing any money.

         10                 So, then I wait and see how the bus

         11  turns out, the same bus that used to pick my

         12  daughter up at school, 20 minutes later leave her

         13  off at her after school program, now takes two and a

         14  half hours, does not drop her off at the after

         15  school program, drops her off at what would be the

         16  pick-up if I had her on the bus in the morning,

         17  which I don't. Two and a half hours.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: That's crazy.

         19                 MS. HOWARD: It's insane.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Right. I'm

         21  sorry, you have to wrap up. I'm so sorry.

         22                 MS. HOWARD: I'm so sorry. Then it

         23  gets to the second point which is the complete lack

         24  of responsiveness. And I think that we've seen from

         25  the testimony here, technocrats, bureaucrats. Now,

                                                            173

          1  EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEES

          2  what I heard Joel Klein say is we want to save money

          3  and get rid of bureaucracy. When I called to attempt

          4  to dialogue, and I'm speaking with a lot of passion

          5  right now and I sound angry. I was calm and cool and

          6  I called OPT and I said, you know what? I'm sure

          7  people are calling and screaming at you, and I don't

          8  want to scream. I want to problem solve. I'd like

          9  some information about the route, because clearly it

         10  can't take two and a half hours. Maybe there's

         11  another bus that's already there. I'm not asking for

         12  a bus to be created for my ineligible child, but

         13  can't she get on a bus that's already in service,

         14  and he said, I cannot talk to you because your child

         15  gets a MetroCard. And then I said, well, let me just

         16  talk about the bus route. I cannot talk to you about

         17  someone else's child's bus route. That was

         18  responsiveness. I wrote a four and a half page

         19  single-spaced letter to the Chancellor and I

         20  e-mailed it, and I sat and the very next Monday I

         21  went to the Chancellor's Office and I demanded an

         22  appointment, and I was told you can't see anybody if

         23  you don't have an appointment, and I said, well,

         24  I'll wait, okay? And after about an hour, I decided,

         25  let me just call the Chancellor's Office. And for
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          2  those of you who may remember, this day was subzero,

          3  and I'm sitting there with the doors at Tweed, I was

          4  freezing, I was literally shivering. So, I called

          5  and I spoke to whoever answers the phone for the

          6  Chancellor's Office, and I said, you know, I'm

          7  sitting here and I'm freezing, I just want to talk

          8  to somebody. I just want to have a dialogue. And she

          9  said to me, just because you decided to leave your

         10  house, doesn't mean anybody needs to talk to you.

         11                 Now, I'm here to say at the end of

         12  all of this, if my daughter is not on a bus for

         13  valid reason, I will make do. I am fortunate enough

         14  because I am middle class and I can make do. But the

         15  fact that some parents who cannot make do is going

         16  to go to the Chancellor's Office and be told because

         17  you decided to get out of your house in this

         18  freezing day and come here doesn't mean anybody has

         19  to talk to you, and, yes, I would have liked

         20  Chancellor Klein to have heard that. So, I'm getting

         21  passionate and Councilman Liu understands that

         22  that's not about abusing anybody --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Passion is good.

         24                 MS. HOWARD: And I'm just here to say

         25  that they need to look about, if they really want to
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          2  get rid of the bureaucracy, they need to look at a

          3  bureaucratic mindset.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

          5                 MS. HOWARD: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Next, please.

          7  I'm so sorry. Just identify yourself.

          8                 MS. HECHT: My name is Marcel Hecht. I

          9  have two daughters, school-age daughters, one is

         10  eight years old, and one is five and a half, turning

         11  six. And awhile ago we moved from being two blocks

         12  away from schools, to a mile away from my school

         13  because of housing reasons, and since we moved we've

         14  been trying to, me and my school associates who

         15  works in that department has been trying to get bus

         16  transportation for our children. That's my baby.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Put your baby up

         18  there with you. It's appropriate. We're talking

         19  about children. That's appropriate. I heard her

         20  making music in the back before.

         21                 MS. HECHT: Right. But this is the

         22  case where we've been trying to get bus services,

         23  and wherever we go we're dealt with, computers

         24  dealing with computers. People at the phone are

         25  trained to be computers, and so when you try to talk
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          2  to them reasonably, they just say, well, this is

          3  what the computer tells me, I'm sorry I can't help

          4  you. And that's a problem because my children, in

          5  order to get to school, in order to get to their

          6  school bus stop, which is the closest bus stop to

          7  get to their school, they have to cross three major

          8  crossroads. We're talking about crossing St. John's,

          9  you know, the St. John's crossroad, Uttica Avenue

         10  crossroad, Eastern Parkway crossroad. We live in

         11  Crown Heights. And every time we try to bring it up

         12  to the OPT and they say, well, I don't know, this is

         13  the service, the bus already finishes a five mile

         14  radius, we can't do anything about it, end of story,

         15  there is no one to talk to anymore. And I find that

         16  very frustrating because by the time my kids get to

         17  the bus stop, they are so tired out, by the time

         18  they come to school, they're not interesting in

         19  focusing in. You know, they have problems focusing

         20  at school, and the teacher is like, I don't know,

         21  she's not focused, I'm like, well, of course she's

         22  not focused, she's so tired. By the time she's

         23  finished running to catch the school bus, you know,

         24  it's not easy for her.

         25                 And you know, even if there was
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          2  another opportunity, let's say there is a MetroCard

          3  thing, but my children cannot go by themselves and

          4  for me to pay to take them to school is also -- I

          5  said to OPT, is there a way for me to get a

          6  MetroCard so that I don't have to pay to get my kids

          7  to school every single day? They said, no, there is

          8  story. Nothing to talk about.

          9                 When the new bus services came

         10  across, I said, oh, great, here is a chart for me to

         11  fill out. I filled out the form. Send it into the

         12  Board of Ed and they'll take care of the problem.

         13  They'll see that there is an address here that needs

         14  to be addressed.

         15                 So, what ends up happening,

         16  afterwards I kept in contact with her, they said

         17  when she wanted to send them out, they told her, no,

         18  no, you keep all those forms. You just give me the

         19  addresses. She didn't need everyone, the parents to

         20  fill out those forms, she knows everyone's addresses

         21  already. So what do those forms accomplish? They

         22  didn't really accomplish much.

         23                 And it goes further that the fact is

         24  that when we came to find out if my daughter is

         25  eligible or not, she has like three different lists.
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          2  The main list --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Who are you

          4  referring to, the principal?

          5                 MS. HECHT: The administrator, the

          6  buses.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Of the buses.

          8                 MS. HECHT: Right.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: For the schools?

         10                 MS. HECHT: For the schools. That's

         11  her job, she takes care of all the bus duties and

         12  all these other things, but one of her main jobs is

         13  taking care of the buses, transportation. So, when

         14  she got the list, she said my name is on one list,

         15  there is one list where her name is on. One of my

         16  daughters. Only one of my daughters got on the list,

         17  on the main list. But when it came to the individual

         18  list, her names were not there. I called the

         19  Transportation Department, the complaint number. Not

         20  3-1-1, the other complaint number, and I said this

         21  is the story, my school administrator tells me that

         22  my daughter is on a main list, and I have the

         23  number. Here is the number. I read out the number. I

         24  lost the paper, it's somewhere in the hall, and what

         25  can you do about it? So, I gave them a number, and
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          2  they look up the number - I don't see any number.

          3  There is no such number on the list. So, although

          4  she was on one list, she wasn't on all the other

          5  lists. And my younger daughter was on no list,

          6  period. So, I don't know where that puts me. You

          7  know, if I have two daughters, why was one daughter

          8  put on the list and one was not. The second question

          9  is, why was she put on the main list, on the major

         10  list, and on the individual list, the eligible list,

         11  she was put on the ridership list, she just showed

         12  me the paper before, I saw my name on the ridership

         13  list, and on the eligible list she's not put.

         14                 There are some inconsistencies here

         15  with how they carried it out. And that's what I'm

         16  saying, what was the point of me filling out a

         17  paper, if they're not going to take into

         18  consideration and deal with it.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Right.

         20                 MS. HECHT: Take all these numbers,

         21  addresses, do the puzzle work and figure it out, but

         22  they didn't do that. So, my question remains, what

         23  was accomplished and how did you do it, and why?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, the

         25  Department of Education representative is here, so
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          2  maybe you should talk to them about your specific

          3  situation. Hopefully they will clear that up.

          4                 Who is your Council member, also?

          5  Where do you live at?

          6                 MS. HECHT: Letitia James.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Letitia James.

          8  Okay, why don't you talk, touch base with Jan Atwell

          9  so we can get your information, but also talk to the

         10  DOE person. Hopefully since they're not willing to

         11  go back to where it was before, hopefully your

         12  problem will be resolved.

         13                 They need to clear her situation up,

         14  and it needs to be done immediately. Not a week from

         15  now.

         16                 MS. HECHT: Right.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you very

         18  much.

         19                 MS. HECHT: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Next, please.

         21  Just identify yourself, if you don't mind.

         22                 MS. JAMES: Hi. My name is Mariama

         23  James, and I became involved --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Pull the mic up

         25  a little closer, please, and identify yourself
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          2  again. I'm so sorry.

          3                 MS. JAMES: My name is Mariama. My

          4  last name is James, and I became involved in this

          5  issue as a parent, although I've been pulled a

          6  little further into it as a member of the Executive

          7  Board at my school and at my housing complex, the

          8  Vice Chair of our Parent Association. But while I'd

          9  love to just go through my story and how this has

         10  directly impacted myself and my children, I think

         11  that since we're maybe pressed for time, it's more

         12  important that I mention some other things that you

         13  haven't heard yet that are kind of general.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes.

         15                 MS. JAMES: And one is that when you

         16  contact the Office of OPT, when I made that first

         17  phone call, before I did that, I first looked for my

         18  daughter's NYCID, which is the New York City

         19  Identification Number that students are all assigned

         20  when they enroll in school, thinking that I would

         21  need that number in order to complete the phone

         22  call. But all they asked for was the child's name

         23  and the name of the school. So to me that says any

         24  pervert could have gotten on the phone with any

         25  child's name, as long as they knew what school they
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          2  went to, and found out what bus they were going to

          3  be on and at what time and on what day, which is

          4  disgusting.

          5                 Further to that is that all the media

          6  attention that this concern has drawn is totally

          7  valid, but at the same time it's another

          8  announcement that children as young as seven have

          9  been stripped of their transportation and cell

         10  phones and are now traveling alone. So, come and get

         11  them.

         12                 There is something that I found

         13  interesting, where Kathleen Grimm said that all of

         14  the schools had been notified and all the parents

         15  had been notified. My child's school, the one that

         16  was directly affected, is within Tweed's district,

         17  it's about three blocks from here, and we had no

         18  clue until the bus driver started to call parents

         19  from his cell phone, saying, they're telling me that

         20  as of Monday, I can only take nine children with me

         21  to the school, and this was a school bus that

         22  actually had all of the school's elementary students

         23  that live on the east side being picked up from one

         24  stop and being taken together, about 45 students

         25  total, directly to the school, ended up on two split
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          2  school buses, one leaving at 7:08 in the morning,

          3  where school doesn't start until 8:50, and it was

          4  going to other schools first, and one leaving at

          5  8:11 going directly to the school, to come back on a

          6  school bus that's also combined with other schools,

          7  and half our children had been removed, displaced

          8  from the bus. And the students that were issued

          9  MetroCards are the students that fell between grades

         10  three and five, so children, you know, seven to 11

         11  years of age, they were given bus MetroCards where

         12  there is no public bus stop going from the east side

         13  of Lower Manhattan to the west side of Lower

         14  Manhattan, unless you walk to Chambers Street.

         15                 So, we're talking about people that

         16  live as far east as Pearl and Hanover, having to

         17  walk to Chambers Street or to Chinatown to catch the

         18  M22 in order to get to Greenwich Street, by then

         19  you've pretty much walked to the school. So, it

         20  doesn't make sense. The MetroCard was completely

         21  useless and they shouldn't have been removed from

         22  the bus anyway because of their age.

         23                 Parents of children ages 12 and under

         24  leave their children at home, and God forbid

         25  something happens to those children, those parents
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          2  go to jail. Why is the Mayor allowed to abuse our

          3  children? This is child abuse. This is child

          4  neglect. And it sickens me to my very core.

          5                 And they also said this was not

          6  affecting children that were in special ed. Well,

          7  children that are in general ed but receive special

          8  ed accommodations would have an IEP. These are

          9  general ed students that have been removed from the

         10  bus, even though they received special ed

         11  accommodations.

         12                 Why? Because there is a field on the

         13  IEP where you can check off requesting

         14  transportation, but because that was not necessary

         15  because they were always receiving their

         16  transportation, that box was not checked off on most

         17  people's IEPs. So your child who has either a

         18  learning disability, an emotional disability, a

         19  behavior disability, or all of the above, and again,

         20  may be as young as seven years old, with a handicap

         21  is again traveling by themselves. What they said,

         22  that it doesn't affect special ed, that's not true.

         23                 It may not affect district 75 as in

         24  special ed itself, but it does affect general ed

         25  students that receive special ed accommodations.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you. I'm

          3  sorry, I'm being forced out of here so I'm trying to

          4  move it along. I apologize.

          5                 MS. JAMES: Okay. I hope I got the

          6  most important things out.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, if you

          8  come later to the hearing, we're going to have

          9  another hearing. We're going to hear from this last

         10  parent, and then we're going to close for this

         11  session. We're going to begin at 5:00 across the

         12  street.

         13                 Just identify yourself or the

         14  organization or the child's name you're here to

         15  represent.

         16                 MS. CHANIN: Hi. My name is Jill

         17  Chanin. My name is Jordan Chanin Albanese. I'm sorry

         18  I just got back here. I was here all day listening

         19  to what was going on in the proceedings, but I had

         20  to go all the way to the Upper West Side on 86th

         21  Street, get my daughter and rush right back down

         22  here so I would have a chance to speak to you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, let me

         24  thank you for coming back. And just speak a little

         25  louder. I've asked them to start the process because
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          2  we're running way late. So, don't mind the noise but

          3  speak a little louder.

          4                 MS. CHANIN: Okay. We live in Chelsea.

          5  Jordan goes to the Solomon Schecter School of

          6  Manhattan, which is a Hebrew Day School. We did not

          7  get any notification. We received a phone call

          8  around 3:00 in the afternoon that Friday telling me

          9  do not show up at the bus stop on Monday morning. So

         10  I had no prior knowledge, was not prepared for this.

         11  I filled out all the proper paperwork at the end of

         12  last session of school, and that was the end of the

         13  whole proceedings.

         14                 Apparently, a lot of the Hebrew day

         15  schools, I just had spoken to the principal, we do

         16  have a complaint number, he officially received a

         17  complaint number but has not gotten a response from

         18  the Board of Ed on this particular subject. So, we

         19  are -- I spent four hours a day, and I only live

         20  downtown, getting my daughter back and forth to

         21  school. I'm a single parent, trying to work. I'm out

         22  of work. I had to cancel interviews so this way I

         23  can take my daughter and spend four hours a day on

         24  the train taking her back and forth.

         25                 So, I have gotten nowhere, as far as
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          2  I have written letters, I have called. We were on

          3  New York 1 News about a week and a half ago, and on

          4  Inside City Hall with Domenic Carter, who is trying

          5  to help us out. Christine Quinn's office invited us

          6  here today, and everyone has been trying to help us

          7  out but we actually have gotten no results. We

          8  called 3-1-1 numerous of times, all I've gotten was

          9  the run-around. I have gotten zero results on 3-1-1.

         10  As a matter of fact, after 45 minutes of speaking,

         11  holding on the telephone, I wound up with the same

         12  agent who told me, I remember you, you live on 30th

         13  Street. We have gotten absolutely nowhere. So, I'm

         14  hoping today at some point we will be able to get

         15  some place. And as far as my daughter, she just

         16  turned ten. She told me that they will give her a

         17  MetroCard to go on the subway. Now, it takes us two

         18  subways to get up to her school. I am not sending a

         19  child on a public subway system at this stage of her

         20  life. I am afraid even at 15 to send her, let alone

         21  at ten years of age. The sexual predators in this

         22  City, on the trains, all over, we do not know who is

         23  riding, who is coming and going on the trains. It's

         24  a safety issue, as well as my daughter gets special

         25  tutoring in the morning, she is missing that because
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          2  she came to school too late. She's getting home a

          3  lot later than she should be. She's exhausted. She

          4  can't even complete her homework in the evening

          5  because we're getting home so late.

          6                 This has been, not just an

          7  inconvenience, it's been a hardship as well. And as

          8  a single parent, everything, unfortunately, falls on

          9  my back, and I just have been all over the map as

         10  far as asking for help, and I'm hoping today with

         11  your help, Mr. Jackson, Councilman, and Council

         12  Members as well, that hopefully I will get some

         13  place today. You know, I'm here at your mercy

         14  basically. I don't know what to say. I'm besides

         15  myself. And just because she goes to a private day

         16  school, doesn't mean that I'm not a parent in need

         17  as well.

         18                 So, thank you very much for your

         19  help. Hopefully this will solve the situation.

         20  Hopefully we will get somewhere in the City. Parents

         21  all over the City have been all displaced with the

         22  situation, and we're just trying to get our lives

         23  back in order basically. So, thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, let me

         25  thank you for coming in. Clearly it's a mess, and
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          2  obviously, with your testimony, and the testimony of

          3  the other parents that have expressed their

          4  frustration at the way these changes are being

          5  implemented, it leaves so much to be desired and

          6  clearly needs to be fixed right away.

          7                 MS. HECHT: I have one more question.

          8  I'm sorry to interrupt.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Go ahead.

         10                 MS. HECHT: Why is it that the

         11  principal of the school cannot get a phone call back

         12  from the Department of Education? He has put several

         13  phone calls regarding other families in the school,

         14  and every day I have spoken to him, and we have not

         15  gotten an answer. And today he told me he finally

         16  got a complaint number. Apparently you get a

         17  complaint number.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Complaint

         19  number, yes.

         20                 MS. HECHT: Right. In the meantime

         21  we've gotten absolutely no response from the DOE.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, we're

         23  going to have one of the staff. Jeremy. You're going

         24  to talk to a Jeremy Hoffman, who is this fellow

         25  right here.
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          2                 MS. HECHT: Okay. Yes, I know who he

          3  is. He's been very helpful to me today.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes. And we're

          5  going to work on that situation with you and with

          6  all of the other parents. As I said, you have a DOE

          7  representative in the back there. She is still here.

          8  She is the Director of Government Affairs. But also

          9  Jeremy Hoffman, who is Assistant Director four our

         10  Legislative Affairs is going to work with you also.

         11                 MS. HECHT: Okay. And real quick, I'm

         12  sorry. The paperwork. I'm trying to fit everything

         13  in because we're rushing and I'm forgetting things.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes.

         15                 MS. HECHT: The paperwork. As I guess

         16  a private or a day school, we have not gotten all

         17  those particular -- earlier in the day you heard

         18  that the Chancellor here said they sent out the

         19  papers.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Notices, yes.

         21                 MS. HECHT: We did not receive that as

         22  a day school.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You didn't

         24  receive it at all?

         25                 MS. HECHT: I did not receive anything
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          2  as a parent. And I asked the school. They did not

          3  get all those notices.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Right.

          5                 MS. HECHT: We did not get anything

          6  via backpack or via e-mail. So, I don't know, maybe

          7  in the public school, but I think they forgot other

          8  schools as well in this particular situation.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, let me

         10  thank you and your daughter for coming in. I know

         11  you were here earlier and you heard the Chancellor

         12  and the Deputy Mayor and the Deputy Chancellor. And

         13  you keep fighting on behalf of your daughter's

         14  rights, because clearly we need parents like you

         15  that are going to stand up and fight and insist that

         16  your daughter receive the services that she

         17  rightfully deserve.

         18                 MS. HECHT: Okay. And another thing. I

         19  feel that they wanted us just to give up. I felt

         20  that, you know, wanted me to give up, and I refused

         21  to give up.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Refuse to give

         23  up.

         24                 Thank you very much.

         25                 MS. HECHT: Thank you for your time.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council Member

          3  John Liu, the Chair of the Transportation Committee,

          4  let me thank you, buddy, for putting forward that we

          5  must hold this hearing immediately, and my other

          6  colleagues that insisted to hold the hearing

          7  immediately. And let me just thank all of the staff

          8  involved in putting this together.

          9                 We are going to reconvene in about

         10  ten minutes over at 250 Broadway on the 14th Floor.

         11  And with that, this meeting is now recessed until

         12  5:00 p.m. at 250 Broadway.

         13                 (Recess taken. Time noted: 4:50 p.m.)

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Good evening.

         15  This is the second part of the hearing in which we

         16  had today. It began at 1:00 p.m., where Deputy Mayor

         17  Dennis Walcott, Chancellor Joel Klein, and Deputy

         18  Chancellor Kathleen Grimm came and gave testimony

         19  and heard opening statements by myself, by Council

         20  Member John Liu, Chair of the Transportation

         21  Committee, and Betsy Gotbaum, the Public Advocate.

         22  And they answered questions, approximately 25

         23  members of the City Council who were in attendance

         24  this afternoon, and the first question that I asked

         25  them was, considering the mess, considering all of
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          2  the complaints, considering the freezing weather

          3  when they implemented this particular change in the

          4  busing situation, will they revert back to what it

          5  was before, and then consult with the bus company

          6  and parents before -- Nick, can you come around,

          7  please, if you don't mind -- consult with the bus

          8  company representative and parents in order to move

          9  forward? And the answer was no, they will not. And

         10  what that said to me was that the arrogance of the

         11  Mayor and the Deputy Mayor and the Chancellor not to

         12  consider what parents are saying, and to just move

         13  forward, in my opinion, like they have blindfolders

         14  on, thinking that they're doing the right thing on

         15  behalf of the children of New York City, is not the

         16  type of leadership that we deserve in New York City.

         17  And in fact, I've communicated loud and clear at the

         18  hearing that the confidence in the people of New

         19  York City had been shaken as a result of this bus

         20  mess that we're in. And even though a representative

         21  from the Department of Education stayed for the

         22  entire first part of the hearing, which several

         23  panels of leaders of community-based organizations

         24  and parents spoke, it is clear that problems are not

         25  resolved. There are still many, many problems that
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          2  are out there that are unresolved, and people

          3  testified at the amount of time that they have spent

          4  on the phone, trying to contact and resolve

          5  situations, to no avail. And they, immediately after

          6  that, went to the Department of Education's Director

          7  of Government Affairs to try to communicate with her

          8  as to what their specific situations were, and

          9  hopefully trying to get them resolved, and only time

         10  will tell.

         11                 But it's obvious from their direct

         12  responses to the questions that have been put

         13  forward by my colleagues and myself, they're not

         14  willing to be flexible. They want to be rigid and

         15  move forward with the goal of trying to save money,

         16  but I don't think that they're going to save money

         17  in this situation. In fact, they have already lost

         18  ground. Because any time that you're trying to move

         19  forward with reform and you don't consult with your

         20  people that are going to be impacted, then you are

         21  not really a team player.

         22                 And I think in this situation we need

         23  individuals that are open minded, that are team

         24  players, that are transparent in the process, and

         25  they have not been.
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          2                 In fact, we've asked them for the

          3  report, Alvarez and Marsal, a consultant company, to

          4  share with us and show us that you really mean

          5  business, that you're willing to be transparent in

          6  this, and they have responded to us that they will

          7  not give it to us, it's an internal document, even

          8  though a consultant gave it to them, and we are

          9  pursuing that through every means possible.

         10                 With that, I want to know whether or

         11  not my colleagues, let me introduce my colleagues

         12  that are here, Council Member Jim Oddo from Staten

         13  Island, and Council Member Mike McMahon from Staten

         14  Island, along with the various staff, Phil Hom here

         15  as the Counsel, to my left, to John Liu, the Chair

         16  of the Finance Committee (sic), Scheherazade Salimi

         17  -- oh, Transportation, I'm so sorry. I'm getting a

         18  little tired. Scheherazade Salimi, to my right is

         19  Counsel to the Education Committee; Jennifer Culp is

         20  the Legislative Policy Analyst; and Regina

         21  Poreda-Ryan is the Finance Analyst.

         22                 My colleagues, do you have any

         23  comments?

         24                 Jim Oddo from Staten Island.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Can I just make
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          2  one quick comment? That at 1:00 when we first

          3  started, I was all the way to the right, and now

          4  that we're at 5:00, I'm moving to the left. When I

          5  get tired and weary I tend to move to the left, and

          6  on this path I might be considering voting for John

          7  by 8:00 tonight. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council Member

          9  Mike McMahon.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: I can't top

         11  that. Just I will say, on behalf of everyone, Mr.

         12  Chairman, you and your staff are doing a great job

         13  today, and let's keep going.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you. Our

         15  first witness is Chaya Adler from Rennert, Genuth.

         16  Chaya, are you here? Please come forward.

         17                 Are you together with someone else?

         18  Okay, Hinda Kreitman. I hope I didn't mess up your

         19  name. Please come forward. Have a seat over there.

         20  And will you just introduce yourself before you

         21  speak and the name of the organization? Or if you

         22  have a child in the system, just tell us who you

         23  represent.

         24                 Okay, just use the mic.

         25                 MS. ADLER: Am I supposed to state the
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          2  names of all the neighbors and exact locations? Or

          3  just the basic complaint?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You can say that

          5  if you wish. It's up to you. It's up to you.

          6                 MS. ADLER: Okay, fine. I'm here to

          7  represent -- actually, I'm here to oppose the school

          8  bus stop that has been eliminated on my street

          9  corner.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Tell us your

         11  name and what organization you're representing.

         12                 MS. ADLER: It's the Hader School

         13  (phonetic) in Brooklyn, New York. A religious

         14  school.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         16                 MS. ADLER: A religious boys' school.

         17  There has been a bus stop on Catalyou (phonetic) and

         18  East Third Street and has been serving ten families

         19  with 24 children from five through ten years old or

         20  so. This bus stop has been eliminated. Now basically

         21  these families all have large families. The girls go

         22  to one school, the boys go to another school. The

         23  bus, one has been several blocks one way, and

         24  several blocks the other way. It's impossible for me

         25  to bring my girls to one bus stop and walk in the
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          2  other direction, crossing several streets to the

          3  other side, all at the same time. Plus, I have to be

          4  at home for day care pick-ups. Catalyou and East

          5  Third Street has always been a central location for

          6  basically up and down a few houses. Now I have to

          7  try to accommodate my children crossing three

          8  streets. There aren't any crossing guards in that

          9  neighborhood. I mean, there has been for about a

         10  week, and I don't see her around anymore. I'm just

         11  basically at a loss as to how to handle the

         12  situation.

         13                 This goes for all these families,

         14  it's ten families, and I sent letters, called, wrote

         15  the children's names, their ID numbers, their school

         16  numbers, the school has called and basically they

         17  said at this point they had no intention of putting

         18  back any of the bus stops.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, where did

         20  the children meet the bus before?

         21                 MS. ADLER: Catalyou and East Third

         22  Street has been a central location. All the mothers

         23  made arrangements. It happens that there is a day

         24  care right in that neighborhood, too. So, for me, I

         25  brought my children to the bus on Catalyou and East
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          2  Third, walked to Catalyou and East Fourth Street,

          3  brought my baby to the day care place. Now I have to

          4  go C on East Fifth (phonetic), Catalyou and East

          5  Fourth, back to Catalyou and East Second for the

          6  girls. It's just very chaotic all in ten minutes to

          7  handle all this.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, what are the

          9  parents doing with respects to considering that the

         10  Department of Education is not being flexible and

         11  not considering the circumstances that you have just

         12  put forward?

         13                 MS. ADLER: Well, some of the mothers

         14  are trying to car pool. Actually few have sent them

         15  with car services, because the mother on Ditmas and

         16  East Third had been told to go to Ditmas and East

         17  Eighth, meaning crossing over Ocean Parkway. And she

         18  teaches at 8:30 in Borough Park, and it is chaotic,

         19  what can I tell you, especially for this

         20  neighborhood. A lot of children, a lot of parents,

         21  not enough crossing guards. And we have children on

         22  the a.m. routes, 3:00 routes and 4:00 routes. We've

         23  spoken to each bus driver along the routes, they

         24  bypass Catalyou, there is no way they can get from

         25  Avenue C to Avenue F without bypassing Catalyou. It
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          2  wouldn't be anything out of the way. And they're

          3  pleading. They say we wish we could stop, it's not a

          4  designated stop and we cannot stop. They saw me

          5  waiting at the corner there with the stroller and

          6  they said you'll have to go down to Avenue C. We

          7  can't stop.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Even though they

          9  pass you by?

         10                 MS. ADLER: She was waiting on Avenue

         11  C, I was waiting on Catalyou, hoping that we could

         12  come to some -- and he said, I'm sorry. He's from

         13  Atlantic Express, he says, don't do this to me. I

         14  can be fired if I stop. Please don't do this to me.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Now you've

         16  called 3-1-1?

         17                 MS. ADLER: We've called 3-1-1. We've

         18  called DOT. We've e-mailed to -- Eric Goldstein

         19  actually was pretty positive. He says at this point

         20  they're not adding new stuff and he can just pass it

         21  on for a variance at the OPT, and I'm still waiting

         22  and hoping.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: How long have

         24  you been dealing with this situation, since the

         25  beginning? This is the third week.
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          2                 MS. ADLER: Absolutely. Almost every

          3  day I'm either calling or e-mailing.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And it's not

          5  only you, but approximately ten other families that

          6  have children that the boys had to be picked up at

          7  one location and the girls at another location. So,

          8  you're trying to split yourself in half in order to

          9  try to go to both places?

         10                 MS. ADLER: And getting to work on

         11  time an also day care pick-ups for the infants, yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And who have you

         13  communicated with at the Department of Education, if

         14  anyone?

         15                 MS. ADLER: Unfortunately, I did not

         16  take down any names. The secretary in the school has

         17  been very helpful, and she was speaking with Diane.

         18  I forget the name. Diane, I think from the OPT, who

         19  was only able to help the school in putting back

         20  stops that have been omitted either from the PM

         21  routes or the AM routes. But if eliminated all

         22  together, she said she can't put anything back on.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And who is the

         24  City Council member in your area? Do you know? Is

         25  that Simcha Felder? The reason why I'm asking you
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          2  that, because Joel Klein, the Chancellor, and Deputy

          3  Mayor Dennis Walcott, and Deputy Chancellor Kathleen

          4  Grimm were at the hearing this afternoon. It started

          5  from 1:00 to about quarter to 5:00. And they

          6  basically said that they, when they answered

          7  questions to the press, they said the constituency

          8  reach out to their elected officials because they

          9  are talking phone calls and inquiries from elected

         10  officials to try to address the situations. And we

         11  have heard testimony that people called 3-1-1,

         12  people who have e-mailed, written letters and still

         13  haven't gotten matters resolved, and I just want to

         14  make sure that I communicate with your elected

         15  officials to try to work on this situation on your

         16  behalf and on behalf of the other parents that you

         17  are communicating with.

         18                 MS. ADLER: Thank you very much. I

         19  believe it may be Simcha Felder. I did call his

         20  office, and they said at this point they're asking

         21  the schools and the individual parents to try to see

         22  what they could do, and in about two weeks' time he

         23  said I should get back to him.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, let me

         25  just ask, is there a Department of Education
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          2  official here in the hearing right now this evening?

          3                 (Speaking from the audience. Not

          4  using the microphone.)

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, and

          6  they've asked you to come here. Good. Well, what I

          7  would like to do is to help facilitate the

          8  resolution, if possible, since they are adamant that

          9  they're not turning around. Well, maybe they need to

         10  look at your situation and the situation of families

         11  that you represent, for a possible variance with the

         12  regulations and rules that they've put into effect.

         13                 So, Anthony, Jan, can you get the

         14  details from these parents here, all of their

         15  contact information. But also we're going to put

         16  them into contact with the lady who is an employee

         17  of the Department of Education, I think Office of

         18  Pupil Transportation; is that correct?

         19                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE:

         20  Regional Operating Center.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Regional

         22  Operating Center. And hopefully we'll take a look at

         23  your situation, we will find out what your addresses

         24  are, who your Council member is, and I will be in

         25  contact with that individual to try to help
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          2  facilitate a resolution to this. Because it's a

          3  nightmare that you're facing.

          4                 So, let me just thank both of you for

          5  coming in and advocating for yourself and your

          6  children and all the other children that you are

          7  here representing this evening.

          8                 MS. ADLER: I just want to mention

          9  that all the parents would have come down, aside

         10  from the fact that it's suppertime.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes.

         12                 MS. ADLER: Homework time, bedtime, so

         13  they asked us to please represent them. But there

         14  are lots of parents out there, it's not only us,

         15  that are very disappointed and frustrated and just

         16  are going crazy basically.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, please let

         18  them know that the members of the City Council are

         19  listening. We are going to share that information

         20  with the Department of Education, and work on your

         21  situation to see if it can be resolved.

         22                 MS. ADLER: Thank you so much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you for

         24  coming in. Thank you.

         25                 And next we'll hear from Joanne
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          2  Jareme, Staten Island Federation of Catholic

          3  Schools.

          4                 Oh, I'm sorry, before you leave, let

          5  me ask you a question, ladies.

          6                 When were you notified of the

          7  changes? If you don't mind coming back for a second?

          8  If you don't mind, please come back for a second. I

          9  meant to ask this question. I wanted to know on the

         10  record, as far as notification, as far as

         11  notification, as parents of children in the school

         12  system, when were you notified, if at all, about the

         13  proposed changes? Or in this particular case, it's

         14  not a change, it's an elimination of a bus stop, and

         15  it's a change to another bus stop; when were you

         16  notified?

         17                 MS. ADLER: The Thursday before it

         18  actually took effect. We got routes, a list of

         19  different routes and Catalyou and East Third Street

         20  was indeed on that route. Then we got notice that

         21  they were going to be working all weekend, because

         22  there were several complications and mistakes, et

         23  cetera, and to our dismay Sunday we got phone calls

         24  from the school not to go to Catalyou and East Third

         25  Street Monday morning, because over the weekend they
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          2  unfortunately they decided to eliminate the Catalyou

          3  and East Third Street stop.

          4                 One of the excuses they said is that

          5  there are too few children at the stop, there are 24

          6  children at the stop.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Is that what

          8  they gave you, there was too few children?

          9                 MS. ADLER: They said several of the

         10  children live between Catalyou and C so they can

         11  walk with stop on C and East Fifth Street. And the

         12  other children, they said there were too few

         13  children between Ditmas and Catalyou using that

         14  stop. It seems to me that the two families, one has

         15  three boys, and one has maybe three or four boys,

         16  I'm not sure if that would make it six or seven

         17  children, are still in the database in Borough Park,

         18  even they moved a good four years ago, and filled

         19  out forms. They told these two parents to go to 16th

         20  Avenue and 39th Street near their old home, because

         21  their data wasn't updated yet.

         22                 And I would like to just say about

         23  herself, she has one child who is supposed to be on

         24  Ditmas and East Eighth Street when we gave in the

         25  number, and the other child on C and East Fifth
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          2  Street.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Same family,

          4  same school, and different locations. How are you

          5  supposed to do that?

          6                 MS. KREITMAN: Well, I'm not doing

          7  that. I'm putting them both on C and East Fifth. But

          8  that's one woman I spoke to said --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Can you speak

         10  into the mic. Just identify yourself for the record.

         11                 MS. KREITMAN: I'm Hinda Kreitman. One

         12  woman I spoke to said I can't put the one that's

         13  supposed to be at Ditmas and C and East Fifth, I

         14  can't put him on C and East Fifth. I said, well, I'm

         15  not going to Ditmas and East Eighth. I can't be

         16  here. I have to be home for one pick-up. I have to

         17  be at the corner ten minutes before that for another

         18  one, and then I have to run to C and East Fifth, I'm

         19  not going to Ditmas and East Eighth.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: It doesn't make

         21  sense. It's crazy.

         22                 MS. KREITMAN: Officially, I spoke to

         23  someone at the OPT, and officially it's two

         24  different stops, two different buses. It's not even

         25  the same bus.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And your two

          3  children are in the same family? Same family, same

          4  house, same school. But different buses? Does that

          5  make sense to you?

          6                 MS. KREITMAN: Not at all. But they

          7  gave me route numbers.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So what are you

          9  doing?

         10                 MS. KREITMAN: Putting them both on C

         11  and East -- I'm not going to Ditmas and East Eighth,

         12  but I'm going, you know, I end up getting to work 15

         13  minutes late because I have to be at the corner for

         14  one child, then I run for the boys to wait to C and

         15  East Fifth, and I come home and wait for day care

         16  pick-ups. I can't do that. And then I'm supposed to

         17  go to Ditmas and East Eighth. I mean, I'm not doing

         18  that, but there is just no way for me to be in two

         19  places within ten minutes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And have you

         21  attempted to resolve this particular matter at the

         22  Department of Education?

         23                 MS. KREITMAN: Yes. And they actually

         24  told me that I should call the OPT, and I did. I

         25  spoke with somebody, James Popkin.

                                                            209

          1  EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And what did he

          3  say?

          4                 MS. KREITMAN: There is no way to put

          5  the bus stop back. He also told me there were too

          6  few children.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Did they say to

          8  you, for example, oh, you have two children and

          9  they're in the same household, same school?

         10                 MS. KREITMAN: He said it makes no

         11  sense. He told me that it was okay to put them both

         12  on C and East Fifth, even know I was doing that

         13  before I spoke to him. While the first woman I spoke

         14  to, I didn't get her name, she told me, no, you need

         15  to bring to C and East Fifth, and, you know, Ditmas

         16  and East Eighth.

         17                 So, I was supposed to be at Ditmas

         18  and East Eighth at 8:37, and 8:44 I had to be at C

         19  and East Fifth. Those were the times that they gave

         20  me.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: If you have both

         22  your children and you go into one bus stop, and the

         23  bus is late, how are you going to take your child to

         24  the other bus?

         25                 MS. KREITMAN: I guess they were
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          2  waiting for me to figure that out. But I'm just not

          3  doing that.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

          5                 MS. KREITMAN: I can't do that.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. So, in

          7  essence, you were notified Thursday and the bus stop

          8  was on the list on Thursday, during the week, and

          9  the course of the weekend they eliminated the bus

         10  stop and you only found out Sunday afternoon for a

         11  Monday morning pick-up; is that correct? And that's

         12  not only you, but all of the families impacted for

         13  the 24 children, can I have that letter, please? Do

         14  you have that copy for me? Thank you.

         15                 MS. ADLER: Regarding the too few

         16  children who live between Ditmas and Catalyou, being

         17  that their databases are not updated, although each

         18  parent, we did fill out forms with the updated

         19  information. I e-mailed, and I have listed here,

         20  one, two, three -- eight children who live between

         21  Ditmas and Catalyou and East Third and East Fourth

         22  Street, using the Catalyou and East Third Street bus

         23  stop. They said too few children at that bus stop,

         24  it has been eliminated.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, thank you
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          2  for advocating for yourselves and other parents and

          3  the children, your children and other children in

          4  the neighborhood.

          5                 And Anthony is going to get all of

          6  the information and I'm going to find out this

          7  evening who your Council Member is, and I'm going to

          8  communicate directly with your Council member, and

          9  also the Department of Education employee is going

         10  to take some information. Hopefully we'll resolve

         11  this situation.

         12                 MS. ADLER: Thank you.

         13                 MS. KREITMAN: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you,

         15  ladies.

         16                 And next we're going to hear from

         17  Joanne, Staten Island Federation of Catholic

         18  Schools.

         19                 Welcome, Joanne.

         20                 MS. JAREME: Hi. Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: What's your last

         22  name?

         23                 MS. JAREME: Jareme.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Jareme.

         25                 MS. JAREME: My name is Joanne Jarema,
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          2  and I am President of the Federation, Staten Island

          3  Federation of Catholic School Parents.

          4                 The bus situation has caused chaos on

          5  Staten Island, especially for the Catholic school

          6  community. As a parent, I am disgusted with the

          7  Department of Education, as they have thrown the

          8  safety of our children to the wind. We have children

          9  who show up one hour late to school, parents have

         10  been docked wages because they missed work because

         11  they need to take their children to school, and some

         12  parents have no choice but to pull their children

         13  out of one Catholic school into another because they

         14  could be bussed.

         15                 I have to say that Councilman McMahon

         16  and Oddo have been wonderful. They have helped so

         17  many Catholic school parents get variances, but we

         18  need to fix the problem. The one thing we're kind of

         19  curious about is where this quarter mile rule comes

         20  into effect. My daughter is nine, she was taking the

         21  bus, I received a letter. They moved the bus stop

         22  five blocks further. She wasn't eligible for bus

         23  service. They issued my nine year old a MetroCard.

         24                 When I called OPT, I was told that

         25  they didn't expect me to put my daughter on a City
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          2  bus but she wasn't eligible for bus service.

          3                 It's just very disheartening and

          4  disturbing that we are taxpayers, and just because

          5  we choose to send our children to Catholic School,

          6  doesn't mean that we shouldn't get bus service. I

          7  believe the Catholic schools were hit harder than

          8  the public schools. We have some schools that are

          9  filling out variances because they have to cross a

         10  major street like Amboy Road, and it's very

         11  dangerous. We have parents who have to leave 45

         12  minutes to go pick their children up because the

         13  traffic is so bad that the kids can't get on the

         14  bus. So, now you have backed up traffic, parents are

         15  losing wages, you have issues of child care at this

         16  point, children go to school to get breakfast, some

         17  children who get breakfast don't even get there on

         18  time for breakfast. And we just really don't know

         19  what to do.

         20                 The Department of Education made

         21  these cuts, when they looked at the paper, did they

         22  realize they were looking at a child. They're

         23  children. I mean, I don't know whether the

         24  Department of Education, what criteria was used when

         25  they made these cuts. How do you issue a first
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          2  grader a MetroCard? I mean, what about the safety

          3  aspect of it? They really expect a parent to put the

          4  child a City bus? And some parents have no choice,

          5  and I understand that, but for myself personally,

          6  before I got the variance, and Councilman McMahon

          7  helped me with that. His office has been terrific.

          8                 I was either going to pull my

          9  daughter out of the school, or drop her off at 6:30

         10  in the morning before I go to work, because I can't

         11  lose my job, because I'm a single parent.

         12                 I need to have my job, and when you

         13  call the Department of Education or you call OPT,

         14  nobody has any answers, and no one knows where this

         15  quarter mile rule came into effect, and that's

         16  what's so baffling. I mean, I don't know if you know

         17  if it's on the books or where it came from, but I

         18  always thought it was the distance from the school

         19  to the home.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, you know,

         21  you're expressing the frustration that other

         22  representatives from Staten Island have expressed

         23  previous this afternoon. And in fact, Council Member

         24  Oddo and Council Member McMahon have looked at the

         25  regulations and there is nothing relating to that in
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          2  there, and there is not only that, but they said

          3  that our children are not pigeons or crows that can

          4  fly from one direct point to another, as far as to

          5  wherever the bus pick-up is. We have to, you know,

          6  walk corners and teach our children how to cross and

          7  look and what have you. And, so, it doesn't make

          8  sense, and clearly they, meaning the Department of

          9  Education, the representatives, including the Mayor,

         10  are not willing to budget on this, even though for

         11  the third week there are so many complaints that are

         12  unresolved, and as you said, people, parents are

         13  jeopardizing their employment, parents are late,

         14  children are missing breakfast, children are missing

         15  extended day programs.

         16                 MS. JAREME: Actually, we've

         17  calculated that Staten Island students have missed a

         18  total of three days so far, just from going, from

         19  being late.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Just from being

         21  late.

         22                 MS. JAREME: I mean, Catholic school

         23  started 7:50 in the morning, most of the grammar

         24  schools. Buses aren't pulling up til 9:00. So, these

         25  kids are missing a whole hour of education.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: What would you

          3  like, as a parent, what would you like the

          4  Department of Education or the Mayor to do about it?

          5                 MS. JAREME: I would like them to put

          6  the buses back the way they were, and I think if he

          7  needs to make cuts, I'm sure there is somewhere in

          8  the Department of Education these cuts can come

          9  from.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, I've said

         11  that the contract that they have at Alvarez and

         12  Marsal for $15.8 million, if they eliminate that

         13  contract, they will get all the savings for two

         14  years, and thus parents could be happy and go along

         15  with their lives. Lives are complicated enough,

         16  where you change things in midstream, you think that

         17  everything is okay.

         18                 MS. JAREME: Well, it's funny you said

         19  that because I called the consultant company. I

         20  wanted to know what criteria they used.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You called

         22  Alvarez and Marsal?

         23                 MS. JAREME: Yes. I spoke to the

         24  receptionist and she wasn't too happy with me. But I

         25  wanted to know what criteria they used. And I was
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          2  told they were setting up a committee to answer

          3  these questions, and once this committee was set up

          4  they would get back to me.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, I don't

          6  believe it. And in fact, we've asked the Mayor, the

          7  Deputy Mayor and Joel Klein, we've asked the Mayor,

          8  Deputy Mayor and Joel Klein, we asked them to please

          9  give us the report from this consulting company in

         10  all transparency so we can see, you know, if there

         11  is a roadmap that they have, as far as education

         12  reform, because the Mayor talked about it in the

         13  State of the City address. I want to be able to see

         14  envisioned his roadmap towards education reform.

         15  Quite frankly, I haven't seen it. And if this is an

         16  example of it, I don't want any part of it

         17  whatsoever. And I know that I speak for all of the

         18  parents that are riding the bus, they probably feel

         19  the same way.

         20                 MS. JAREME: We do. And what's

         21  frustrating about the whole thing is that when you

         22  call the OPT and they'll fill out the variances for

         23  you, but they don't grant many variances. I mean,

         24  there are different kinds of variances, there is

         25  medical and so forth, but they are not being

                                                            218

          1  EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEES

          2  generous in granting them. And parents are getting

          3  frustrated. They're getting upset. They're losing

          4  wages.

          5                 I mean, I had to go into my boss and

          6  tell her, I can't get this variance but I'm not

          7  going to be in work til 10:00. I mean, they can't, a

          8  business can't operate like that, no matter how good

          9  of an employee you are. And they just don't, they

         10  don't understand, you know, maybe you need to have a

         11  mother at the head of the Department of Education.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, you know,

         13  earlier, earlier I said that it seems as though the

         14  Department of Education, or the Mayor, or whoever is

         15  making these decisions, is like sometimes I'm

         16  driving with my wife in the car, and I'm going down

         17  the wrong road, and she says don't you think we

         18  should pull over and ask someone, and I say, I know

         19  where I'm going, and so finally I have to pull over

         20  and ask someone. You know, then she sits over there

         21  and she looks at me and she said we should have did

         22  this 15 minutes ago. So, maybe we do need a woman at

         23  the Department of Education.

         24                 MS. JAREME: A mother. That's the key.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: A mother. A
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          2  mother who understands. Maybe we do. Because quite

          3  frankly, I don't think that Joel Klein has any

          4  children in the system anymore, and I don't believe

          5  that any of the Alvarez & Marsal people have

          6  children in the public school system, and even

          7  myself as the Chair of the Education Committee, my

          8  youngest is 20, so I'm not going through the

          9  headaches that you're going through right now. If I

         10  was, I would probably be even more angrier at the

         11  DOE and those people. I'm very serious about that.

         12                 MS. JAREME: I agree with you. It's

         13  frustrating. And it's like you're just dealing with

         14  a brick wall. You can't go anywhere, you just bang

         15  your head against it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I've asked the

         17  other parent, let me ask you: when were you notified

         18  of the changes?

         19                 MS. JAREME: Well, this is really

         20  funny, because my daughter had brought the letter

         21  home on the 29th and she didn't give it to me until

         22  days after the fact, so I was putting her on the

         23  bus.

         24                 I will say one thing for the Staten

         25  Island bus drivers, they will pick up. They picked
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          2  up the children, because everything was in such

          3  chaos that they're like, you know what? The kid has

          4  the uniform on, we're not going to leave him behind.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Good for them.

          6                 MS. JAREME: But they cannot continue

          7  to do this, because no one is going to lose their

          8  job over this, you know, push comes to shove.

          9                 So, we were very fortunate in Staten

         10  Island to have very caring bus drivers who knew our

         11  children and knew the situation we were in. But now

         12  we're kind of forced where everything is going to be

         13  rules and regulations now, and a lot of the parents

         14  are still putting their children on the buses, and

         15  that's going to come to a stop. So, we would love

         16  for the Department of Education to go back to the

         17  way the routes were. You know, the buses were

         18  filled, they weren't halfway filled, they had all

         19  people on the buses, and it's just, I don't know how

         20  we could do it. The Staten Island Federation of

         21  Catholic School parents, we are willing to fight for

         22  this, we want this to happen. You know, we have

         23  concerns for the safety of our children, and that's

         24  the major concern.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Safety is number
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          2  one.

          3                 MS. JAREME: And for the Department of

          4  Education to say, you know, we don't care if a

          5  six-year-old takes the bus, well, yeah, I mean, who

          6  is that six-year-old sitting next to on the bus.

          7  Does the child have to cross the street? Does the

          8  child have to cross a wooded area? It's not like it

          9  was when I was growing up back in the seventies,

         10  where you can go out and play for ten hours where

         11  your mother would stick her head out, you know,

         12  twice to see if you were alive. It's much different

         13  now, and safety is a very big concern for the

         14  parents.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, let me

         16  just recognize my colleague Domenic Recchia of

         17  Brooklyn. And Domenic, do you have a question?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Yes. I just

         19  want to -- your buses, are they overcrowded now?

         20                 MS. JAREME: Well, kind of, yes. Some

         21  of them are. It depends what school it is. I mean,

         22  we have one school that only picks up four children.

         23  And then we have other buses that might be packed,

         24  because you have children that don't belong on the

         25  bus, because parents have no option. I mean, it's to
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          2  the point now where shame on the Department of

          3  Education for telling us where we could educate our

          4  children because they won't bus them. We're

          5  taxpayers and our children deserve to be bussed. I

          6  mean, my tax money goes into the public school

          7  system, just because I don't send my daughter to a

          8  public school doesn't mean she's not allowed to

          9  service.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council Member

         11  McMahon of Staten Island.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you,

         13  Mr. Chairman.

         14                 And just to add to that, Joanne, that

         15  the State law says that they must provide the bus

         16  service and so not out of the goodness of our heart,

         17  and for all children, public and non-public.

         18                 I want to thank you for coming up and

         19  your leadership on this, and to let you know that at

         20  today's hearing we presented the question of the

         21  quarter mile from the bus stop rule, and I thought

         22  they were going to say, you know, because we had the

         23  regulations and that was what you worked with

         24  Christin to get, and they said, no, we admit that

         25  it's not written, it's our rule of looking at
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          2  reviewing it. They didn't say they were going to

          3  change it, but they certainly realized that it's a

          4  problem. So, at least they're thinking about it. We

          5  brought that to their attention.

          6                 And you want to mention about what he

          7  asked them about. I just have to make an aside here,

          8  because when we started Jim Oddo said that it's such

          9  a long day, he moved all the way to the left. Just

         10  to tell you how left he is, when Joanne said there

         11  should be a mother in charge of the schools, Jimmy

         12  said I think there should be a mother in charge of

         13  this country. And there's only one mother running at

         14  this point, so now you get the joke.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you,

         16  Joanne, for coming in.

         17                 MS. JAREME: Thank you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And let me thank

         19  all of the parents.

         20                 I'm sorry, Jim Oddo of Staten Island.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: One other point

         22  I wanted to mention, on a serious note, and that was

         23  that the meeting that Council Member McMahon and I

         24  were at, one of the points that the parents raised

         25  was this fear that the bus drivers soon would be
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          2  given a roster, and if your kid wasn't on that

          3  roster, the bus driver could not allow that child

          4  on. The bus driver risked his or her job, if he or

          5  she allowed.

          6                 Much to the amazement I think of all

          7  of us, Deputy Chancellor Grimm said there are no

          8  such things as rosters. There will be no rosters for

          9  the bus drivers, and they will not be checking

         10  against any rosters. And I asked the naive question

         11  of, well, then what happens if a parent whose child

         12  was deemed ineligible goes to the bus stop, puts the

         13  child on the bus, and everybody laughed and kind of

         14  as if to say, it's going to happen. So, the concern

         15  that all you good folks had about the roster, in the

         16  short term as they evolve, so.

         17                 MS. JAREME: Well, let's hope that we

         18  can get this fixed. But thank you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Next year

         20  they're all going to have blackberries, with all the

         21  names coming up.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you,

         23  Joanne.

         24                 Next we will hear from Joyce Kampin,

         25  who has a child or other children riding on the bus.

                                                            225

          1  EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEES

          2  Joyce. Ocean Avenue in Brooklyn.

          3                 Joyce, I'm sorry, please identify

          4  yourself and who you're representing.

          5                 MS. KAMPIN: Joyce Kampin.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Push the mic

          7  down a little bit.

          8                 MS. KAMPIN: My son attends, he's

          9  seven years old and he attends the United Labovitich

         10  Yeshiva in Crown Heights. We live about a half, I

         11  would say 25 minutes away in Midwood, and on the

         12  26th Friday, about noon or 1:00, I received a call

         13  from the school, and the school secretary said I

         14  have bad news for you. I got really scared. I didn't

         15  know what she was going to tell me. She said, well,

         16  your son can't take the bus anymore as of Monday.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: What day of the

         18  week was that?

         19                 MS. KAMPIN: Friday.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Friday.

         21                 MS. KAMPIN: Friday at about 1:00. And

         22  she told me as of Monday he can't take the bus, and

         23  I thought it was something maybe he had done or

         24  something. No, no she said, it was a redesign and

         25  the school basically, most of the children in the
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          2  school reside in Crown Heights, but there is one bus

          3  that runs to Midwood basically, and it is a group of

          4  about 25, 30 children on the bus, boys on the bus.

          5  Well, she told me as of the 29th, he was among 25

          6  who no longer could take the bus, so they are

          7  running a bus for four children.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Did I hear that

          9  right?

         10                 MS. KAMPIN: Yes. The bus ordinarily

         11  had, I would say 25, 30 children. She said only four

         12  are now allowed to take the bus. Only four.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Why were the

         14  other ones not allowed?

         15                 MS. KAMPIN: Because they said my son,

         16  I guess, and probably others, live too far from the

         17  bus stop.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: They live too

         19  far from the bus stop.

         20                 Even though if they lived at the bus

         21  stop, they would have to ride the bus, and it's like

         22  they're riding a quarter of a mile or a half a mile,

         23  they're riding a long distance; isn't that correct?

         24                 MS. KAMPIN: The school is about 25

         25  minutes away.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Does that make

          3  sense to you?

          4                 MS. KAMPIN: It made no sense to me.

          5  And it doesn't. And to me, it's just absurd. And in

          6  fact, my son's stop is maintained, out of about six

          7  or seven boys who were taking the bus, only one is

          8  allowed to take the bus at that stop.

          9                 What's transpired is the driver in

         10  the morning apparently has been very lenient, like

         11  some of the ladies have mentioned, and he's

         12  permitting boys to take the bus, the others as well.

         13  However, in the interim, and he's maybe a new

         14  driver, the driver in the afternoon will not let any

         15  of the other boys take the bus because he definitely

         16  doesn't want to lose his job.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: But there's not

         18  a roster. You heard Council Member Jim Oddo say that

         19  there's not going to be a roster. So, I would assume

         20  that the kids would be able to get on the bus since

         21  there is not going to be a roster for them to check

         22  names against who is supposed to get on the bus.

         23                 MS. KAMPIN: Well, the driver in the

         24  afternoon is pretty adamant. He won't let anybody

         25  but those four children on the bus he knows are
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          2  supposed to take the bus.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Right. Well,

          4  what do you think should happen here? What do you

          5  want to happen out of this?

          6                 MS. KAMPIN: Actually, just like

          7  everybody else, I'd like my son to be able to take

          8  the bus. Plain and simple. You know, that's it.

          9  Especially, this case is so strange. I mean, you

         10  have 25, 30 kids and they say now they're running a

         11  bus for four kids. It doesn't make sense.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Then they will

         13  eliminate the bus for the four kids. All of the kids

         14  won't ride a bus.

         15                 MS. KAMPIN: Apparently.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: To save money,

         17  right?

         18                 MS. KAMPIN: That may be so, but until

         19  that happens I'm here registering my opposition to

         20  this plan.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, are the

         22  children? How are the children, the ones that are

         23  not riding the bus now, getting to school?

         24                 MS. KAMPIN: I don't know about all of

         25  them. My husband, who works at home, is able,
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          2  thankfully, to take some of them. But this may not

          3  be a permanent situation.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: He's driving

          5  them to school?

          6                 MS. KAMPIN: Correct. There's a number

          7  of them he's driving to school. But, however,

          8  recently as I just said, we've just learned that the

          9  morning driver was being lenient. So, as of the

         10  other day, he accepted my son on the bus.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: In the morning.

         12                 MS. KAMPIN: In the morning.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And what about

         14  in the afternoon?

         15                 MS. KAMPIN: The afternoon driver

         16  won't. No.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: How is your son

         18  getting home in the afternoon?

         19                 MS. KAMPIN: So my husband is going to

         20  pick him up.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I'm catching a

         22  headache. I'm getting a headache. This is really,

         23  this is nerve racking. This is very stressful.

         24                 MS. KAMPIN: It is. And I mean all

         25  these ladies spoke so effectively, and my case is
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          2  simpler, but it's so strange. I mean, you take 25,

          3  30 kids, and you say we're running this bus, but

          4  only four can -- I mean, it's silly. It's absurd.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, what

          6  message, if you had the opportunity to speak to

          7  Mayor Bloomberg or Joe Klein, what would you say to

          8  them directly?

          9                 MS. KAMPIN: I would say the situation

         10  is absurd. It's a terrible waste of money. It's a

         11  terrible waste of money. There is one bus that was

         12  designated for all the children who were outside the

         13  area, and it worked fairly well, and now, why create

         14  this havoc. The situation doesn't work for anyone.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And who is your

         16  Council member. Do you know who your City Councilman

         17  --

         18                 MS. KAMPIN: Mike Nelson.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Mike Nelson.

         20                 MS. KAMPIN: And I contacted the

         21  office and I spoke with a staff member, I really

         22  didn't get beyond that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         24                 MS. KAMPIN: To be honest with you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: We will get you

                                                            231

          1  EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEES

          2  the information. I will be communicating with Mike

          3  Nelson directly, because the Chancellor has said,

          4  and Domenic and Jimmy Oddo and him have been

          5  communicating with the Deputy Chancellor, and he

          6  said to call the Deputy Chancellor directly to try

          7  to resolve the situation, so we need to try to

          8  resolve the situation.

          9                 MS. KAMPIN: I do want to add one

         10  thing. I called 3-1-1 twice. And the second time I

         11  called, actually they didn't want to take my call

         12  twice.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Wait a minute.

         14  They tell everyone to call 3-1-1. You called there

         15  and 3-1-1 doesn't want to take your call?

         16                 MS. KAMPIN: Right.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Did you ask for

         18  the name of the individual?

         19                 MS. KAMPIN: Well, they said I should

         20  call the Office of Pupil Transportation, but I

         21  couldn't get through there. So, I said I couldn't

         22  get through there, so I asked for --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Why couldn't you

         24  get through?

         25                 MS. KAMPIN: Because the lines were
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          2  busy.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: What time did

          4  you try?

          5                 MS. KAMPIN: I tried five times.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Over what period

          7  of time?

          8                 MS. KAMPIN: No, this was immediately

          9  when I was notified. So, I imagine it was that

         10  Friday. I called once or twice, and I called on

         11  Monday.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         13                 MS. KAMPIN: So, they said I should

         14  call there, I said I couldn't get through. So, I

         15  said, well, I'd like to speak with a supervisor, and

         16  then they took my call. But that was the first day.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: How long were

         18  you on the phone with the whole entire caller of

         19  3-1-1?

         20                 MS. KAMPIN: Not long. Maybe a couple

         21  of minutes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Go ahead.

         23                 MS. KAMPIN: The second time I called,

         24  I had heard about variances, the possibility of

         25  variances.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Right.

          3                 MS. KAMPIN: So, I called.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: They said ask

          5  for variances.

          6                 MS. KAMPIN: They said they knew

          7  nothing about that.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: They didn't know

          9  anything about it?

         10                 MS. KAMPIN: Nothing about that.

         11                 Secondly. After I gave them all the

         12  information, and this gentleman was very diligent in

         13  taking it, he said now, tell me again what school

         14  your son goes to? And I said it was Yeshiva. He

         15  said, well, I'm sorry, I can't take your complaint,

         16  you're not on the list.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I'm sorry, what

         18  do you mean not on the list?

         19                 MS. KAMPIN: He said, I can only take

         20  a complaint if it corresponds to a specific school,

         21  a public school, one of the public schools. I said,

         22  well, he doesn't go to a public school. He said,

         23  well, I can't take your complaint then.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Is that what he

         25  told you?
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          2                 MS. KAMPIN: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Even though

          4  they're obligated under the law to provide busing

          5  for all of the school children in --

          6                 MS. KAMPIN: I'm sorry, it doesn't

          7  correspond to any school on the list, I can't take

          8  it. So that was it.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Are you

         10  frustrated?

         11                 MS. KAMPIN: I am. That's why I'm

         12  here. You know, it's just not fair. That's really

         13  what it comes down to. Everybody, there's thousands

         14  and thousands and thousands of kids, and I'm sorry

         15  their parents can't be here. It's a shame. You know,

         16  maybe they were there earlier. This is like one

         17  little example. Of course I'm frustrated, and it's

         18  silly. The whole thing is completely silly.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Any of my

         20  colleagues?

         21                 Domenic Recchia.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: So, when you

         23  reported to 3-1-1, did they give you a number?

         24                 MS. KAMPIN: The first time I got a

         25  number, correct.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Okay. Do you

          3  have that number here?

          4                 MS. KAMPIN: I don't have it with me.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Okay.

          6                 And no one from the Department of Ed

          7  contacted you?

          8                 MS. KAMPIN: No.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: As of today?

         10                 MS. KAMPIN: No.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: And I want to

         12  make sure I understand the story straight, is that

         13  the bus now only has four kids on it?

         14                 MS. KAMPIN: Four kids authorized to

         15  take the bus. But the morning driver is taking the

         16  other children. The afternoon driver will not.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: So, there is

         18  a bus that leaves the school with four kids on it

         19  going back to Midwood?

         20                 MS. KAMPIN: Right, exactly. Correct.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: You know,

         22  this was exactly the type of situation the

         23  Chancellor said that they wanted to do away with

         24  because they wanted to make sure all the buses are

         25  filled.
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          2                 MS. KAMPIN: Right.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: So, we have

          4  staff here today. We're going to take your name and

          5  phone number and we are going to look into this,

          6  because Mike Nelson couldn't be here tonight. But

          7  I'm the City Council member from the neighboring

          8  district, and we're definitely going to see to it,

          9  because I'm sure these other students who are not

         10  permitted on the bus, these are 20 children that are

         11  all from the same area?

         12                 MS. KAMPIN: All from the same area,

         13  yes. Yes. And, again, my son's stop is maintained,

         14  but only one child is allowed to take the bus from

         15  that stop, of the five or six that had been

         16  designated that stop, to take the bus at that stop.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Okay. We're

         18  going to definitely take the information.

         19                 MS. KAMPIN: Thank you.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Mr. Chairman,

         21  this is one thing I think you should definitely

         22  notify them, this is one situation, complete

         23  opposite what they go on about.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Jan, can you get

         25  all the information?
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          2                 Jan Atwell, our Policy Analyst, will

          3  get your contact information.

          4                 MS. KAMPIN: Great. Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you very

          6  much.

          7                 MS. KAMPIN: Thank you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Leslie Fluker.

          9  From Van Pelt Avenue.

         10                 Leslie, please identify yourself. Sit

         11  down, please. Just identify yourself and who you're

         12  representing and where you live.

         13                 MS. FLUKER: Hi. My name is Leslie

         14  Fluker, and I don't represent anyone in particular.

         15  I'm just representing I guess other parents who are

         16  caught up in this situation, and I'm from Staten

         17  Island, New York.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Staten Island?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Staten

         20  Island, New York, Jimmy. Don't leave the room.

         21  Jimmy. Mike.

         22                 MS. FLUKER: Okay, in my situation,

         23  one of my problems here today is my school notified

         24  me on January 24th, Wednesday, prior to the changes,

         25  at 4:00 p.m. that my children would no longer be
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          2  available -- would be allowed to take the bus that

          3  they were currently taking.

          4                 My issue, if it's not that they are

          5  no longer eligible for bus service, my children were

          6  taking the bus to their grandma's, to the sitter who

          7  picks them up.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You mean after

          9  school?

         10                 MS. FLUKER: Right. That's where I

         11  also put them on in the morning, and that's where

         12  they were dropped off in the afternoon for three

         13  years.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: For three years.

         15                 MS. FLUKER: For three years. When I

         16  registered my son for the bus at the school, we go

         17  to St. John's Lutheran School, they just give you a

         18  list and say which bus would you like to take. So I

         19  told them which bus I wanted to take. I have not had

         20  a problem, okay? Been taking the bus for three

         21  years. Then they give me this call and they tell me

         22  that they have to take the bus from our residents.

         23                 That is a big issue for me, because

         24  who is going to pick my five year old up, and my 11

         25  year old up from my residence. I have to work. I
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          2  can't stay home. I'm fortunate that my job is now

          3  allowing me to come in a few minutes late because

          4  the bus that my children did take, which they are no

          5  longer allowed to take, used to come at 8:05. I

          6  would drop them, catch the 8:30 ferry, proceed to my

          7  job.

          8                 Now that bus is coming at 8:45, and

          9  school begins at 8:50. So, I am now driving them to

         10  school. Thank God I have that capability. Dropping

         11  them off at 8:30 and then I'm driving on two wheels

         12  to the ferry so that I can make the 9:00 ferry and

         13  get to work.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You mean two

         15  wheels, you mean you're speeding?

         16                 MS. FLUKER: No, I'm not speeding. I'm

         17  not speeding but I'm trying to make every light.

         18                 So then I call. Now, in my case

         19  everyone has been helpful. I've called OPT, TC. They

         20  have spoken to me. We have e-mailed, go back and

         21  forth, but no one has helped my situation, okay?

         22  Then they say, you can get a variance, your oldest

         23  child has asthma. You can get a medical variance

         24  that he does need, you know, to go to his grandma's,

         25  but your five year old will have to take the bus
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          2  home. Who is home. I mean, she's much more mature

          3  than my 11 year old, and could probably get in the

          4  door and do what she has to do, but it just makes no

          5  sense. In the middle of the school year you decide

          6  to revamp, okay? Now, back in December we did get a

          7  form that said in order for your children to

          8  continue riding the bus, you need to fill out this

          9  form. They never said why. They just need to fill it

         10  out. Fill it out, and now the 24, this is what I

         11  hear by the 29th. The few strands of hair I have on

         12  my head, I need them. I am stressed, I can barely

         13  sleep. You know, these are my children. You know, I

         14  cannot just find a neighbor and say eenie meenie

         15  minee moh, please pick up my children. These are my

         16  children, the most important things to me in my

         17  life, you know? So, it's not like I'm leaving my

         18  puppy with somebody. These are my children. And I

         19  have to work, and I have to pay a mortgage. What are

         20  you supposed to do?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council Member

         22  Mike McMahon.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you,

         24  Mr. Chairman.

         25                 Ms. Fluker, what's the school, 44?
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          2                 MS. FLUKER: No, it's St. John's

          3  Lutheran School.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: St. John's

          5  Lutheran. Okay, we have received, and Council Member

          6  Oddo has received, as well, a whole package from the

          7  school, which we delivered to the Department of

          8  Education, today as well.

          9                 You live in Mariner's Harbor.

         10                 MS. FLUKER: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Where does

         12  grandma live? Where does your mother live?

         13                 MS. FLUKER: She is on Carey.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: On Carey

         15  Avenue.

         16                 MS. FLUKER: And they have a bus stop

         17  that comes to Carey.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: And comes

         19  there. Why do they say they can't go to that bus

         20  stop?

         21                 MS. FLUKER: Because according to

         22  legislature, over 30 years ago, they only provide

         23  transportation from your residence.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Okay.

         25                 MS. FLUKER: Okay, 30 years ago we
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          2  didn't have Internet, we didn't have cell phones.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: No,

          4  absolutely. No question.

          5                 MS. FLUKER: Yes. Thirty years ago a

          6  lot of parents, both parents didn't have to work.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Okay. We're

          8  working with the school, but if you would take my

          9  number down?

         10                 MS. FLUKER: Okay.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: 718-556-7370.

         12                 MS. FLUKER: Okay.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: And the young

         14  lady over there is going to raise her hand. That's

         15  Christin Zack over there, if you would ask for her

         16  tomorrow. And in the meantime, when you get up and

         17  you finish, go see Chris and let us get your phone

         18  number as well, and then we'll do the best we can to

         19  work with you.

         20                 MS. FLUKER: Okay, thank you.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thanks for

         22  coming.

         23                 MS. FLUKER: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you for

         25  coming and representing yourself and your children.
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          2                 And next we'll hear from Gloria

          3  Pellegrino, from 45-21 216 Street. Is Gloria here?

          4                 Hi. Can you just identify yourself

          5  and what borough or any other information you'd like

          6  to use?

          7                 MS. PELLEGRINO: I'm Gloria

          8  Pellegrino. I'm from Queens.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And pull the

         10  mic, please, a little closer. Gloria, pull it closer

         11  to you. Thank you. From Queens? What part of Queens?

         12                 MS. PELLEGRINO: Bayside.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Bayside, Queens?

         14                 MS. PELLEGRINO: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, go ahead,

         16  please.

         17                 MS. PELLEGRINO: Okay, before this

         18  whole thing happened, all three of my children who

         19  are attending Public School 266, they were all

         20  riding the school bus. My oldest child who was in

         21  the seventh grade was not allowed to ride on the

         22  bus, however, she got so petrified, that the school

         23  just allowed her to get on the bus with her two

         24  other kids.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.
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          2                 MS. PELLEGRINO: Now after this whole

          3  thing happened, she's not allowed to get on the

          4  school bus with her two brothers and sisters, and

          5  I've been driving her every day to school, back to

          6  school and from school. She is not allowed to get

          7  on, even know the bus is now completely full, she

          8  cannot get on. She is petrified. She has told me,

          9  she's scared to go a public transportation.

         10                 Last semester, it used to take my

         11  kids half an hour to get home, now it takes them

         12  over an hour to get home from school every day.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Why? Because of

         14  the bus route change?

         15                 MS. PELLEGRINO: The consolidating all

         16  the bus, consolidating all the kids and coming down

         17  with the school bus. And it takes them a whole hour

         18  to get to school.

         19                 And on the days that I have to get to

         20  work, and since the older child have to take public

         21  transportation, which she isn't, I have friends

         22  driving her there, and they have been waiting in

         23  school, because the friend have to be at work, and

         24  they drop them off at school at 7:00, they have to

         25  wait for the schools to open at 7:30. They sit in

                                                            245

          1  EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEES

          2  the hallway a half an hour. If the bus was driving

          3  them, yes, they could just ride along and get to

          4  school on time.

          5                 So, every week they have to sit there

          6  one or two days, sitting in front of the school for

          7  half an hour for the schools to open, because my

          8  oldest child is not capable of taking the public

          9  bus, and she is not allowed to get on school buses.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And the reason

         11  why she is not allowed? They won't allow it?

         12                 MS. PELLEGRINO: She is seventh grade.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Seventh grade.

         14  It's up to the sixth grade; is that correct?

         15                 MS. PELLEGRINO: It's up to the sixth

         16  grade, but last year they gave her a variance

         17  because she was very anxious about taking a public

         18  transportation, but now the bus driver says they're

         19  making headcounts and making sure that whoever is

         20  not allowed to get on the bus can get on the bus.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, I think

         22  you may consider a medical variance, because of her

         23  anxiety fears. It may be appropriate.

         24                 MS. PELLEGRINO: You know, I tried

         25  that last year. I applied for the variance last
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          2  semester. They rejected.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Who is your City

          4  Council member? Tony Avella from Queens.

          5                 MS. PELLEGRINO: Actually I m ade a

          6  complaint to Mr. Council Member John Liu.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes.

          8                 MS. PELLEGRINO: That's how I know

          9  about this hearing today.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, good. I'm

         11  glad. Okay, but Tony Avella, I think you live in

         12  Bayside Queens; is that correct?

         13                 MS. PELLEGRINO: Yes, it's Queens.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So right now you

         15  have put together a sort of like a network of

         16  support where you're driving your daughter, and then

         17  when you can't drive, because you're working, other

         18  neighbors are pitching in?

         19                 And some of them on the days,

         20  whatever, you're sitting outside a half an hour

         21  before the school opens up?

         22                 MS. PELLEGRINO: Kids are sitting

         23  inside the hallway waiting for breakfast to open.

         24  School doesn't start until 8:00.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: What's your

                                                            247

          1  EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEES

          2  feeling about this? They said that this is going to

          3  save money.

          4                 MS. PELLEGRINO: I don't know how. The

          5  thing is, they said kids come first. My kid is so

          6  petrified about - a 12 year old taking the public

          7  school, public transportation, I think that's a

          8  little bit too much. And then they said you're not

          9  allowed to use cell phones in school. If my kids

         10  have any kind of emergency, how are they supposed to

         11  contact you?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: That's a good

         13  question.

         14                 MS. PELLEGRINO: You know, how?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: What would you

         16  like to happen?

         17                 MS. PELLEGRINO: Let my 12 year old

         18  get on a bus. For now at least. The other two are

         19  going on, why can't she go on? It's not like there

         20  is no seat on the bus. How can you allow a child who

         21  is 12 years old, and she is petrified about getting

         22  on a bus, get on a bus? She actually cried in the

         23  office one time when I asked her try to meet me half

         24  way. She cried. I was on the bus going there to meet

         25  her, and then the school called me and said, your
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          2  kid is -- she didn't know what to do.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Do the children

          4  attend the same school?

          5                 MS. PELLEGRINO: Yes, they all go to

          6  the same school.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, what, it's a

          8  K to 8 school?

          9                 MS. PELLEGRINO: It's elementary up to

         10  eighth grade.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. What's the

         12  name of the school?

         13                 MS. PELLEGRINO: PSIS 266.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: PSIS 266?

         15                 MS. PELLEGRINO: The new one. Yes, the

         16  new school.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Domenic Recchia

         18  of Brooklyn.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Yes. I just

         20  want to make sure I understand your situation. You

         21  have three children?

         22                 MS. PELLEGRINO: Three.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: And all three

         24  attend the intermediate school?

         25                 MS. PELLEGRINO: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: And they let

          3  two on, but not the oldest.

          4                 MS. PELLEGRINO: Well, the two is

          5  still sixth grade -- I mean fifth grade, so they're

          6  still allowed to get on. The oldest one is seventh

          7  grade, so she's no longer allowed.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Okay. Before

          9  this went into effect, she was allowed to take the

         10  bus?

         11                 MS. PELLEGRINO: She was allowed. The

         12  school saw that she was very nervous so they

         13  allowed. They said this is a variance so she's

         14  allowed to be on the bus, but this year, no way.

         15  This semester, no way. She can't.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: And did I

         17  hear you correctly, the bus is not a filled bus?

         18  There's empty seats on the bus?

         19                 MS. PELLEGRINO: No, I asked the kids,

         20  is every seat filled? And they said, no, there's

         21  empty seats. And they're coming home to the same

         22  house, why can't she just get on?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Right.

         24                 MS. PELLEGRINO: Are they really

         25  saving that much money on my one daughter?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: No. That's

          3  why we're here to help you. We're here to hear

          4  stories like this and situations. And I'm sure the

          5  Chairman, Robert Jackson, will take your

          6  information, will try to look into it and see what

          7  could be worked out.

          8                 This is a situation where, you know,

          9  they spoke today about siblings, and how they

         10  shouldn't be separated. This is something that is

         11  not only the right thing to do, but it's a safety

         12  issue, too.

         13                 MS. PELLEGRINO: Exactly. If she's

         14  afraid --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Because your

         16  oldest daughter comes off, they take care of the

         17  other two kids and they come off the bus together.

         18                 MS. PELLEGRINO: Yes, they all come

         19  home at the same time last semester. Now I have to

         20  go pick her up and bring her home while the other

         21  two are taking the bus.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: So, you pick

         23  up one and the other two take the bus?

         24                 MS. PELLEGRINO: Well, because the

         25  other two get out at different times.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Right. We're

          3  here to help.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Frustrating.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Frustrating.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Very

          7  frustrating. Let me thank you for coming.

          8                 MS. PELLEGRINO: Can I just ask you

          9  guys one question? How do you feel about 12 year

         10  olds taking buses? Eleven and 12 year olds taking

         11  the public bus?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, you know,

         13  ideally I would not want that to happen, but it

         14  depends on the distance and where we are.

         15                 MS. PELLEGRINO: Four miles away.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: What?

         17                 MS. PELLEGRINO: Four miles. That's

         18  far.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: How many

         20  buses? If your daughter would have to take public

         21  transportation --

         22                 MS. PELLEGRINO: Two.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: She would

         24  have to take two buses and the train, or just two

         25  buses?
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          2                 MS. PELLEGRINO: No, two buses, you

          3  have to transfer.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Yes, that's

          5  not good.

          6                 MS. PELLEGRINO: And actually one of

          7  the buses, the public bus goes right into a college

          8  campus and drops those kids off.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: So, they're

         10  driving the bus with college kids?

         11                 MS. PELLEGRINO: Yes. And while this

         12  kid gets on another bus, and they have to walk like

         13  15, 20 minutes to the other school.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: This is

         15  seventh grade.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: After she gets

         17  off the bus?

         18                 MS. PELLEGRINO: She takes the public

         19  transportation, that's what happens. Fifteen

         20  minutes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: And how long

         22  is the bus ride, yellow school bus ride from the

         23  school?

         24                 MS. PELLEGRINO: Now?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Yes.
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          2                 MS. PELLEGRINO: One hour. It used to

          3  be half.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And

          5  notification? How much notice did you get in

          6  advance?

          7                 MS. PELLEGRINO: I think I got a

          8  couple of days before it started. Well, the bus

          9  driver started telling me about it.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. What about

         11  official notice from the schools?

         12                 MS. PELLEGRINO: I think maybe two

         13  days before it starts.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: We're going to

         15  have one of our staff members take your information

         16  and we're going to try to communicate with DOE. And

         17  the DOE official also, is the woman still here? Yes,

         18  she's here right now.

         19                 MS. PELLEGRINO: Okay.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, Jan, who is

         21  our Policy Analyst, and the woman from the

         22  Department of Education.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Just raise

         24  your hand.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Behind you.
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          2  Okay?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Okay?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you very

          5  much.

          6                 MS. PELLEGRINO: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Next we'll hear

          8  from Mariama James, Gold Street and New York City.

          9                 MS. JAMES: Hi. My name is Mariama,

         10  and I spoke when you were about to adjourn at the

         11  hearing, so I thank you for indulging me again. I

         12  get to tell you about my actual personal case now.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, go ahead.

         14                 MS. JAMES: I have a five year old

         15  that attends PS 234, which is actually just about

         16  three blocks away from Tweed, and we were notified,

         17  I believe it was the Thursday, if not the Friday, by

         18  the bus driver via cell phone. He called parents

         19  when he was notified that as of Monday I'm only

         20  going to be allowed to take nine children to school,

         21  and he didn't know what nine children, or how it was

         22  going to be determined who he was going to be

         23  allowed to take.

         24                 I happened to be at the school that

         25  day when I received the phone call, so I went
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          2  immediately to talk to the parent coordinator who

          3  had also just been informed --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Friday, or

          5  Thursday?

          6                 MS. JAMES: I don't recall if it was

          7  the Thursday or the Friday. But she had just

          8  received notice as well, and didn't have any --

          9  didn't know anything about it, was trying to get

         10  through to OPT herself, was unsuccessful. So, when I

         11  reached my office, she e-mailed me because some

         12  other parents had also began to call her, and myself

         13  as well, as a representative of the PTA who had a

         14  child that takes the school bus. They were calling

         15  me to figure out, well, you know, you must know

         16  something. And at that time I had one child in

         17  particular who had just moved into the neighborhood

         18  and he wasn't on any list. So, he had been taking

         19  the bus because he had just started attending the

         20  school maybe a week or two prior to this happening,

         21  so the OPT had no record of him and so he was unable

         22  to, his mother was unable to speak to anyone, they

         23  wouldn't take her call at any of the numbers or her

         24  complaint, because her son was officially not

         25  registered.
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          2                 But I also got a subsequent e-mail

          3  from the parent coordinator that, don't worry, I

          4  just went through -- apparently there was an

          5  individual sheet of paper for each child saying

          6  whether or not they were able to get on the bus, and

          7  she had said I just looked at your daughter's and

          8  she is allowed bus service. And I was still very

          9  concerned about the situation, so I remained in

         10  contact with her, and I began contacting all our

         11  local officials, you know, whoever I could think of.

         12  We called 3-1-1, the community board, the City

         13  Council, even the State, Martin Connor's office, the

         14  Speaker, everybody, like trying to find out who had

         15  some sort of information on what was going on.

         16                 Well, that afternoon, so I guess it

         17  was the Friday, that evening the bus driver

         18  proceeded to hand out to each parent a notice saying

         19  your child's bus route has been deleted. And I was,

         20  although I had confirmed that my child was going to

         21  be on a bus, I also received that notice, and we had

         22  to call the hot line at the Office of Pupil

         23  Transportation to find out what was going to happen

         24  with our children. So, that was over a weekend. And

         25  I guess we should have been pleased that the office
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          2  was going to be open all weekend, up to 7:00 p.m.

          3                 So, in trying to call from Friday to

          4  Sunday, finally I got through on Sunday, and the

          5  gentleman that I spoke to, we ended up in a

          6  conversation when he proceeded to tell me about his

          7  daughter who was sick and wasn't going to be able to

          8  get to school. It was that chaotic. And what I was

          9  disturbed about in making that call was that I only

         10  had to provide my child's name and the name of her

         11  school. So, if I had a spouse that I was divorced

         12  from that wasn't able to be in contact with her, or

         13  if there was a pervert, pedophile that had been

         14  watching her and knew her name and her school, they

         15  could find out what bus she was going to be on

         16  because you didn't require any other information,

         17  not the child's birth date or, you know, school ID

         18  number, nothing.

         19                 So, anyway, they tell me that my

         20  child is supposed to take a bus that leaves at 7:08

         21  in the morning, rather than the bus that was leaving

         22  at 7:45 in time to be at school for the Mayor's

         23  extended day mandate, which our school does it early

         24  morning, and also in time for breakfast, and school

         25  starts officially 8:50. Well, I'm wondering why
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          2  she's going to be on a school bus at 7:08, and

          3  that's because she's leaving Lower Manhattan and

          4  going to Chelsea first, and then over to Greenwich

          5  Village and then to school if she gets on the bus.

          6  So she's on the bus for over an hour extra in the

          7  morning and the afternoon, potentially up to three

          8  hours for a five year old, additional, on the bus.

          9  So, of course, I did not put her on that bus. I was

         10  taking her to school. And in the afternoon the bus

         11  driver was taking all of our, I guess he was lenient

         12  like all of these other people, he was taking all of

         13  our children. But after the first, like, couple of

         14  days, they added another stop to him, so he no

         15  longer had to go to Chelsea, he had to go to the

         16  Little Red School House before coming to our

         17  children's school, and pick up those children, so

         18  now somebody, whoever is at the school, an employee

         19  who is still working, has to babysit the children

         20  until the school bus shows up and the children are

         21  getting home at like four, after four o'clock, so we

         22  still have that extra time added onto the day. And

         23  this is with a lot of very committed local officials

         24  trying to help us get a hazard variance, you know.

         25  So, it's not even just the parents trying to do it
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          2  themselves, we have officials that have written

          3  letters and sent it over to the Mayor's Office, to

          4  the Chancellor's Office, to the DOE, asking for a

          5  variance, and still it's three weeks that passed and

          6  we haven't gotten it, and that's, you know, good

          7  people working very hard to get it.

          8                 The other problem is that the bus

          9  driver, again, our bus used to house our service, 45

         10  children all going to the same school. When they

         11  deleted that route, they made it two bus routes.

         12  They made it the 7:08 one, and there was one at

         13  8:11. The 8:11 one is one that our traditional bus

         14  driver was going to be driving with the nine

         15  children. Today they have not been told who the nine

         16  children are, how he is to determine what nine

         17  children to allow on the bus. So, he's been very

         18  lenient with us and has been taking all of the

         19  children at 8:11, which turned to 8:00 as of this

         20  week. So, we're still getting changes and we have

         21  two buses, where we had one, and the grades three

         22  through five have all been displaced off the bus.

         23  So, not sixth grade in our case. Third grade, they

         24  were given a bus pass, which is useless because

         25  there is no bus, public bus in the area that goes in
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          2  that direction. And even with them having sort of

          3  fixed it, or the bus driver accommodating us, we

          4  still have this late afternoon thing with the school

          5  taking care of the kids and with the kids getting

          6  home late.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Are you a member

          8  of a parents' association?

          9                 MS. JAMES: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: What's your

         11  position?

         12                 MS. JAMES: At the housing complex I'm

         13  the Vice Chair of the Southbridge Towers Parent and

         14  Youth Association. At the school, I'm the Second

         15  Vice President of the PTA, PS 234.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And I assume

         17  that the Department of Education did not consult

         18  with you and any of these proposed changes

         19  whatsoever, as a parent association?

         20                 MS. JAMES: No, they did not. And

         21  that's why I was like maybe the station, that this

         22  is a school that's three blocks from Tweed. Somebody

         23  could have walked over and told us what was going on

         24  and our school didn't hear about it until we made

         25  them aware of it.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And have you

          3  lost all of your hair yet?

          4                 MS. JAMES: Yes. That's why I have my

          5  hat on.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: No. I mean, has

          7  this caused a lot of stress, strain?

          8                 MS. JAMES: It's caused a very big

          9  distress, because every day we're waiting to find

         10  out what time -- once you get your kids to school,

         11  once you make it through that ordeal, we're waiting

         12  to find out what time the kids are going to come

         13  home.

         14                 I have had two or three occasions

         15  when I've had to e-mail my son's teachers and call

         16  his school office to ask him to go and pick up his

         17  little sister from the school bus when it gets

         18  there, because I work in Long Island City, so it's

         19  like I have it set up, I have a caregiver that can

         20  pick her up. You know, but if it's going to go

         21  beyond that time, and I lose that, now I have to,

         22  you know, impede upon another school, my son's high

         23  school that has nothing to do with it, to ask them

         24  to do me a personal favor and contact my son and

         25  hope that he remembers to stop and pick up his
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          2  sister so that she's not wandering around the

          3  streets of Manhattan at 5:00.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: The frustration.

          5  I mean, it's just too much to be asking parents. As

          6  I said to them, as I said to the Mayor and the

          7  Chancellor, and the Deputy Chancellor, that whatever

          8  proposed savings that you expect to save, you

          9  basically have lost because the confidence of the

         10  people of New York City has been shaken to where, if

         11  this is part of your reform, parents don't want any

         12  part of it. Would you agree with that statement?

         13                 MS. JAMES: I absolutely agree with

         14  that. I think that when the Mayor ran on the

         15  platform, to my recollection, for education and

         16  affordable housing platform, and we know the way

         17  that affordable housing has gone in the City, and it

         18  looks like education is going in the same direction.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: What direction

         20  is that?

         21                 MS. JAMES: Down. Down to just beneath

         22  unacceptable. Not even on an acceptable level. And

         23  it's just my thought. But I think that the situation

         24  now with the buses stems from the mandate last year

         25  with the extended day, because I was among the
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          2  parents at that time that was saying, you know, how

          3  can you increase the buses, and the same thing,

          4  siblings wanted two buses, one had extended day, and

          5  that created that, but what created the need for

          6  extended day is the curriculum and the fact that

          7  children are only being taught for these

          8  standardized tests, and the teachers and schools are

          9  only motivated to teach for the standardized tests

         10  because they're now graded on that and they get

         11  their money based upon how high the school scores,

         12  which is based on how high the children score, and

         13  then you can have a child like mine, like my son,

         14  who has never scored beneath a four, but,  you know,

         15  ask him something that's not on the test. He asked

         16  me like what the capital of Pennsylvania was last

         17  night. He doesn't know that. He doesn't know the

         18  basic rules of grammar, the basic formulas of math,

         19  but he knows what he needs to do to pass that test.

         20  So, I think it's just like one thing rolls into

         21  another, you fix that, then there is no need for

         22  this, and then this wouldn't have happened.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You sound

         24  frustrated.

         25                 MS. JAMES: I'm very frustrated.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, do we have

          3  your information? I believe you gave us the

          4  information. Did you talk to this official or this

          5  employee from the Department of Education? Give her

          6  the information. And Jan Atwell will get the

          7  information also. Thank you for coming in.

          8                 MS. JAMES: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Zvomimir Sablic,

         10  his opinion about the school bus mess.

         11                 MR. SABLIC: Good evening.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Good evening,

         13  sir.

         14                 MR. SABLIC: I am Captain Zvomimir

         15  Sablic. Zvomimir means in translation the bell of

         16  peace is ringing. I would like you, as a partner, to

         17  introduce yourselves. I see you are Robert Jackson,

         18  Education. And I appreciate that as first name and

         19  last name. First name is of my son, and last name is

         20  of Jessie Jackson.

         21                 I'm here to express my opinion of

         22  these, I would say atrocities, against children of

         23  New York City. I am here to represent my daughter --

         24  not my daughter, my granddaughter. She is a daughter

         25  of Robert, my son, and she is four years old. And I

                                                            265

          1  EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEES

          2  am very concerned what her future in this City will

          3  be if such measures of the City will introduce these

          4  politics and these officials as they are introducing

          5  with school bus system.

          6                 I have to remind you, this is the

          7  greatest country in the world. This is the greatest

          8  City in the world, and I know that from the fact,

          9  because I was not born in this country. Whoever was

         10  born in this country was born with a silver spoon,

         11  and you people shouldn't allow anybody to take this

         12  away from the people of this country and people of

         13  this City.

         14                 I would say this: This plan of Mr.

         15  Mayor Bloomberg and Mr. Klein has to be scrapped

         16  immediately after this meeting, and all the stories,

         17  who is coming, who is not coming, this is just to

         18  disperse the public outrage which is going around

         19  the City. If we, as residents of New York City, are

         20  not capable to take care of our youngsters, then we

         21  are not entitled to call ourselves as human beings.

         22                 If this Mayor of the City, Mr.

         23  Bloomberg, introduced this new system generally in

         24  the lowest temperature we have now, if this Mr.

         25  Klein introduce these policies, and they are
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          2  talking, yes, we are taking these in account, and

          3  these people, you are laughing about the testimonies

          4  and you are doing this and that, this is not the

          5  human approach. The human approach has to be to the

          6  children of the City, what the future of the City

          7  and America, and they cannot decide by themselves.

          8  You should stop, Mr. Robert Jackson, first name and

          9  last name, you have to stop tomorrow, immediately,

         10  and say Mr. Mayor Bloomberg, you, Mr. Mayor, I don't

         11  know whether it's legal or not, you will be

         12  impeached tomorrow if you don't delete or dissolve

         13  this order, what you did a week ago. And after that

         14  he has to be called to account, because he, as a

         15  millionaire, millionaire Mayor who is taking one

         16  dollar in a salary, okay, this is a shame for

         17  democracy of the City and the United States. I want

         18  the Mayor who will be paid $1 million, not $1, but

         19  will take care of first people, of people. And first

         20  what you have to take of poor people and we have to

         21  take of the children (sic), because my

         22  granddaughter, who is four years old, he doesn't

         23  have a future in this City if he are talking, and

         24  you guys, you are smiling, too, Councilmen, you

         25  laugh because they were sitting here, Domenic
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          2  Recchia, and Michael McMahon, they should be kicked

          3  out of the office, they don't have time to listen to

          4  the grievances to the people and mothers and I

          5  didn't see any father complain. They didn't have

          6  time because they had to leave because they were

          7  like sitting here with some of us til 1:00, they

          8  have to sit. 24/7 they have to sit, they have to

          9  discuss and they cannot make any move for structure

         10  (sic), but they have to make the move in advance.

         11  This disaster, these atrocities towards the children

         12  of this City shouldn't happen at all.

         13                 What kind of people, Mr. Bloomberg,

         14  Mr. Klein? They are, if they did this plan, what

         15  kind of people are sitting in City Council, in what,

         16  Assembly, whatever they are, what kind of people are

         17  sitting in Albany? What kind of people are sitting

         18  around us, if we cannot take care of our children?

         19  If we cannot take care of our children, and we keep

         20  them in accord, keep them -- we are talking about

         21  predators, we are talking about this, we are talking

         22  about that, and we are sending these in the hands,

         23  we are sending our kids in the hands of predators?

         24  Mr. Bloomberg, he never have the touch with the

         25  people. He has touch with the money, and this is
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          2  disgrace. I'm telling you this, his election, to be

          3  elected official, as he paid $70 million to be

          4  elected, and now he's playing charity to all of us.

          5  No, we don't need charity. We won't pay the Mayor

          6  million, 2 million 10 million dollars to take care

          7  as he should. People first and money after that.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

          9                 MR. SABLIC: And first children. Okay,

         10  Mr. Jackson.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you, sir.

         12                 MR. SABLIC: I know only your name and

         13  other people, but I hope you know my name, and Mr.

         14  Jackson, I would like from you, I would like for you

         15  to give me in writing all names you have, all names

         16  of the partner here.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         18                 MR. SABLIC: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         20                 Next we'll hear from Luis Torres,

         21  Jr., who is representing himself and I assume his

         22  daughter? Yes, welcome.

         23                 MR. TORRES: Thank you very much.

         24  Thank you very much, Council member. I apologize, I

         25  wasn't exactly planning to testify today, but my
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          2  wife did ask me to come and say something, so...

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

          4                 MR. TORRES: She would have been here

          5  herself, but she is taking care of my three girls.

          6  And I am representing my daughter, Alexander Torres.

          7  On January 25th, we were told that we were no longer

          8  going to have bus service to St. Patrick's school in

          9  Staten Island. This is, like many families in New

         10  York, both my wife and I work, and you know, during

         11  the summer this was something that we went to great

         12  lengths to plan out as to exactly who would bring

         13  the children to school and who would take care. And

         14  I'm very fortunate that I have a mother-in-law who

         15  helps take care of the kids during the day. On

         16  January 25th, all of this was thrown into oblivion

         17  when we were told we no longer had service.

         18                 Since then, and my wife has been

         19  assuming lots of the frustration for this, and she

         20  is the one who, because she works in Bayridge, has

         21  had to come in, drive back and forth to make sure

         22  she's there for the kids, she's had to miss days of

         23  work. She's had to work very strange hours. And this

         24  has been a problem.

         25                 Council Member Oddo's office has been
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          2  fantastic, has been working with us throughout all

          3  of this. And to point out, just a few hours ago we

          4  did receive a phone call that we were going to be

          5  given a variance.

          6                 Now, I find that strange since we

          7  already had a variance to begin with. We live a mile

          8  and a half away from the school and we live a

          9  quarter of a mile away from the, I think its a half

         10  mile actually away from the nearest other stop. Now,

         11  to have received this phone call the afternoon

         12  before this hearing, I just find that a little

         13  peculiar, but I decided to say something anyway.

         14                 In addition to that, you know, we

         15  were told that my daughter would have to ride the

         16  bus both in the morning and the afternoon. I like to

         17  take my daughter in the mornings, just so she

         18  doesn't have to stay on the bus for an extra hour,

         19  hour and a half, whatnot. We only live 15 minutes

         20  away from the school, but we were told that if she

         21  doesn't take the bus both ways, she would not be

         22  accorded service, and that doesn't seem to make any

         23  sense whatsoever. Why anybody would need her to go

         24  both, in both directions, I don't understand.

         25                 But this is where we are right now.
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          2  Supposedly I'll receive this phone call and we'll

          3  see where this takes us.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, but even

          5  with the variance she has to go both ways; is that

          6  correct?

          7                 MR. TORRES: Yes. Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: This doesn't

          9  make sense to me either. If you need it both ways,

         10  why are they going to force you to take it both

         11  ways, and they will force you to take it both ways

         12  or else you can't have half the service? It doesn't

         13  make sense.

         14                 There is a woman back there, as you

         15  know, from the Department of Education. I want you

         16  to talk to her. I want you to get the information to

         17  Jan Atwell. We'll try to work on it with you. You

         18  know, we have asked them to withdraw this plan and

         19  go back to where it was, and let's meet with the bus

         20  company people, parents and others, in order to come

         21  up with, you know, if you're looking at savings,

         22  everyone can agree with savings, but you've got to

         23  do a common-sense approach to this and not just this

         24  is the way it is. Our children are not widgets.

         25  We're not dealing with, you know, little boxes. Our
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          2  children are little people that get cold in the

          3  winter, that get upset when their life changes. And

          4  I know, as you said, your wife is taking the

          5  majority of the frustration, and I'm sure as

          6  someone, I used to be a parent of young children

          7  myself, taking my kids to the day care or the school

          8  and picking them up until they got old enough to

          9  take care of themselves, or arranging to pay someone

         10  else to do it, this is very stressful.

         11                 So, let me thank you on behalf of

         12  your daughter and your wife for coming and giving

         13  testimony. And I do know that many parents are home

         14  and would like to come in but I guess did not have

         15  the opportunity. Maybe we should have had a

         16  situation where, you know, I think like Gale Brewer,

         17  where people can e-mail and stuff like that.

         18                 We do. Okay, so we have that

         19  information, okay.

         20                 MR. TORRES: Yes, Council member, if I

         21  may just add? A lot has been made about all of a

         22  sudden how this adds up. You know, how somebody has

         23  balanced a decimal point or whatnot. You know,

         24  sometimes just adding up the numbers just doesn't

         25  give you the right or wrong answer, and I think
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          2  that's been lost in this. You know. But thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

          4                 And I was told that there's a link on

          5  the New York City Council's website for if someone

          6  wants to e-mail us the details, it's

          7  www.nyccouncil.info, and there's a link there for

          8  parents and others to communicate with us directly

          9  electronically.

         10                 And next we're going to hear from

         11  Doliveira Henry.

         12                 MR. HENRY: Doliveira.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Doliveira.

         14  Sorry. Representing, I assume, your daughter; is

         15  that correct?

         16                 MR. HENRY: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, come

         18  forward, please.

         19                 MR. HENRY: Good afternoon. My name is

         20  Doliveira Henry. I am representing my daughter

         21  Tatiana.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Where do you

         23  live, sir?

         24                 MR. HENRY: In the Rockaways.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Far Rockaway,
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          2  Queens.

          3                 MR. HENRY: Yes, sir.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, go ahead,

          5  please.

          6                 MR. HENRY: What's happened is I don't

          7  think OPT's Office has taken into account how these

          8  actions actually impede just more than the children,

          9  it's also parents who now have to rearrange work

         10  schedules. Or you know, you may have someone who

         11  doesn't have an understanding voice, that you're

         12  going to have to tell them that I'm going to either

         13  have to drop my child off to school or things of

         14  this nature.

         15                 I have a five-year-old daughter.

         16  Their suggestion to me in a letter was, to my wife

         17  and myself, was to pick up a bus pass, or a train

         18  pass for my daughter, five years old. So, that

         19  either means two things, either I'm going to put my

         20  five-year-old daughter on the train by herself, or

         21  one of us is going to have to ride with her to

         22  school in the morning on the train. So, that now

         23  changes everything that happens work-wise.

         24                 I mean, I'm lucky enough to have a

         25  situation where I'm comfortable. My wife doesn't
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          2  have the same situation. But there's I'm sure a lot

          3  of parents who are in bad positions because they now

          4  cannot get to work in a timely fashion because they

          5  now either have to take their children to school,

          6  and if they have multiple children in different

          7  schools, just turns into chaos within the home

          8  itself.

          9                 The children now have to deal with a

         10  whole change in schedule and the children become

         11  very comfortable with schedules, and the process.

         12  Now you tell a child, hey, listen, we're going to

         13  have to get you to school in a different way,

         14  there's different situations going on. Now, the

         15  biggest problem I have is this was done at the

         16  coldest time of the year, right? This was also done,

         17  in Rockaway there is a major construction going on,

         18  there is construction everywhere. So, even if the

         19  child was to take the train, she would not even be

         20  safe in the street, and this is after a recently

         21  released paper, a journal within the Rockaways

         22  reporting on how many pedophiles there are in the

         23  Rockaways.

         24                 So, even if that wasn't the case, I

         25  don't feel comfortable putting a five year old on
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          2  public transportation. We live more than a mile away

          3  from the school. So, you know, it's really a burden

          4  on myself, but I have no choice but to do this. I

          5  have to, you know, now explain to my boss that this

          6  is what prevents me coming to work. But it's really

          7  like to no avail because his situation is not my

          8  situation. He needs me at work by a certain time.

          9  The City is not concerned about that. I happen to

         10  work for the City.

         11                 The other problem that I have is

         12  within you calling OPT. They may say the calls has

         13  gone down, but the calls have gone down because

         14  people are not getting through. Someone cannot stay

         15  on the phone all day at work, or they cannot be on

         16  hold for 30 or 40 minutes, and they can't call back

         17  every day. They're at a job where they may not be

         18  able to call back. You may have someone who is in a

         19  truck or is doing something in the street, or, you

         20  know, they might be a police officer. He cannot be

         21  on the phone while he's at work. So, the calls have

         22  to go down, so in the meantime you still have to get

         23  your child to school. So, in the interim, what do

         24  you do?

         25                 This notice was sent home to my
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          2  family in my daughter's notebook. We didn't receive

          3  the initial notice or we would have responded. I

          4  think it was inappropriate how they decided to make

          5  this the initial contact regarding this issue.

          6                 This is, you know, children's lives.

          7  You cannot do these kind of things on the backs of

          8  children.

          9                 I also understand how when you're

         10  calling a company for analysis, I don't know how it

         11  works. You can call a company and have them analyze,

         12  you know, give you an analysis on how many people

         13  you have on the Board. If you tell them you think

         14  you have many people on the Board, they're going to

         15  give you an analysis based on that. If you say we

         16  want to cut down the amount of children we have on

         17  the bus, we think we have too many buses, they're

         18  going to give you an answer based on what you want.

         19  If they don't give you that answer, then you don't

         20  need them. So, they're going to give you the answer

         21  you want. If you say, well, I think we have too many

         22  bus routes, they're going to give you an answer on

         23  how to delete X amount of bus routes that will make

         24  it appear that they're helping you in your agenda.

         25  But this is done on the backs of children.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you. Your

          3  daughter, what happened to her bus route?

          4                 MR. HENRY: The bus route, she was

          5  just told that she can no longer take the bus.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And what was the

          7  reason why?

          8                 MR. HENRY: They didn't give us a

          9  reason. They said she no longer qualifies for the

         10  bus. My wife has been going back and forth with the

         11  Council --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Who is your

         13  Council member?

         14                 MR. HENRY: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Who is your

         16  Council member? It's either James Sanders, Jr., or

         17  --

         18                 MR. HENRY: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Or Joe Addabbo.

         20                 MR. HENRY: James Sanders.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: James Sanders?

         22                 MR. HENRY: Yes.

         23                 And what happened is they've been

         24  calling, in contact with OPT back and forth, you

         25  know, trying to make some arrangements, but my
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          2  daughter, we live more than a mile away from the

          3  school. I mean --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: How far are you

          5  from the bus stop?

          6                 MR. HENRY: Well, the bus stop, we

          7  would actually drive to the bus stop because it was

          8  close to my caregiver, and then the bus would pick

          9  her up there and then take her to the school from

         10  there.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Your child has

         12  to be picked up at your home now, versus the

         13  caregiver's house?

         14                 MR. HENRY: No. Nothing of the sort.

         15  It said, the letter basically said report to the

         16  office to pick up a train pass, a MetroCard for your

         17  daughter.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Did you ever

         19  pick up that MetroCard?

         20                 MR. HENRY: I don't believe so. It

         21  would be to no point.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes, no help for

         23  you.

         24                 MR. HENRY: Right. It does nothing for

         25  me. Because then now I would have to buy a
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          2  MetroCard, because I drive into work.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Right.

          4                 MR. HENRY: And it doesn't --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And I understand

          6  it's not a MetroCard, it's a bus pass; isn't that

          7  correct?

          8                 MR. HENRY: Right.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Is that correct?

         10  A bus pass. Yes, it's a Metro bus pass for the kids.

         11                 MR. HENRY: Right. And I don't think

         12  some people may be aware also that if you give a

         13  child at a certain age a bus pass, what happens is

         14  you have an element sometimes at the train where

         15  another child, older, maybe a teenager knows that

         16  this child has a bus pass or a train pass. What they

         17  will do, they will take that from that child, and

         18  that is now money for them to score, swiping other

         19  people in, and they can charge a dollar for it. So,

         20  not only is my child in physical danger, but there

         21  is all the danger of her crossing the streets in the

         22  Rockaways where they're doing construction.

         23  Obviously these are not the things that they thought

         24  of.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Is this causing
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          2  stress to you and your family?

          3                 MR. HENRY: Oh, absolutely.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: What would you

          5  like to happen?

          6                 MR. HENRY: Well, I don't know if they

          7  can at least reverse it at this point and come up

          8  with a better plan. Because obviously what this has

          9  done is, it's not working, it's not helping anyone.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And they said

         11  they're going to save five and a half million

         12  dollars this year.

         13                 MR. HENRY: Right. I can understand

         14  the $5 million that they're saving.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: They say. I

         16  don't know if they're going to save it. They say

         17  they're going to save it.

         18                 MR. HENRY: Right, but what happens is

         19  we have young children who are supposed to be our

         20  future. I think the least we can do is cater to our

         21  children. If they can arrive to school in comfort

         22  and some type of safety, and feel that they can go

         23  into school and function because they know they have

         24  something that's on schedule, something, there's a

         25  pattern that they know they can follow -- my
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          2  daughter has already asked when she's going to get

          3  to class, so she's very aware. She's also just, you

          4  know, somewhat disturbed by this, because now she

          5  knows that -- she doesn't mind me dropping her off

          6  to school, but she prefers to ride a bus because she

          7  feels a little more independent, but you know, these

          8  are the things that affect children. They don't

          9  realize the psychological effect they're having on

         10  children. You know there's children who may take

         11  this as a personal, you know, attack against them,

         12  saying maybe I wasn't good enough to ride the bus.

         13  We don't know about these things, but this is what

         14  we do to our children.

         15                 I mean, I said to my wife this

         16  morning, why don't they go after the guys that owe

         17  all these tickets, from foreign countries in parking

         18  tickets. They can save money there. They're not

         19  going after these guys, but you can pull kids off

         20  the bus.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, you came

         22  in from Far Rockaway to speak at this hearing

         23  tonight?

         24                 MR. HENRY: Yes. Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Let me thank you
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          2  for coming in and expressing the frustration and the

          3  situation for your daughter and for yourself and

          4  your wife and it's a mess. I've asked them to

          5  reverse it. Their decision. They're adamant they're

          6  not going to turn back. They're continuing to go

          7  forward, regardless of what people have to say.

          8                 MR. HENRY: Right.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, there is a

         10  woman in the back in the orange who is an employee

         11  of the Department of Education. She can take your

         12  information down, along with Jan Atwell, who is our

         13  Policy Analyst right there in the gray. Give them

         14  all the information, please.

         15                 MR. HENRY: All right. Thank you very

         16  much, sir. Have a good evening.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         18                 And next we're going to hear from

         19  Robert Lev, a parent.

         20                 MR. LEV: Mr. Jackson, thank you for

         21  the opportunity to testify. My name is Robert Lev. I

         22  live in the Flatbush section of Brooklyn. I'm here

         23  to testify on behalf of my seven-year-old daughter,

         24  who up until recently was bussed from the corner of

         25  M and 27th Street, which happens to be at the end of
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          2  our block, so not only is it very convenient, but

          3  more importantly, it's very safe.

          4                 Now she is bussed from Bedford and M

          5  and the problem with that is Bedford happens to be a

          6  very busy avenue any time of the day and certainly

          7  at the time when she has to go to school.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: How far is that

          9  from your home? How many blocks?

         10                 MR. LEV: It's an additional -- well,

         11  Bedford can really be called like 25th, so -- I'm

         12  sorry, 24th. It's L and 24th. That's where the new

         13  stop is. I didn't have that correct. She has to

         14  cross Bedford in order to get to 24th. Bedford is

         15  sort of like 25th. She has to cross this busy

         16  avenue.

         17                 So, it's not so much more in the

         18  terms of time, but it's the issue of safety. So, my

         19  point succinctly can be stated as, I don't think

         20  safety should be the victim of the City's desire in

         21  order to save money.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I totally agree

         23  with you. In fact, what we said to Deputy Mayor

         24  Walcott, Joel Klein, the Chancellor, and to Kathleen

         25  Grimm, is the most important issue for parents is
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          2  the safety and well-being of their children. And I

          3  don't think the parents are going to jeopardize the

          4  safety of their children, just because the City of

          5  New York wants to save a little money. And, in fact,

          6  I told them that even if they save a little money

          7  here, that they have already lost, because the

          8  confidence of the people of New York City,

          9  especially with children, has been shaken so much by

         10  this, that they have lost, and when they talk about

         11  major reform, this is what the example is of reform,

         12  then parents don't want no part of it whatsoever.

         13  Because I said, if you want to save money, if this

         14  is the recommendation of your consultant, A&M, which

         15  stands for Alvarez and Marsal, then fire the

         16  consultant and save the money. That's how you can

         17  save money.

         18                 And they've said that children are

         19  riding the bus that shouldn't be on the bus, and

         20  that the bus company has been ripping them off.

         21  Well, wait a minute, Mayor Bloomberg and Joel Klein

         22  and Dennis Walcott, this is their sixth year of

         23  office, what have you been doing all of this time?

         24  Who has been monitoring the bus company? I asked

         25  those questions and they give the same answer. And I
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          2  told them, you may not have been here, when I'm

          3  driving down the road and I'm lost and my wife asks

          4  me to pull over and try to ask for directions and I

          5  think that I'm too smart or too stubborn or too

          6  arrogant to pull over and ask for directions to get

          7  where I'm going, until I'm so lost where then I pull

          8  over. Now, they have apologized to the parents and

          9  people of New York City about this bus mess, but

         10  they're still moving forward.

         11                 So, I don't know. Let me ask you, has

         12  your confidence been shaken in what they're doing in

         13  this particular matter as a parent?

         14                 MR. LEV: Of course.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: What would you

         16  like to see happen?

         17                 MR. LEV: I would like to see the bus

         18  stops reinstated as they were.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And what reason

         20  did they give you that now your daughter has to now

         21  not take the bus stop right there, one block from

         22  your house, at the end of your block, and now she

         23  has to cross a major thoroughfare?

         24                 MR. LEV: My wife made the call to the

         25  DOE hot line and she was not given any means on how

                                                            287

          1  EDUCATION AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEES

          2  to correct the situation, how to better the

          3  situation. She was simply told that the City is

          4  trying to consolidate the bus lines. And that was

          5  it.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And is your

          7  daughter, is she taking the bus at the new location?

          8                 MR. LEV: She is, I believe at great

          9  effort on behalf of my wife. I've already left the

         10  house by the time all this is occurring, and we've

         11  been blessed with more than one child, so my wife is

         12  busy with the other children as well. They're

         13  dealing in their own ways with their own bus stops.

         14  But I focused on this particular child.

         15                 So, it is an effort. It is a problem.

         16  It is a hassle.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And is your

         18  child that's riding the bus, is she on the bus

         19  longer as a result of this change?

         20                 MR. LEV: That I can't tell you. I

         21  don't know. But again, it's not time, it's safety.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Right. Many

         23  people have complained about the excessive amount of

         24  time now that their children are on the bus as a

         25  result of consolidation, or the eliminating of a bus
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          2  route, and things like that.

          3                 MR. LEV: I appreciate everything you

          4  said, and I'm sure we all do, but what good is this

          5  if you're telling us that the City has decided

          6  they're not going back? Why are we busy testifying?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: It's important.

          8  It's important because quite frankly, this was the

          9  first opportunity from 1:00 this afternoon, almost

         10  straight through to now that we have had the

         11  opportunity to have an oversight hearing, and that's

         12  part of our, I guess responsibility, to have an

         13  oversight hearing, in order to, hopefully, they can

         14  listen to what people are saying and make the

         15  change, and hopefully maybe this will change their

         16  mind and they will revert back, but what they said

         17  earlier this afternoon is they will not. They talked

         18  about variances. They talked about other things like

         19  that. Hopefully things will change for the better,

         20  we are hoping, with this. But also I've said on the

         21  radio and interviews before, the Mayor has total

         22  control of the educational system in New York City,

         23  and that was given to him by the State Legislature

         24  and Governor, several years ago. That Mayoral

         25  control is up for a renewal or change in 2009, and
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          2  quite frankly, I want to see a change. No Mayor

          3  should have total control of the Education system in

          4  New York City. There needs to be checks and balances

          5  in the system.

          6                 Someone asked me, you're the Chair of

          7  the Education Committee, can the City Council stop

          8  the Mayor from doing what he's doing? And the answer

          9  is, no, we cannot. We can advise him, we can tell

         10  them they should go back, but can we stop them? The

         11  answer is no. So, by having an oversight hearing, by

         12  having the media pick up on this, by having people

         13  like you, parents, that are coming in from where?

         14  What part of Brooklyn?

         15                 MR. LEV: Flatbush.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Flatbush. People

         17  from Far Rockaway, people from Lower Manhattan,

         18  people from other parts of Brooklyn and Bronx are

         19  coming in and testifying about this, it's building a

         20  record of frustration and anger and dissatisfaction

         21  with what's going on, and hopefully, hopefully they

         22  will get the message. So, that's what we're hoping

         23  for. So, let me thank you on behalf of your wife and

         24  your daughter for coming in and taking the time and

         25  giving testimony about your situation this evening.
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          2                 Would you please see that woman over

          3  there, the lady from the Department of Education,

          4  and also our Policy Analyst, Jan Atwell. We will try

          5  to get the information and we will also communicate

          6  with your Council member. Do you know who your

          7  Council member is? That's Simcha Felder?

          8                 MR. LEV: I know that my wife called

          9  Simcha Felder's office. I can't tell you for sure if

         10  that's our specific Council member.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I believe it is.

         12  So, Jan will get the information and we will

         13  communicate with Simcha Felder's office, so they

         14  will be advocating also, okay?

         15                 MR. LEV: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you very

         17  much.

         18                 And next we'll hear from Calvin Hunt,

         19  the Children Who Can't Be Here. He's representing

         20  the children who cannot be here.

         21                 MR. HUNT: Good evening. I was here

         22  earlier at 1:00, and the reason I came back, you

         23  know, just to see the turnout, how it was going to

         24  be at 5:00. Now, this is just a mere suggestion, you

         25  know, the complaints, you're talking about 7,000
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          2  kids are being affected, and since I've been here

          3  since 1:00, you might have heard about ten parents,

          4  if that.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: No, we've heard

          6  more than that.

          7                 MR. HUNT: My point is this: if it

          8  could have been possible if it could be on the

          9  weekend when parents have off, and the kids be off,

         10  and the City could see the multitude of the children

         11  and their parents protesting this issue and it might

         12  not be on deaf ears. Because this is my personal

         13  opinion, everybody has one, you know, from what I've

         14  seen today, and the attitude that Mr. Klein had and

         15  Deputy Walcott -- I can't even remember these

         16  people's names.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Deputy Mayor

         18  Dennis Walcott.

         19                 MR. HUNT: And Grimm. They was on deaf

         20  ears. What we need to do, and I'm going to actually

         21  after this is over, if there's any way it's possible

         22  this weekend, and we can just put together a rally

         23  right here, City Hall, where the parents and the

         24  children can be out here and then maybe we won't be

         25  on deaf ears, then the whole City will see this is
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          2  really a serious problem, and especially in the

          3  Bronx. Like I said, yesterday there is an area on

          4  Prospect Avenue where there are known pedophiles in

          5  the area, on Tremont Avenue, known pedophiles in

          6  that area where they catch the bus, the B 55 and the

          7  B 17. I've posted up big pictures all around the

          8  area, all on the bus stops. The kids, they got off

          9  the bus, I gave them pictures of these guys to let

         10  them know, if you see these guys standing at the bus

         11  stop, leave and call the police. You know what I'm

         12  saying? And it's very serious. Putting these kids in

         13  danger, that's the whole thing, the safety. It ain't

         14  about no 5 million, it ain't about no money when it

         15  comes to children. I got two, one two year old and

         16  one on the way, like six more months from now, and

         17  I'm like really concerned when it comes to children.

         18  That's why I've been here since 1:00 and that's why

         19  it's the second time I'm speaking. I could have went

         20  home, but I said let me see what's going to happen

         21  here 5:00. I see 5:00 parents is taking care of

         22  their kids. You see the gentlemen here, there have

         23  been fathers that are here now because their wives

         24  are taking care of the children. Now, if the wives

         25  were here and the children were here and the father
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          2  was here, this place would really be jumping right

          3  now, you would have some Department of Education

          4  lady, this lady right here, I don't know your name,

          5  Ma'am, you would really be working right now. Right

          6  now, you're just sitting back, everything cool, but

          7  this place, really on the weekend if we could get

          8  people to come in here and support this matter.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: We are trying.

         10  We have also indicated that parents can e-mail,

         11  there is a link on our website. I know that's not as

         12  direct as having people to testify directly, but we

         13  wanted to be able to extend this hearing from the

         14  afternoon straight into the evening to give everyone

         15  the opportunity so they can come in.

         16                 We're about trying to resolve this

         17  situation. As you know, I've asked them to go back

         18  to what it was. They have refused. It seems as

         19  though that they are going forward with blinders on,

         20  no matter what people say. They are going to listen

         21  to individual variances, but as far as going back,

         22  they said there's no going back.

         23                 And as I said earlier, and you were

         24  here, if this is what they perceive as reform, and

         25  trying to save money, I think that people want to
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          2  save money, but not at the expense and on the backs

          3  of the children with respects to jeopardizing their

          4  safety and security.

          5                 So, Calvin, let me thank you again

          6  for coming back and testifying again on behalf of

          7  the children that are not here giving testimony.

          8                 MR. HUNT: Okay. Could I ask one more

          9  question?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Sure.

         11                 MR. HUNT: Is there any way possible

         12  after this is over where you could, like, inform me

         13  any kind of way, I could like set up a rally for

         14  Saturday, you know, to --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, I think

         16  that individuals and groups need to organize

         17  themselves. In fact, there is a rally tomorrow at

         18  11:00 on the steps of Tweed by advocates and I will

         19  be there talking about, against the reform measures

         20  that they're putting forward, and this is one of

         21  them. So, I will be on the steps of Tweed tomorrow

         22  at 11:00 a.m. with Bill Thompson, Betsy Gotbaum and

         23  others, and members of the City Council protesting

         24  the reform.

         25                 MR. HUNT: Okay. I'll be there to join
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          2  you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you very

          4  much.

          5                 MR. HUNT: Have a nice night.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thanks.

          7                 Okay, with that, ladies and gents,

          8  there are no further witnesses. I would like to

          9  thank all of you for coming in --

         10                 MR. SABLIC: I have a question.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: What's your

         12  question, sir? Can you go to the mic? Just ask your

         13  quick question.

         14                 MR. SABLIC: Actually, two in one.

         15  What would happen if a child dies due to this policy

         16  in a tragic accident, whether at this point it would

         17  be Mayor Bloomberg and Mr. Klein would be criminally

         18  responsible. In connection with this, is there a law

         19  that they can be impeached on the basis of working

         20  against the children of New York City? Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I don't know

         22  whether or not we can impeach him, but if, in fact,

         23  the child died as a result of this busing situation,

         24  let me just say that in my opinion that would be a

         25  damn shame, and number two, the City of New York
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          2  will probably be sued, and rightfully so. And let's

          3  hope that will not happen.

          4                 Now, with that, ladies and gents, let

          5  me just say that I appreciate everyone coming out

          6  giving testimony. It is now 13 minutes after seven,

          7  and I will call this meeting adjourned.

          8                 (Hearing concluded at 7:13 p.m.)

          9

         10

         11

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            297

          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter, do hereby certify that the

         11  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         12  within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 13th day of February 2007.

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

                                   ---------------------

         24                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.

         25

                                                            298

          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24                 -----------------------

                              CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.

         25

